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About this Report

LOTTE SHOPPING ANNUAL REPORT 2016

This annual report is designed to inform readers 
about Lotte Shopping’s exciting and innovative new 
ideas in the retail industry of today and tomorrow. 

We are committed to offering customers and 
shareholders the ultimate in value and satisfaction.

COVER STORY

The cover of this report features photographs 
depicting the world of Lotte Shopping. It shows 

readers the wide range of channels, products, stores, 
and services that we have to offer them.

UNIQUE FEATURE

This year’s report includes a “Beyond” section 
outlining our efforts to create the retail industry of 

the future and a “Better” part that describes  
our financial and non-financial management 
performance and our activities in the area of 

corporate social responsibilities.

LOVELY LIFE

Our “Lovely Life” corporate slogan reflects  
our commitment to providing our customers with 

richer and happier lives. We are committed to 
embracing change and innovation for the betterment 

of all our stakeholders.

***



MILESTONES

1979 2016

	 1979-2005
'79	 11 -	 Founded as Lotte Shopping Co., Ltd.
	 12 -	 Opened first Lotte Department Store
'96	 06 - 	Opened Lotteshopping.com online shopping mall
'98	 04 -	 Opened first Lotte Mart
'00	 01 -	 Spun off Lotteshopping.com to create Lotte.com
'01	 05 -	 Opened first Lotte Super
'02	 10 -	 Acquired Nowon Department Store from Midopa
'03	 11 -	 Opened first Lotte Young Plaza
	 12 -	 Spun off credit card business to Lotte Card subsidiary
'04	 03 -	 Acquired twenty-five supermarkets from Hanwha Super
'05	 03 -	 Opened first Avenuel

	 2006-2008
'06	 02 -	 Listed on London and South Korean stock exchanges
	 08 - Acquired Woori Home Shopping
'07	 09 - Opened first overseas Lotte Department Store, in Moscow
	 12 -	 Entered Chinese hypermarket sector with acquisition of Makro
'08	 08 -	 Opened second overseas Lotte Department Store, in Beijing
	 10 -	� Entered Indonesian hypermarket sector with  

acquisition of Makro
	 10 -	 Opened first Lotte Outlets, in Gwangju
	 12 -	 Opened first Lotte Premium Outlets, in Gimhae
	 12 -	� Opened Lotte Mart Ho Chi Minh in Vietnam  

(first overseas Lotte Mart store)

	 2009-2010
'09	 07 -	 Opened first Lotte School in Vietnam
	 09 -	 Opened Lotte Outlets Suwan in Gwangju
	 09 -	 Acquired 7-Eleven convenience store chain (Korea Seven)
	 10 -	 Acquired Times hypermarket chain in China (68 stores)
'10	 01 -	 Acquired Buy The Way convenience store chain
	 02 -	� Acquired GS Square department stores and  

GS Mart hypermarkets
	 08 -	� Acquired equity stake in Chinese home shopping  

network Lucky Pai
	 08 -	 Opened Lotte Outlets Yulha in Daegu
	 08 -	 Opened first directlyoperated Lotte Mart in Indonesia
	 11 -	 Acquired Nice Claup Fashion

	 2011
'11	 02 -	 Opened second Lotte School in Vietnam
	 04 -	 Opened Lotte Mall Daegu Esiapolis
	 06 -	 Opened Lotte Department Store Tianjin in China
	 08 -	 Opened 200th Lotte Mart store (83rd in China)
	 12 -	 Opened Lotte Premium Outlets Paju
	 12 -	 Opened Lotte Mall Gimpo Airport

	 2012
'12	 01 -	 Acquired CS Mart
	 02 - 	�Launched Lotte DatViet home shopping  

business in Vietnam
	 03 -	 Launched “elLotte” premium online mall
	 05 -	 Acquired two Grand Department Store branches
	 06 -	 Opened first VIC Market, in Geumcheon
	 08 -	 Acquired Lotte Square
	 09 -	� Opened Lotte Department Store Tianjin in  

Tianjin Cultural Center, China
	 09 -	 Opened 100th Lotte Mart store in China
	 10 -	 Acquired Himart

	 2013
'13	 01 -	 Acquired Lotte Midopa
	 01 - 	Opened Lotte Outlets Seoul Station
	 04 -	 Opened Lotte Department Store Weihai, China
	 06 -	 Opened Lotte Shopping Avenue in Indonesia
	 08 -	� Opened Lotte Department Store in New Century 

Global Center, Chengdu, China
	 09 -	 Opened Lotte Outlets Buyeo
	 12 -	 Opened Lotte Premium Outlets Icheon

	 2014
'14	 05 -	� Opened Lotte Department Store Shenyang, 

China
	 09 -	� Opened first Lotte Department Store in 

Hanoi, Vietnam
	 10 -	 Opened Lotte Outlets Goyang Bus Terminal
	 10 -	 Opened Lotte Avenuel World Tower
	 11 -	 Opened Lotte Mall Suwon
	 12 -	� Opened Lotte Premium Outlets 

Gwangmyeong
	 12 -	 Opened Lotte Outlets Guri
	 12 -	 Opened Lotte Mall East Busan

	 2015
'15	 03 -	� Opened Diamond Plaza department store in 

Hanoi, Vietnam
	 05 - 	Opened Lotte Factory Outlets Incheon
	 06 - 	�Spun-off LOHB’s health and beauty store as 

a separate company
	 07 -	 Opened Lotte Department Store Masan
	 09 -	 Opened Lotte Outlets Gwanggyo
	 11 -	 Opened 40th Lotte Mart in Indonesia
	 12 -	� Opened Lotte Mart Yeongdeok 

featuringshowroom-style format

	 2016
'16	 03 -	� Opened Lotte Department Store  

elCUBE Hongdae 
	 06 -	� Opened Lotte Super Premium Food Market 

Dogok
	 07 - 	�Launched Choice L Gold Premium 

Integrated PB Brand
	 07 -	 Opened thirteenth Lotte Mart in Vietnam	
	 08 -	 Opened Lotte Outlets Uijeongbu
	 09 -	 Opened Lotte Mall Jinju
	 12 -	 Opened forty-sixth Lotte Mart in Indonesia
	 12 -	 Opened Lotte Outlets Namak

BEYOND & GREATER 
Annual Report 2016
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Showing you how you’ll look in advance
Lotte Department Store’s 3D Virtual Fitting service combines 
shopping for clothes with high-tech augmented reality 
technologies to let shoppers check out how they’ll look in 
the clothing they’re interested in through Digital Mirror and 
smartphones, without having to actually put them on. 

32

Shopping Meets
Technology

01. BEYOND EXPECTATIONS
Smart Shopping

Lotte Shopping uses cutting-edge ICT technologies to provide customers  
with excitingly new shopping experiences. They include 3D Virtual Fitting 

with high-tech augmented reality (AR) technologies, a Smart Shopper,  
a Foot Scanner that measures foot sizes in 3D, and Baro Coupon,  

offering discount movie coupons through the magic of  
sound wave communications.

Amazing shopping experiences

3D Virtual Fitting

Augmented 
Reality

Technologies

Digital 
Mirror

Motion 
Recognition 

Camera
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Custom-tailored shoes
Lotte Department Store uses 3D foot-measuring scans at its 
main branch. The scanner measures the shoe size of a customer 
in 3D and delivers its recommendations within seconds. 
Customers then have the option of buying shoes in the best 
size to fit them off the rack or having them custom-made. 

4

Smart Shopper
Eliminating shopping carts
Smart Shopper was initially deployed at the food stores of  
Lotte Department Store Bundang. It’s an innovative, omnichannel 
service that combines offline shopping with state-of-the-art ICT 
technologies. Shoppers can have their purchases delivered to 
their homes by swiping the bar codes of the products they want 
at a terminal at the store and then paying for them at a self-serve 
checkout. They can also make changes to their purchases or cancel 
them by using an order-viewing device while they’re still shopping. 
There’s no need for lug around a big, heavy shopping cart!

ICT

NFC

Foot Scanner

A quick and easy way to get discount movie coupons
Lotte Cinema can now supply discount coupons to customers 
just by tapping their cell phones. Using Lotte’s sound wave 
technologies, theatergoers can receive discounted movie 
admissions just by following the instructions given in the 
cinema. 

Baro Coupon

3D 
Scanning

Technologies

Information 
Technology

Precise 
Measuring 
Technology
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7-Eleven

Lotte Mart
Lotte Department Store

Himart

Lotte Homeshopping

Lotte Super

Flexible Shopping,
Flexible Shipping

02. BEYOND BOUNDARIES
Omni Channel

Online
Offline

to
to

Offline
Online

Customers can pick up their online purchases just by driving to  
one of our department stores, marts, supermarkets, convenience stores,  

parking lots, or gas stations. If the things they want aren’t available  
at an offline store, they can order them at one of  

Lotte’s online shopping malls.

Easy and convenient shopping
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NUMBER OF STORES 
EQUIPPED WITH 
SMART PICK ACROSS 
SOUTH KOREA
Lotte Department Store

35 Number of orders 

175,614 (+183%)

Sales (in KRW billions)

17,434 (+190%)

7-ELEVEN

4,632

Himart

457

LOTTE DEPARTMENT STORE’S SMART PICK 
RESULTS FOR 2016

NUMBER OF STORES 
EQUIPPED WITH SMART PICK 
ACROSS SOUTH KOREA

Merging online and offline shopping
Smart Pick is Lotte Shopping’s signature omnichannel service. 
Combining the best of online and offline shopping and operated by 
Lotte Department Store, Lotte Mart, Lotte Super, and Himart, it allows 
shoppers to pick up their online purchases at any nearby offline store. 
In 2016, Lotte Department Store and Himart launched the Cross-Pick 
service in July and November respectively. The service allows customers 
to pick up their online orders at any 24/7 7-Eleven location. Lotte Mart 
and Lotte Super introduced the Drive & Pick service, which allows 
shoppers to pick up their online orders at gas stations or the parking lots 
of the stores without having to leave the comfort of their cars.

Smart Pick 1 Lotte Department Store’s Pickup Desk
Lotte Department Store operates a pickup desk at its nine 
branches. Customers can pick up purchases they have made 
online from elLotte and Lotte.com. Exchange and alternation 
services are also available. 

Smart Pick 2 The 7-Eleven Cross-Pick Service
Lotte’s Cross Pick service allows customers to pick up 
merchandise purchased from online shopping malls at 
any 7-Eleven convenience stores that are open 24/7. It was 
launched by Lotte Department Stores and Himart in July  
and November, respectively, in 2016.

Smart Pick

Technologies
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NUMBER OF ITEMS 
AVAILABLE AT HIMART’S 
OMNI-ZONE 

3,000

Smart Pick 3 Lotte Mart and Lotte Super Drive & Pick service 
Lotte Mart and Lotte Super offer a Drive & Pick service.  
It allows shoppers to shop online and then drive to  
the store and collect their order at a pick-up point in  
the store’s parking lot without having to leave their cars.  
Lotte Mart also operates a service that lets customers 
pick up their merchandise at gas stations. In addition, 
Lotte Mart has worked with Lotte Rental to launch a 
Rental Smart Pick service that delivers rental vehicles and 
merchandise to customers at the same time.  

Himart Omni Sales  
Himart’s Omni Sales service allows customers to access its 
online shopping mall and order products that are not in stock 
in the store by using a tablet PC in the store’s Omni-Zone.  
The service is available at Himart stores across South Korea.

Omni Sales
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S H I F T I N G

Providing  
Innovative Services 

03. BEYOND FRAMES
New Format Business

Salon de Charlotte

Lotte Department Store opened a Salon de Charlotte, South Korea’s very first store 
specializing in rental clothing, at its main branch. The store rents out items for special 

occasions like weddings and babies’ first birthday parties, including dresses, suits, handbags, 
and accessories, all at very affordable prices. 

Lotte Shopping is creating a more innovative and exciting shopping culture 
through the development of new types of businesses and formats.  

They include rental stores that lease high-end fashion brands, mini-
department stores for customers in their twenties, “motorcycle cafes,”  

off-price stores that sell overseas brands at very low prices, and supermarkets 
where you can buy high-end foods from South Korea and abroad.

A new shopping culture 
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elCUBE

elCUBE is a specialty mini-department store that concentrates on the twenty-
something crowd. It is featured by offering clothing, cosmetics, and everyday 

supplies designed to mirror the demographic characteristics of its location. 
elCUBE has opened a number of stores including Hongik University, Ewha 

Womans University, and Garosugil stores in Seoul.

F O C U S I N G TA R G E T I N G

BMW Motorrad Café

The world’s first BMW Motorrad Café, combining a motorcycle store with 
a café, opened at Lotte Premium Outlets Icheon. The concept has proven 
to be very popular with motorcyclists, since it enables them to purchase 

their bikes and accessories while having something to eat and drink.
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LOTTE TOPS

LOTTE TOPS is an off-price store that forms part of a Lotte Department Store 
multi-shop. It sells high-end overseas brands at up to 70% off. 

LOTTE PREMIUM FOOD MARKET

Operated by Lotte Super at its Dogok and Munjeong stores, Lotte Premium Food 
Market is winning the hearts of customers with its wide variety of differentiated high-

end products. Its offerings include organic foods and groceries from private farms, 
local producers, and well-known production centers.

U P G R A D I N GD I R E C T I N G
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Creating 
Diverse Memories

LOTTE MALL, 
A New Malling 
Culture

04. BEYOND LIMITATIONS
New Stores

Lotte Mall Jinju
Lotte Mall Jinju is the first large-scale, multipurpose shopping 
mall in the western part of Gyeongsangnam-do Province. Visitors 
to it can enjoy shopping, dining, culture, rest, and relaxation 
all in one place. Its attractions include a book café, a roof-top 
garden, and a Camper’s Lounge, as well as Lotte Outlets Jinju,  
a Lotte Mall, a Lotte Mart, and a Lotte Cinema. 

Shopping by yourself, checking out products and comparing prices, is 
something you can only do at a conventional bricks and mortar store.  

In addition to shopping, you can have a bite to eat at a trendy restaurant, sit 
and relax, be entertained, and even watch the latest movies.  

All of these experiences—and many more--are yours to enjoy  
at Lotte Shopping’s many multipurpose shopping malls and outlets.

Making shopping even happier and more exciting
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LOTTE OUTLETS 
in downtown

Lotte Outlets Uijeongbu
Lotte Outlets Uijeongbu is a new type of outlet in which 
downtown and factory outlets have been joined together. 
Customers can purchase high-quality products from both 
South Korea and abroad at very reasonable prices at over  
140 discount stores and a LOTTE TOPS off-price store.  
They can also take in a movie at a Lotte Cinema or sit down  
to a delicious meal at a trendy restaurant. 

Lotte Outlets Namak
A downtown outlet located in Namak New Town, Muan-gun, 
Jeollanam-do, Lotte Outlets Namak is the largest multipurpose 
shopping mall in the southwest part of South Korea, complete 
with Lotte Outlets, Lotte Mart, and Himart stores. It also 
features discount stores selling over 170 well-known domestic 
and overseas brands. Visitors can also enjoy a variety of leisure 
and cultural facilities, as well as food and beverage stores,  
a rooftop park, and a Tower Kids Café. 
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Lotte Shopping is  
a recognized leader  
in the development 
of the retail industry 
in South Korea.  
It is also committed  
to making profound 
changes in the 
country’s shopping 
culture.

201420152016

Assets 

Current assets 

Non-current assets 

Liabilities 

Current liabilities

Non-current liabilities 

Shareholders’ equity

Controlling shareholders’ equity holdings

Capital stock 

Capital surplus

Hybrid bonds 

Capital adjustments 

Retained earnings 

Accumulated other comprehensive income 

Non-controlling shareholders’ equity holdings

40,072

14,976

25,097

22,528

12,534

9,995

17,544

16,726

157

3,911

269

(78)

12,360

107

818

40,693

15,997

24,696

23,606

11,919

11,687

17,088

16,247

157

3,911

269

(79)

11,894

96

840

41,916

16,932

24,984

24,652

13,386

11,266

17,264

16,305

157

3,911

269

(116)

11,996

88

960

201420152016

Sales

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Selling and administrative expenses

Operating profit

Profit before income tax

Net profit

28,100

19,337

8,763

7,575

1,188

1,078

616

29,128

20,217

8,911

8,057

854

(80)

(346)

29,526

20,196

9,330

8,390

940

489

247

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

South Korea’s number one retailer
Lotte Shopping opened a number of new stores and diversified both its South Korean and 

international business operations in 2016, even though the country’s retail industry as a whole 
suffered from very slow growth due to the effects of a prolonged recession. The company also 

made significant improvements to the efficiency of its management, helping it to surmount  
a host of difficulties in its operating environment while adding to its sales and profitability.  

As a result, Lotte Shopping was able to retain its position as the country’s number one retailer, 
recording KRW 29,526.4 billion in sales and KRW 940.4 billion in operating profit. 

05

Greater Vision

Condensed Consolidated Financial Position Statements
(Based on K-IFRS and consolidated financial statements) (in KRW billions)

Condensed Consolidated Comprehensive Income Statements
(Based on K-IFRS and consolidated financial statements) (in KRW billions)
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Lotte Group began with the founding of Lotte Confection-
ery in 1967. Over the past fifty years, it has grown into one 
of South Korea’s best-known business groups, expanding 
its business interests to include food, retail, tourism, petro-
chemicals, construction, machinery, finance, information and 
communications, and service operations. The Group is also 
expanding its operations across Asia and around the globe.

MISSION 
To enrich people’s lives by providing superior products and 
services that our customers will love and trust. 

CORE VALUES
Our five core values are Customer Focus, Originality, Partner-
ship, Responsibility, and Passion. Taken together, they encom-
pass what it means to be a Lotte employee.

BUSINESS AREAS
Lotte engages in a wide range of business sectors. They in-
clude retail, food and pharmaceuticals, tourism and leisure, 
construction and real estate, finance and insurance, petro-
chemicals, chemicals, machinery and electronics, advertis-
ing, information and communications, manufacturing, R&D, 
non-financial holdings, logistics, vehicle rentals and repairs, 
and other services. Its affiliates work collaboratively to create 
synergies that will make the Group even more competitive. 

Retail

Lotte Shopping
Lotte Himart
Lotte International
Lotte Station Building
Korea Seven
Lotte.com
Lotte Asahi Liquor
FRL Korea
Woori Home Shopping
Buy the Way
Korea STL
Lotte Suwon Station Shopping Town
Lotte DF Global
Lotte DF Retail
S&S International
NCF
Lotte Songdo Shopping Town
CS Mart
Lotte Department Store Masan
Lotte Shopping Town Daegu
Lotte Duty Free Jeju
Lotte Ulsan Development Co., Ltd.

Information and Communications

Hyundai Information Technology
Lotte Data Communication
Han Paysys

Manufacturing

DACC Aerospace
Angel With

Non-Financial Holdings

IGIS I

Logistics

Lotte Logistics
Lotte Global Logistics
LOTTE COSCO SHIPPING LOGISTICS 

Vehicle Rental

Lotte Rental
Green Car
JG Industry

Repair

Lotte Auto Care

Service

Lotte Members

Other

Lotte Accelerator
Lotte R&D Center
Lotte Academy
Lotte Future Strategy Center 
Lotte Scholarship Foundation
Lotte Welfare Foundation
Lotte Samdong Welfare Foundation 

Advertising

Daehong Communications
Mobizap Media
M.Hub

Construction/Real Estate

Lotte Engineering & Construction
Lotte Asset Development
Lotte Incheon Development
Universal Studios Korea Resort Asset Management Corporation
Donggyo Cheonggiwa PFV
Lotte Incheon Town
Magok District PFV
Eunpyeong PFV
Lotte Town Dongtan

Finance/Insurance

Lotte Insurance
Lotte Capital
Lotte Card
Lotte PS Net
Mybi
Busan Hanaro Card
eB Card
Gyeonggi Smartcard
Incheon Smartcard
Jang Kyo PFV
Lotte Autolease

Petrochemicals

Lotte Chemical
Lotte Fine Chemical
Seetec
KP Chemtech
Lotte MRC
Lotte Mitsui Chemicals
Lotte Versalis Elastomers
S-EnPol
Lotte Advanced Materials

Machinery/Electronics

Lotte Aluminium
Canon Korea Business Solutions
Hantok Chemicals

Chemicals

Korea Fuji Film
Sambark LFT

Food/Pharmaceuticals

Lotte Confectionery
Lotte Food
Lotte Chilsung Beverage
Lotteria
CH Beverage
MJA Wine
HUI
Chung-buk Soju
Baekhak Beverage
Lotte-Nestle Korea
Sweet with 

Tourism/Leisure

Lotte Hotel
Lotte Giants
Lotte Hotel Busan
Lotte Corporation
D-Cinema of Korea
Lotte JTB
Lotte Gimhae Development
Universal Studios Korea Development

One of the world’s most highly 
respected business groups

About the  
Lotte Group

CORE VALUES

OriginalityCustomer Focus Partnership Responsibility Passion

MANAGEMENT POLICY

Brand Management 

Transparent Management

Cultivating people of talent Field Management

Enhancement of core capabilities

Business Areas
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COMPANY OVERVIEW
Lotte Shopping has been a leader in the development of 
South Korea’s retail industry since its founding in 1979. We 
have grown into the country’s leading retailer by expanding 
our business interests to include almost all retail categories. 
Our business operations range from department stores, dis-
count stores, and supermarkets to health and beauty stores, 
cinemas, finance, specialty stores, home shopping, and conve-
nience stores. We are also active globally, advancing into such 
countries as Russia, China, Vietnam, and Indonesia. 

Strengthen domestic  
market leadership

Enhance competitiveness 
overseas

Develop  
new growth engines

One of our most important areas of interest are our various 
omnichannel services, helping to make our customers’ lives 
and shopping experiences even more convenient and satis-
fying. We are committed to continuous growth as a top-tier 
global retailer through balanced growth in terms of both size 
and profitability, as well as by fulfilling all of our corporate 
social responsibilities.

KEY STRATEGIES
In order to achieve our vision of becoming a top-tier glob-
al retailer, we are strengthening our leadership in the South 
Korean market, enhancing our competitiveness overseas, and 
developing new growth engines. We have put a series of sys-
tems and execution plans into place to ensure that each of the 
following key strategies comes to fruition. 

RETAIL CHANNELS
Lotte Shopping boasts the industry’s largest portfolio of of-
fline stores and online shopping malls. The variety of our 
retail channels, including department stores, discount stores, 
supermarkets, health and beauty stores, cinemas, finance, 
specialty stores, home shopping, and convenience stores, is 
among the highest both in South Korea and around the world. 
We are also developing a host of new retail operations, such as 
multipurpose shopping malls and outlets and T-Commerce. 
In addition, we are creating a never-before-experienced retail 
culture through our innovative omnichannel services, allow-
ing us to integrate our online and offline channels in the full-
est manner possible.

Leading the world of retailing 
through change and innovation

Company 
Profile

VISION 

Becoming a top-tier global retailer that is trusted and 
respected around the world

Key Strategies

Distribution Channels

Risks and Opportunities

Key Strategies

ENHANCE COMPETITIVENESS 
OVERSEAS

Carry out detailed market surveys

Adapt store formats and product mixes to  
suit local conditions

Adapt branding to reflect local conditions

DEVELOP NEW GROWTH 
ENGINES

Create new online shopping malls

Enter into new businesses

STRENGTHEN DOMESTIC 
MARKET LEADERSHIP

Create unique and satisfying  
shopping experiences

Expand range of cultural and  
entertainment venues

Upgrade merchandising at existing stores 
and increase number of new store openings 

CUSTOMER
INSIGHTS

LOVELY 
LIFE

CINEMAS

Lotte Cinema

Lotte Home Shopping
Lotte i-Mall

HOME SHOPPING

Lotte Card

FINANCE

Lotte.Com

ONLINE MALLS

HEALTH & BEAUTY STORES

LOHB’s

Himart
Toys “R” Us
Pet Garden
Babies “R” Us

SPECIALTY STORES

7-Eleven
Buy The Way

CONVENIENCE STORES

7-ELEVEN

DISCOUNT STORES

Lotte Mart 
VIC Market
Lotte Mart Mall online shopping mall

Lotte Super 
Lotte My Super
Lotte Market 999
e-Super online shopping mall
Lotte Premium Food Market 

SUPERMARKETSDEPARTMENT STORES

Lotte Department Store 
Avenuel 
Young Plaza
Lotte Outlets 
Lotte Premium Outlets
Lotte Factory Outlets 
elLotte premium online mall
elCUBE specialty store 

COMPETITIVENESS

World-class shopping 
experiences, customer 
satisfaction, customer trust, price 
competitiveness

NEW GLOBAL MARKETS

Rising wealth in developing 
markets, Decelerating growth in 
developed markets, Response 
to changing customer needs 
and expectations

DIFFERENTIATED 
MERCHANDISE

Product quality, 
Sustainable products, Price 
competitiveness, Supply 
chain quality

EFFICIENT OPERATIONS

Capable employees, 
Motivated employees, Efficient 
and safe operations

ENVIRONMENTAL 
DETERIORATION AND 
RESOURCE SCARCITY

Climate change, Energy 
shortages, Water shortages, 
Materials shortages
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Sales Gross profit

2016 Performance Highlights

Operating profit Net profit

A top-tier global retailer leading change and 
innovation in the world of retail 

(K-IFRS consolidated basis, in KRW billions) 

(K-IFRS consolidated basis, in KRW billions) 

(K-IFRS consolidated basis, in KRW billions) 

(K-IFRS consolidated basis, in KRW billions) 

Revenues by Business Division 
(Based on K-IFRS and consolidated financial statements) (in KRW billions)

8,763
2014

8,911
2015

9,330
2016

9,330

1,188
2014

854
2015

940
2016

940

616
2014

(346)
2015

247
2016

247

28,100
2014

29,128
2015

29,526
2016

29,526

8,030(27.2%)

Total

29,526

8,201(27.8%)

3,939(13.3%)

897(3.0%)

3,704(12.5%)

2,189(7.4%)

779(2.7%)

1,787(6.1%)

Department Stores

Discount Stores

Finance

Consumer Electronics

Home Shopping

Convenience Stores

Supermarkets

Others (Cinema, H&B etc.)
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Number of Orders

62,056
2015

175,614
2016

Sales
 (in KRW millions)

6,012
2015

17,434
2016

Smart Pick ResultsOnline/Mobile Sales Growth
(in KRW 100 millions)

SMART PICK 
RESULTS

Lotte Department Stores

5,982

7,460 

9,086 

5,069

13,442

14,155

Lotte Mart

963 
1,387 

1,358
1,092

2,321 2,479

Lotte Super

369
677 

210232

601 

887

Himart

72 

414 

1,640

893

965

2,054

  Online excluding mobile       Mobile

ONLINE / MOBILE 
SALES GROWTH

2015 2015 2015 20152016 2016 2016 2016

17,329

19,575

Total

2015 2016

(Lotte Department Store)
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 Department Stores / Outlets / Shopping Malls

 Discount Stores

KOREA

VIETNAM

INDONESIA

Balikpapan

Banjarmasin
Makassar

Java

Central Java Denpasar

Jakarta Surabaya

Hanoi
Phan Thiet

Ho Chi Minh

9,965

45

47

Medan

Pekanbaru

Palembang

RUSSIA

CHINA

1Moscow

133

Jilin

Liaoning
Shenyang

Beijing Tianjin
Shandong

Jiangsu
Shanghai

Weihai
Chengdu

35

Lotte Shopping is adding to its reputation as a 
world-class retail operator by expanding into 
such countries as Russia, China, Vietnam, and 
Indonesia. Wherever we go, we take great care 
to take the tastes, customs, needs, and prefer-
ences of the local inhabitants into account.

Global 
Network
Bringing the future of 
retail to the world

1 133
RUSSIA CHIINA

Department Stores 1 Department Stores

Discount Stores

Cinemas

Home Shopping

5

115

12

1

9,965 45 47
KOREA

KOREA

VIETNAM

VIETNAM

INDONESIA

INDONESIA

Department Stores

Discount Stores

Department Stores

Outlets

Discount Stores

Consumer Electronics

Supermarkets

H&B Stores

Cinemas

Convenience Stores

Home Shopping

351)

20

1202)

457

5773)

87

112

8,5564)

1

Department Stores

Discount Stores

Cinemas

Home Shopping

2

13

29

1

1

46

1) Includes two Young Plaza stores and two stores that are managed under contract
2) Includes five VIC Mart stores
3) Stores operated directly + stores operated under contract + merchant stores  
4) Lotte Super (leased, owned, and merchant stores) + Market 999 (leased and merchant stores) + CS Retail (leased and owned stores)
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We will grow into a top-tier 
global retailer that is respected 
around the world. This includes 
a commitment to qualitative 
growth, open and honest 
management, and carrying 
out all our corporate social 
responsibilities.

Dear Customers and Shareholders:

In 2016, Lotte Shopping continued with its commitment to 
change and innovation as a means of ensuring qualitative 
growth and enhancing our business foundations for the fu-
ture. We are proud of our success, even in the face of ongoing 
economic difficulties and a prolonged recession.

One of our most important focuses was on securing new 
growth engines, including our online operations and our om-
nichannel services. We also opened a large number of new 
stores and diversified our business operations both at home 
and abroad. In addition, we made significant improvements 
to the efficiency of our management. As always, though, we 
placed our highest priority on gaining the trust and respect 
of our customers, our shareholders, and the communities in 
which we operate. Openness and honesty have always been 
part of Lotte Shopping’s DNA.

I would be very remiss if I did not take time to tell you how 
much I appreciate the heartfelt support that you have always 
shown us. Now, I would like to tell you about our perfor-
mance in 2016 and our plans for this year. 

2016 REVIEW
Pursued change and innovation while strengthening key 
competencies
South Korea’s retail industry suffered from slow growth in 
2016. Some of the factors facing it included rising household 
debt, lowered consumer confidence, intensifying competition 
among different business channels, and accelerating gov-
ernment regulations. Despite this, Lotte Shopping’s online 
shopping, convenience stores, and health and beauty stores 
enjoyed steady growth, mostly due to changes in purchasing 
patterns—especially an increasing number of single-person 
households. These changes were reflected in a definite trend 
towards small-quantity, neighborhood-based purchases and 
value-conscious shopping.

Lotte Shopping responded to these challenges in a number 
of ways. First, we opened a large number of new stores both 
at home and abroad. We also renovated our existing stores 
and upgraded our product mix. In addition, we added to our 
menu of online operations with a special focus on mobile 
shopping, and significantly bolstered our omnichannel ser-
vices that link our online and offline channels. As a result, 
we recorded a net profit of KRW 246.9 billion over the year, 
while sales edged up to KRW 29,526.4 billion and our operat-
ing profit surged by 10.1% to KRW 940.4 billion. 

CEO’s 
Message

2016 SALES 

(in KRW billions)

2016 OPERATING PROFIT

(in KRW billions)

29,526 

940



LOTTE SHOPPING ANNUAL REPORT 2016

38 39

We will strengthen our department store segment by opening 
new outlets and specialty store operations and entering into 
new businesses to gain an early edge in new markets. We will 
also add to our omnichannel services by leveraging state-of-
the-art ICT technologies. 
In the hypermarket sector, we will continue to transform our 
stores into lifestyle suggestion businesses, augment the com-
petitiveness of our products, make improvements to our on-
line channel, and increase our profits from our international 
operations.

In the area of financial services, we will develop new busi-
nesses, diversify our revenue structure, retain our leadership 
in the FinTech and mobile markets, and continue making our 
products more competitive. In the retail consumer electronics 
segment, we will accelerate our transformation into a home 
and lifestyle retailer by renovating our existing stores, wid-
ening our range of products, improving our profits, and aug-
menting our online business.

Our efforts in the convenience store sector will include 
strengthening our marketing efforts and differentiating the 
layouts of our store, our product mix, and our prices. In 
the supermarket area, we will keep on opening new stores, 
augment our online operations, and focus on securing new 
growth engines like the Premium Food Market. In the home 
shopping segment, we will enhance the competitiveness of 
our products and our online operations and improve our lev-
el of customer engagement and the quality of our broadcasts.

Our multiplex cinema operations will also undergo signifi-
cant improvements. This will include adding more screens 
both at home and abroad, and improving our profitability. In 
the health and beauty store sector, we will continue opening 
new stores, developing new store formats, and upgrading the 
attractiveness of our offerings. 

One of our most important priorities will lie in fulfilling our 
corporate social responsibilities. This will include taking ev-
ery possible opportunity to grow in tandem with our business 
partners, the communities in which we operate, and small- 
and medium-sized merchants. We will also take steps to help 
resolve broad societal issues, like child abuse and South Ko-
rea’s low birthrate. In addition, we will continue with our 
commitment to improving the environment and creating 
pleasing and comfortable shopping experiences for our cus-
tomers and safe workplaces for our employees. 

Lotte will celebrate its fiftieth anniversary this year. In antic-
ipation of another successful half-century of operations, the 
company announced its vision of being a "Lifetime Value Cre-
ator", along with its rebirth as a "New Lotte". This of course 
includes our pledge to continue offering customers the very 
best value in everything they purchase from us.

number of services needed to assist people in their daily lives. 
The popularity of our ready-to-eat meals and Seven Café cof-
fee kiosks continued unabated, and we introduced more PB 
products to satisfy the modisumer (“modify + consumer)" 
trend.

In the supermarket segment, we were able to retain our num-
ber one industry ranking in terms of both sales and number 
of stores while also strengthening our foundations for sus-
tainable growth. This included developing a wide range of 
PB products, advancing into the premium food market, and 
enhancing our online operations. 
We also enjoyed healthy growth in the home shopping seg-
ment in terms of both transaction volume and earnings. We 
did this by making our products more competitive, devel-
oping new broadcasting formats, and increasing our online 
operations.  

Sales and revenue both increased over 2016 in our cinema 
multiplex segment as well. These very satisfying results were 
led by the opening of a number of new cinemas, aggressive 
marketing campaigns, and growth in our international op-
erations. We opened nine new Lotte Cinema multiplexes in 
South Korea, two in China, and seven in Vietnam. 

In the health and beauty segment, we continued with our 
strategy of aggressive new store openings, adding a grand to-
tal of thirty-six. In addition, we strengthened our foundations 
for future growth by introducing a wide variety of new prod-
ucts and enhancing our systems and infrastructures.

2017 OUTLOOK AND PLANS
Preparing for a challenging future
The South Korean retail industry will continue to see slow 
growth in 2017, except for a few channels like convenience 
stores and online shopping. Consumer spending will con-
tinue to shrink due to the prolonged economic slump and 
uncertain domestic and international situations. In order to 
deal with these difficult conditions, the industry will focus on 
securing new growth drivers in line with the Fourth Indus-
trial Revolution. It will also continue responding to changes 
in the market, people’s consumption trends, and our society 
as a whole.

Lotte Shopping will augment its leadership in the industry 
through a series of well-developed business plans and care-
ful and orderly investments. We will strengthen our online 
operations, including our mobile shopping and omnichannel 
services, by opening new stores and renovating our existing 
ones. In addition, we will continue to solidify our foundations 
for future growth. This will be done by identifying new busi-
ness opportunities to meet the challenge of such mega-trends 
as the conversion of online and offline channels, accelerating 
demographic shifts, and an ICT-based Fourth Industrial Rev-
olution. 

Kang, Hee Tae
President and CEO

As a well-known leader in the world of retail, Lotte Shopping 
will take a number of steps to prepare itself for future growth. 
Besides enhancing our competitiveness through high-qual-
ity management, we will continue to seize the initiative in 
terms of both change and innovation within the Lotte Group 
by putting strict compliance and CSR management practices 
into operation. 

Just as Lotte Shopping has been able to deal with a wide vari-
ety of crises and ordeals in the past, we will also learn to cope 
with today's difficult management conditions, growing into a 
trusted and respected retailer all around the world. We appre-
ciate your unwavering support as we take on new challenges 
to create the future of retail. 

Thank you. 

In 2017, we will continue to 
gain the trust and respect of our 
customers around the world by 
dealing difficult conditions and 
making a new leap forward.

In 2016, we continued 
strengthening our key 
competencies and improving 
our profitability by pursuing 
change and innovation.

We also engaged in a number of reforms in our department 
store segment, including opening Lotte Mall Jinju and Lotte 
Outlets Uijeongbu and Namak. In terms of our specialty store 
business, we opened three new elCUBE stores selling well-
known fashion and lifestyle brands. We also advanced into 
a number of new businesses, such as off-price stores that of-
fer overseas brands at very low prices, and the nation’s first 
clothing rental outlet. 

We opened four new hypermarkets, in Baegot in Siheung, Eu-
npyeong in Seoul, Namak in Jeollanam-do Province, and in 
Jinju, and strengthened our operations in the lifestyle sugges-
tion business. In addition, we enhanced our online business 
operations by renovating Lotte Mart Internet Shopping Mall 
and building a delivery center for online purchases in Gim-
po. We also opened two new stores in Vietnam and five in 
Indonesia.

In the financial services segment, we launched new credit 
card products that reflect current consumption trends. They 
included Sticker Card, a deferred-payment transportation 
card that can be attached to the back of a cell phone, and 
Quick Order, a lifestyle-oriented, online-to-offline platform 
service. We also strengthened our FinTech business by estab-
lishing the Mobile SUM Bank, which combines retail and fi-
nancing services.

In the consumer electronics retail segment, we opened nine-
teen new Himart stores and continued its transition to a 
"home and lifestyle shop". We also enjoyed significant growth 
in our online operations, and entered a number of new busi-
nesses, such as our innovative Home Care service.

In terms of our convenience store operations, we continued 
opening new stores and making improvements to poorly per-
forming ones. In addition, we continued our healthy record 
of growth by making our product mix more competitive, de-
veloping a wide variety of store formats, and increasing the 
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Helping the company 
to operate in a manner 
that is open, transparent, 
accountable, and responsible 

Lotte Shopping’s Board of Directors is composed of eleven 
Directors, all of whom were elected at an annual General 
Shareholders’ Meeting. Six of them were from outside the 
company. New outside directors elected at the General Share-
holders’ Meeting in March 2017 included two inside directors 
(Mr. Kang, Hee Tae and Mr. Yoon, Jong Min), and one outside 
director (Mr. Lee, Jae Sool). The board also has three sub-com-
mittees that are tasked with ensuring corporate transparency 
and professionalism. They are the Audit Committee, the Out-
side Director Nominating Committee, and the Internal Trans-
action Committee.  

Board of 
Directors

Name

Shin, Dong Bin

Lee, Won Joon

Kang, Hee Tae

Yoon, Jong Min

Shin, Young Ja

Position

Chairman, Lotte Group

Vice Chairman, Lotte Group

President and CEO, Lotte Shopping

President and Head of HR Team,  

Management Innovation Office, Lotte Group

Chairman, Lotte Samdong Foundation

Board Responsibilities

Inside Director

Representative Director, Board Chair, Outside Director Nomination 

Committee Chair, Internal Transaction Committee Chair

Representative Director

Inside Director

Inside Director

Inside Directors

Lee, Jae Sool 
Auditor, PyeongChang Olympic 
Organizing Committee

Bahk, Jae Wan
President, Hansun Foundation for 
Peace and Prosperity on  
the Korean Peninsula 

Shin, Dong Bin
Chairman, Lotte Group

Shin, Young Ja
Chairman, Lotte Foundation 

Kang, Hee Tae
President and CEO, Lotte Shopping

Lee, Won Joon
Vice Chairman Lotte Group

Yoon, Jong Min
President and Head of HR Team,  
Management Innovation Office,  
Lotte Group

Kwak, Su Keun
Professor, Seoul National University 
Business School 

Kang, Hye Ryun
Professor, Ewha School of Business, 
Ewha Womans University 

Lee, Jae Won
Lawyer, Yulchon LLC 

Name

Kwak, Su Keun

Kang, Hye Ryun

Lee, Jae Won

Bahk, Jae Wan

Choi, Seok Young

Lee, Jae Sool

Position

Professor, Seoul National University Business School 

Professor, Ewha School of Business, Ewha Womans University 

Lawyer, Yulchon LLC

President, Hansun Foundation for Peace and Prosperity on

the Korean Peninsula

Advisory Group Member, UN Central Emergency Response Fund

Auditor, PyeongChang Olympic Organizing Committee

Board Responsibilities

Audit Committee

Outside Director Nominating Committee

Internal Transaction Committee

Audit Committee Chair, Outside Director Nomination Committee

Audit Committee

Internal Transaction Committee

Outside Directors

Choi, Seok Young
Advisory Group Member, 
UN Central Emergency Response Fund 



LOTTE SHOPPING ANNUAL REPORT 2016

42 43

Committed to transparent and 
accountable decision-making  
and corporate governance

Governance Ethical Management
Committed to open, honest,  
and principled management  
with integrity

BOARD OPERATIONS AND DECISION-MAKING
Lotte Shopping’s Board of Directors makes decisions regard-
ing matters set forth in the company’s articles of incorpora-
tion, issues assigned to it at the General Shareholders’ Meet-
ing, and matters relating to the company’s basic managerial 
policies and operations. It met eleven times in 2016.

BOARD COMMITTEE OPERATION
The board operates three committees: the Audit Committee, 
the Outside Director Nominating Committee, and the Inter-
nal Transaction Committee. The composition, authority, and 
operation of each committee are determined by rules and reg-
ulations determined by the Board.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Composed of three outside directors, this committee is re-
sponsible for auditing the company’s accounts and oper-
ations. It also provides oversight and support to assist the 
company’s executive team manage its operations properly. It 
met six times in 2016.

OUTSIDE DIRECTOR NOMINATING COMMITTEE
Composed of one inside and two outside directors, this com-
mittee is tasked with ensuring management transparency by 
recommending Outside Director candidates to represent the 
interests of shareholders. The committee met twice in 2016.

INTERNAL TRANSACTION COMMITTEE
Composed of one inside and two outside directors, this com-
mittee is tasked with ensuring that the company engages in 
free and fair trade practices. It also reviews and approves all 
contracts negotiated between the company’s affiliates. The 
committee met five times in 2016.

ETHICAL MANAGEMENT SYSTEM
The goal of Lotte Shopping’s ethical management system is to 
ensure that ethical management practices occur in all facets of 
its operations. To this end, we have set up an ethical manage-
ment website and a mobile hotline to make it easier for our 
employees to report violations of our ethics guidelines among 
their colleagues and our partner companies. In addition, each 
Lotte Department Store has an Ethical Management Officer 
whose job is to receive feedback from our employees. We also 
operate a “Clean Center” where employees can report and re-
turn gifts, money, or other valuables received from any of our 
partner firms.

REDUCING UNETHICAL ACTIVITIES
Lotte Shopping taken a number of initiatives aimed at reducing 
unethical behavior among our employees. For example, every 
one of our employees must sign a pledge promising to act in an 
open, honest, and ethical manner. In addition, they must wear 
business cards detailing Lotte’s commitment to ethical behav-
ior. There is also a “Clean Card” corporate credit card equipped 
with safeguards to prevent inappropriate use. 

In addition to holding seminars and training sessions in ethical 
behavior for our executives and employees, we share our com-
mitment with our partner companies through a “Clean Lotte” 
campaign. We also offer programs dealing with verbal and 
physical abuse, gender equality, and the behavior of company 
representatives at social gatherings.

PROMOTING ETHICAL BEHAVIOR EXTERNALLY
Our work to encourage a culture of ethical management ex-
tends to our society in general. This includes being a member 
of the Fair Players Club, a public- and private-sector anti-cor-
ruption project hosted by the Global Compact Network Korea. 
In addition, we provided ethical management campaign mate-
rials to the series of Business Ethics Briefs produced by the An-
ti-Corruption and Civil Rights Commission of Korea. We also 
operate a “Clean Sharing” program, encouraging our employ-
ees to donate any fees they receive for outside speaking en-
gagements, and any other indirect gains they make during the 
course of their business activities to a charity of their choice.

FOCUSING ON INTEGRITY
Lotte Shopping’s ethical management rules and regulations 
ensure that all its employees act in a transparent, ethical and 
principled manner. They are expected to behave with honesty, 
fairness, and sincerity. 

The company has also established “The Lotte 10 Command-
ments of Ethical Conduct”, which outlines basic standards of 
employee conduct in the workplace. Our employees can also 
access webtoons and a guidebook with detailed guidelines re-
garding specific employment situations. The company takes a 
two-track approach of investigation and prevention through 
its Ethics Improvement Team and its Ethics Planning Team. 
Both of them operate under the aegis of the Ethical Manage-
ment Division.

The Lotte 10 Commandments of Ethical Conduct

01. I will always put customer safety first.

02. I will not disclose company-related information.

03. I will not play golf with any members of Lotte Shopping’s partner firms. 

04. I will not socialize with any members of Lotte Shopping’s partner firms. 

05. I will pay the bill when dining with members of Lotte Shopping’s partner firm.

06. I will not accept gifts of money, valuables, entertainment, or other favors. 

07. I will avoid nepotism, influence peddling, and all requests for favors.

08. I will not use company funds for my own use.

09. I will not abuse or harass other people, either verbally, sexually, or physically.

10. I will not give gifts my fellow employees or accept gifts from them.

Board of Directors

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Three Outside Directors

Oversees corporate accounts and 
operations

OUTSIDE DIRECTOR NOMINATING 
COMMITTEE

One Inside Director and  
two Outside Directors

Screens and recommends candidates for 
Outside Director positions

INTERNAL TRANSACTION 
COMMITTEE

One Inside Director and  
two Outside Directors

Monitors and reviews internal 
transactions between related parties  
and affiliates

Composition of Board 
(as of the end of 2016)
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3	Launched Lovely Family Campaign
Lotte Department Store signed an agreement 
with the Ministry of Gender Equality and Fam-
ilies in May celebrating the start of the “Happy 
Families and Good Parenting” campaign. The 
campaign will feature a variety of activities 
with families and love as its main themes, 
including supporting women who have had 
their careers interrupted by childbirth or for 
other reasons, encouraging a higher birth-rate, 
and reducing the incidence of child abuse.  
Lotte Shopping contributed to the campaign 
by hosting a country-wide competition solic-
iting ideas for it. The company held a program 
of training in literature for career-interrupted 
women, created rest areas for expectant 
mothers in its Yeongdeungpo branch, and 
installed elevators for pregnant women and 
nursing mothers in all of its stores.  

5	� Lotte Super opened Lotte Premium 
Food Market

Lotte Super opened its first Lotte Premium 
Food Market in Dogok-dong, Seoul in June. 
Lotte Premium Food Market is a popular pre-
mium-level supermarket that stocks over 7,000 
products from both South Korea and abroad.

6	� Lotte Department Store opened Salon 
de Charlotte rental store

Lotte Department Store opened a Salon de 
Charlotte at its main branch in July. Salon de 
Charlotte is a Korean-style apparel store that 
rents out high-priced fashion brands at very af-
fordable prices. Its major items include dresses, 
suits, and handbags. In addition to suggesting 
designs that suit customers’ styles. Its major 
items include dresses, suits, and handbags.   

7	� Launched Choice L Gold, a premium 
integrated brand

Lotte Group's retail and food affiliates launched 
Choice L Gold, an integrated brand of premi-
um-level PB products, in July. Lotte Mart, Lotte 
Super, and 7-Eleven participated in the devel-
opment of the concept, while the company’s 
food-based affiliates, such as Lotte Confection-
ery, Lotte Food, and Lotte Chilsung and their 
partner companies, were put in charge of actu-
al production. Its first offerings included instant 
noodles, pastas, and Greek-style yogurt. 

In 2016, Lotte Shopping dedicated itself to 
providing its customers with even more pleasant 
and convenient shopping experiences. We led the 
development of South Korea’s retail industry by 
introducing a host of new businesses channels, 
products, and services, creating new customer 
values and enriching people's lives in the process.

3.  M A R C H 5.  M AY

6.  J U N E

7.  J U LY

4	� Lotte Mart opened online delivery 
center in Gimpo

Lotte Mart opened a 30, 869 square meter 
delivery center for online purchases in May. A 
full five stories high, it includes shipping and 
receiving and logistics facilities, storage areas 
for agricultural products, and product cleaning 
areas. It can handle over 10,000 items and 
make up to seven deliveries a day. 

2016
News Highlights

Providing our 
customers with 
pleasant and 
convenient shopping 
experiences by  
developing a variety 
of innovative store 
formats and retail 
channels

1 

2 

1	Opened elCUBE specialty store
Lotte Department Store opened its first 
elCUBE specialty store targeting twentysome-
things near the Hongik University Subway 
Station. elCUBE is a sort of mini-department 
store, selling a mix of products specially 
designed to mirror the demographic charac-
teristics of its location. It features more than 
twenty fashion, food, and beverage brands. 

2	� Signed MOU regarding the 
development of futuristic smart 
department store

Lotte Department Store signed an MOU with 
SK Telecom in March regarding the develop-
ment of a futuristic smart department store. 
The company is also planning to develop 
experiential stores and facilities by coupling 
its vast expertise in the retail sector with SK 
Telecom’s wide experience in advanced ICT 
technologies. As a first step, the company 
introduced a Smart Table at the food stores 
at its branch in Bundang. Opened in July, 
the table provides customers with shopping 
information on a large touch screen. Smart 
Lockers are also available for customers need 
to keep their products cold. The company also 
began to provide a Smart Shopper service in 
October, allowing people to do their buying 
without a shopping cart or basket. 

7 
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8	� Opened Lotte Outlets Uijeongbu
Lotte Department Store opened Lotte Outlets 
Uijeongbu in August. Located on a 13,223㎡ 

site with nine stories above ground and five 
below, it combines a downtown outlet with 
a factory outlet on a single floor. There is also 
a LOTTE TOPS multi-shop that sells popular 
overseas brands at discount prices, as well as a 
Lotte Cinema and a variety of restaurants. 

9	� Opened Lotte Mall Jinju
Lotte Department Store opened the Lotte Mall 
Jinju in September. The largest multi-purpose 
shopping mall in the western area of Gyeo-
ngsangnam-do Province, it is situated on a 
100,000㎡site with seven stories above ground 
and four below. It includes a Lotte Outlets 
and Shopping Mall, a Lotte Mart, and a Lotte 
Cinema, along with discount stores selling 
domestic and overseas brands, a LOTTE TOPS 
multi-shop offering popular overseas brands, 
and a large variety of brand stores targeting 
the younger crowd. Tired shoppers can relax at 
a variety of rest areas, while hungry ones can 
fill their palates at a host of well-known food 
and beverage establishments. 

10	� Lotte Super opened Lotte Fresh 
Gwangju Center

Lotte Super opened the Lotte Fresh Gwangju 
Center in October. Since its use is reserved for 
online deliveries only, customers living in or 
near the city of Gwangju can expect to have 
their orders delivered in a maximum of three 
hours. It also includes specialized facilities tar-
geting small households that offer agro-fishery 
products, home meal replacements, and side 
dishes and late-night snacks.

11	� Opened Lotte.vn Open Market in 
Vietnam

Lotte Department Store and other Lotte af-
filiates, including Lotte Mart and Lotte Home 
Shopping, joined together to enter Vietnam’s 
online market by opening a Lotte.vn open 
market in October. Its product mix includes 
clothing, cosmetics, food, and a wide range of 
daily necessities. A delivery service is available 
in the area of Ho Chi Minh city.

12	� Opened Lotte Outlets Namak
Lotte Department Store opened a Lotte Out-
lets Namak downtown outlet in Namak New 
Town, Muan-gun, Jeollanam-do Province, in 
December. The largest multipurpose shopping 
mall in southwestern South Korea, it includes 
a Lotte Mart, a Toys “R” Us, and a Himart, along 
with more than 170 domestic and overseas 
brand stores. Some of its other features include 
food and beverage stores, a rooftop park, a 
Tower Kids Café, and a wide selection of rest 
areas.

8.  AU G U S T  

9 .  S E P T E M B E R
Building futuristic 

smart department 

stores and logistics 

infrastructures with 

a focus on online 

delivery centers and 

cutting-edge ICT 

technologies

10 

9

12

10.  O C TO B E R
12.  D E C E M B E R

10.  O C TO B E R

Awards and Accolades

Ranked first in department store category 
in National Customer Service Index (NCSI) 
survey for the fourteenth consecutive year

Ranked first in department store and 
premium outlet categories in Korea 
Customer Satisfaction Index (KCSI) survey

Ranked first in the department store 
category in the Korea Brand Power 
Index (K-BPI) survey for the nineteenth 
consecutive year

Ranked first in department store category in 2016 Korean
Standard Service Quality Index (KS-SQI) survey 

Grand Prize: Received Grand
Prize in department store 
category at 2016 Korea  
SNS Awards

Ranked first in the National Brand 
Competitiveness  

Index (NBCI) survey for  
the fourteenth consecutive year

consecutive 
years 

Lotte Shopping placed seventh in the department store category 
in Forbes Magazine’s Global 2000 ranking of leading global public companies. 

We also ranked first in a number of quality and satisfaction index surveys 
both at home and abroad.

SNS

14

7th

Ranked seventh  
in the department store 

category in Forbes 
Magazine’s Global 2000 

ranking of leading global 
public companies
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Under international financial reporting 

standards, we have a total of seventy-four 

consolidated subsidiaries and affiliates, 

including twenty-three in South Korea 

and fifty-one overseas. The 2016 business 

overview and consolidated statements 

that follow cover the twenty-three South 

Korean subsidiaries, including Lotte Card 

and Himart. In order to be considered 

a subsidiary, an affiliate must either 

account for more than 10% of the holding 

company’s total assets or have had total 

assets worth over KRW 75 billion in the 

previous fiscal year.

Lotte Card Co., Ltd.

LOTTE Himart Co., Ltd.

Korea Seven Co., Ltd.

Woori Home Shopping & Television Co., Ltd.

Lotte Suwon Station Shopping Town Co., Ltd.

Lotte Songdo Shopping Town Co., Ltd.

Lotte.Com Inc

eB Card Co., Ltd.

Lotte Members Co., Ltd

CS Mart Co., Ltd.

Buy the Way Inc.

Lotte Department Store Masan Co., Ltd.

Lotte PS Net

NCF Co., Ltd.

Gyeonggi Smartcard Co., Ltd.

Incheon Smartcard Co., Ltd.

Lotte Gimhae Development Co., Ltd.

Lotte Ulsan Development Co., Ltd.

The 10th Supreme

The 9th Supreme

The 8th Supreme

The 7th Supreme

The 6th Supreme

Lotte Shopping Holdings (Hong Kong) Co., Limited

Swift Harvest Ltd. and 8 subsidiaries

Lotte Properties (Chengdu) Limited

LOTTE VIETNAM SHOPPING JOINT STOCK COMPANY

LOTTE PROPERTIES (CHENGDU) HK LIMITED

LOTTE SHOPPING HOLDINGS (SINGAPORE) PTE. LTD.

PT. LOTTE SHOPPING INDONESIA

LHSC Limited

PT. LOTTE MART INDONESIA

LOTTE MART COMPANY LIMITED

Lotte Holdings Hong Kong Ltd.

Hai Thanh - Kotobuki Joint Venture Company

LOTTE HOTEL & RETAIL VIETNAM PTE. LTD.

Lotte Mart China Co., Ltd. 

Lotte Cinema Vietnam Co., Ltd.

Liaoning LOTTE Mart Co., Ltd.

Lotte Department Store (Chengdu) Co., Ltd.

Lotte Department Store (Shenyang) Co., Ltd.

PT. LOTTE Shopping Avenue Indonesia

Lotte Mart (Chongqing) Commercial Co., Ltd.

Huai An Full Faith Properties Limited

Nantong Yaodong Properties Limited

Lotte Shopping Plaza Vietnam Co., Ltd.

Lotte International Department Store (Weihai) Co., Ltd.

Lotte Business Management (Tianjin) Co., Ltd.

LOTTE MART (CHENGDU) COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED

LOTTE DEPARTMENT STORE (TIANJIN) CO., LTD.

Nantong Branda Properties Limited and 1 subsidiary

Jilin LOTTE Mart Co., Ltd.

Qingdao LOTTE Mart Commercial Co., Ltd.

Hong Fung Ltd. and 2 subsidiaries

Lucky Pai Ltd. and 8 subsidiaries

Nantong Fine Spring Properties Limited

Nantong Jinyou Properties Limited and 1 subsidiary

Nantong Fine Port Properties Limited and 1 subsidiary

Nantong Fuhua Properties Limited and 1 subsidiary

Nantong Fortune Trade Properties Limited

Lotte (China) Management Co., Ltd.

Lotte Members China

Zhuji Decheng Properties Limited

Lotte Datviet Homeshopping Co., Ltd.

Nantong Meili Properties Limited

PT. Lotte Members Indonesia

Lotte Members Vietnam Co., Ltd.

LOTTEMART C&C INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

Lotte Shopping Business Management (Hong Kong) Limited

Lotte Shopping India Private Limited

Lotte Cinema Hong Kong Co., Limited

LOTTE E-Commerce Vietnam Co., Ltd

LOTTE PROPERTIES HANOI (SINGAPORE) PTE. LTD.

LOTTE PROPERTIES HANOI CO., LTD.

Key Susidiares and Affliates

Business Division

CONSOLIDATED AFFILIATES DOMESTIC

OVERSEAS

Lotte Department Store
Lotte Mart
Lotte Card
Himart
7-Eleven
Lotte Super
Lotte Home Shopping
Lotte Cinema
LOHB’s

50 
52
54 
56
58
60
61
62 
63

48~
63
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Greater Performances

Lotte Shopping is 
committed to making 
its customers’ 
shopping experiences 
as pleasant and 
convenient as 
possible by 
providing them 
with a wide choice 
of online and offline 
channels.
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Lotte 
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2016 REVIEW
South Korea’s department store industry faced challeng-
es from reduced consumption due to protracted economic 
slowdowns and rising household debt, and changes in cus-
tomers’ purchasing patterns.

Lotte Department Store made a number of efforts to deal 
with this situation. They included adding new stores in re-
tail areas experiencing healthy growth, upgrading our cus-
tomer-centered merchandising and marketing processes, 
and making improvements to our online businesses and 
omnichannel services. As a result of these measures, we 
posted sales of KRW 8,030.0 billion in 2016, quite similar to 
the previous year’s figure. Operating profit surged by 19.7% 
year-on-year to KRW 614.4 billion.

We opened a large number of new stores, with a particular 
focus on growth channels like multipur-
pose shopping malls and outlets. Opened 
in September, Lotte Mall Jinju includes 
Lotte Outlets Jinju and Shopping Mall, 
a Lotte Mart, and a Lotte Cinema, along 
with a large variety of food and beverage 
facilities, enabling visitors to enjoy a pleas-
ant malling culture in the western part of 
Gyeongsangnam-do Province.

We also opened Lotte Outlets Uijeongbu 
in August, and Lotte Outlets Namak in 
December, providing value-conscious cus-
tomers with popular brands from South 
Korea and abroad at reasonable prices. In addition, elCUBE, 
our new retail channel mini-department store, opened three 
stores near Hongik University, Ewha Womans University, 
and Garosugil in Seoul. 

We advanced into a number of new businesses areas, such 
as open- price stores and rental shops. For example, LOTTE 
TOPS, which is both an OPS and a select shop offering pop-
ular overseas brands at highly discounted prices, can be 
found at our Lotte Mall and Lotte Premium Outlets, while 
Salon de Charlotte, a fashion rental store that leases dresses, 
suits, and handbags at very affordable prices, is located at 
the Main Branch of Lotte Department Store. 

In order to boost our customers’ shopping convenience, 
we introduced more omnichannel services, and launched 
new services with cutting-edge ICT technologies, following 
Smart Pick, Smart Coupon Book, Smart Beacon, and Cross 
Pick. They included Smart Shopper, allowing shoppers to 
have their purchases delivered to their homes by using a 
terminal and a self-serve checkout without a shopping cart 
or basket; Smart Table, providing customers with shopping 
information on a large touch screen; and Smart Locker for 

customers who need to keep their products cold. The com-
pany also began to provide 3D Virtual Fitting service, en-
abling shoppers to check out how they’ll look in the clothing 
they’re interested in through Digital Mirror and smart-
phones, without having to actually put them on; and Foot 
Scanner, measuring the shoe size of a customer in 3D.

The main focus of our overseas operations was on enhancing 
our competitiveness and adding new revenue bases. Rev-
enues in China, Russia, Vietnam, and Indonesia increased 
steadily, while our operational efficiency also continued to 
improve through cost savings and other efforts. 

2017 OUTLOOK AND PLANS
South Korea’s department store sector should continue to 
face slow growth due mainly to lower consumer confidence, 
changes in purchasing patterns, and intensifying compe-

tition. Lotte Department Store will counter 
these trends by pursuing new store openings, 
with a focus on outlets and specialty and 
off-price stores. In addition, we will deploy 
AI and other cutting-edge ICT technologies 
to tailor our services to our customers’ real 
needs. Overseas, we will start operating three 
shopping mall stores under contract in Shang-
hai through a joint venture with CITIC Group 
of China. We will also increase our presence 
in Vietnam and Indonesia by opening new 
stores and improving our efficiency.

LOTTE DEPARTMENT STORE
Business Review

M A J O R  B U S I N E S S E S

LOTTE DEPARTMENT STORE

AVENUEL/YOUNG PLAZA

LOTTE OUTLETS/LOTTE PREMIUM OUTLETS

ELLOTTE PREMIUM ONLINE MALL

ELCUBE SPECIALTY STORE

*** in KRW billionsSALES

2016	 8,030

2015	 8,033

2014	 8,044

O P E R AT I N G  P R O F I T

2016	 614

2015	 513

2014	 603

*** in KRW billions

8,030

614

No. of Stores  
in South Korea

No. of Overseas 
Stores

Russia - 1     China  - 5
Indonesia - 1     Vietnam - 2

Lotte Department Store - 35*
Outlet  - 20 

* Includes two Young Plaza stores and three that are 
managed under contract

(K-IFRS consolidated basis)

(K-IFRS consolidated basis)

LOTTE SHOPPING
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2016 REVIEW
The South Korean hypermarket industry experienced low 
growth in 2016. Factors leading to this situation included a 
reduced level of consumer confidence, a steadily increasing 
number of governmental regulations, changes in consumers’ 
shopping and purchasing patterns toward small-quantity on-
line shopping, and intensifying competition among a growing 
range of retail channels. Although Lotte Mart took a number 
of steps to counter these challenges, sales edged down from 
the previous year to KRW 8,200.7 billion. Our operating profit 
also decreased, mainly due to higher rental costs, investments 
in processes to ensure the quality of our fresh food offerings, 
lower overall sales, and restructuring activities.

We continued our expansion strategy by opening four new 
hypermarkets in Baegot in Siheung, Eunpyeong in Seoul, Na-
mak in Jeollanam-do Province, and in Jinju. Another dramatic 
step that we took was to innovate our business structure to 
assist us in evolving into the themed life-
style suggestion business. These changes 
took places at fifteen of our hypermarket 
locations. 
 
We also opened a number of specialty 
stores, including TE clothing shops, BONA 
FIT lingerie stores, LOLOTETE for infant 
and kids wear, and a kitchen appliance 
outlet called Room x Home Kitchen. In 
addition, we continued with our compa-
ny-wide innovation activities. For instance, 
we reformed our buying structure to be 
future-oriented, and built a system-based 
data management structure.

Lotte Mart Mall reinforced its website to make it even more 
customer-friendly. Some of the changes that we instituted 
include information on lifestyle trends on SNS, a forum for 
both new and tried-and-true recipes, and customizing our 
range of products to better accommodate consumer tastes and 
preferences. We also opened a delivery center in Gimpo for 
products that have been ordered online. It provides same-day 
deliveries six or seven times a day to the western part of the 
Seoul metropolitan area. 

We made improvements to our omnichannel services, with 
our Smart Beacon, Smart Pick, Drive & Pick, and Smart Scan 
services being followed by a Gas Station Pickup Service. 
We took account of changes in consumption patterns by in-
creasing our investments in new value innovation products, 
such as easy-to-prepare meals for small households. We also 
worked with Lotte Group food and retail affiliates to develop 
the Choice L Gold premium integrated food brand.

Overseas, we focused on enhancing our operational efficien-
cy to increase sales and improve profits. In China, we tried 
to secure new sources of growth, and improve the efficien-

cy of our existing businesses. In Southeast Asia, we opened 
five hypermarkets in Indonesia and two in Vietnam, while 
strengthening our foundations for growth by enhancing the 
competitiveness of our products and introducing a series of 
innovative customer services. 

2017 OUTLOOK AND PLANS
South Korea’s hypermarket industry will probably experience 
more stagnant growth in 2017, mainly due to reduced consum-
er confidence, increasing household debt, and greater compe-
tition among retail channels. In response to this challenging 
environment, Lotte Mart will accelerate its transition into a 
mobile-based specialized merchandiser.

Some of the steps that we will take in this regard include reno-
vating our stores to provide more space for the development of 
specialized zones, continuing with our innovations to improve 
the quality of our fresh foods, adding to our global sourcing 

operations and our lineup of private brand 
merchandise, and increasing our number 
of omnichannel services. Our international 
operations will benefit from the addition of 
new growth engines (especially in the online 
sector) and improvements to the efficient 
operation of our existing ones. 

*** in KRW billionsSALES

2016	 8,200

2015	 8,324

2014	 8,209

*** in KRW billionsO P E R AT I N G  P R O F I T

(97)	 2016	

(61)	 2015	

	 2014	 67

8,200

(97)

LOTTE MART
Business Review

M A J O R  B U S I N E S S E S

LOTTE MART

VIC MARKET

LOTTE MART MALL ONLINE MALL

SPECIALTY STORES

Lotte Mart  - 115     Vic Market - 5

China  - 115     Indonesia  - 46
Vietnam  - 13

(K-IFRS consolidated basis)

(K-IFRS consolidated basis)

No. of Stores  
in South Korea

No. of Overseas 
Stores

52

LOTTE SHOPPING
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2016 REVIEW
Credit card billings in South Korea rose by 11.8% from the 
year before to reach KRW 770 trillion, despite the ongoing ef-
fects of a protracted economic downturn. These results were 
mainly due to the increasing popularity of online shopping 
and micropayments. On the other hand, the country’s credit 
card industry faced challenges from reduced merchant fees, 
lower interest rates for financial products, and increased 
competition. Lotte Card dealt with these challenges through 
aggressive marketing and by entering into a variety of new 
business areas.

Lotte Card’s credit card billings climbed by 8.4% year-on-
year to KRW 61,315.8 billion following a rise in the number of 
individual cardholders. Operating profit amounted to KRW 
137.8 billion. Our number of cardholders increased by 3.0% to 
7,470,000, helping us to maintain our number five position in 
the industry, with a market share of 8.8%.

One of the primary reasons for this healthy 
growth was the introduction of a number 
of new card products. For example, we 
were the first credit card industry player 
in South Korea to launch Sticker Card, a 
deferred-payment transportation card that 
can be attached to the back of a cell phone. 
It can be also used for making payments at 
both online and offline stores. 

We also launched Quick Order, a lifestyle- 
oriented, online-to-offline platform that 
provides customers with a wide array of services, such as 
discount coupons, additional rewards points, price discounts, 
payments for airline tickets, courier deliveries, chauffeur ser-
vices, and T map Taxi. We diversified our revenue models 
and enhanced how we market ourselves to our customers. 
In addition to reorganizing our entire card product portfolio, 
we added new ways of paying communications, apartment 
management, and utility bills.

We rebuilt our online and mobile websites and launched a big 
data-based, one-on-one “individualized service” program. 
Our independently developed “Knock” big data service plat-
form enables us to recommend the most suitable types of ben-
efits and products for each of our members in real time. 

In addition, we increased our involvement with the FinTech 
business. In collaboration with the BNK Financial Group, 
we established Mobile SUM Bank, an internet-based finan-
cial institution that combines retail and financing services, 
and launched a SUM Bank Card that gives users a 2% to 5% 
cash-back reward for every purchase made with it. Another 
advantage of SUM Bank is its convenience, since customers 
can make loan payments and pay for their installment savings 
using “L. POINT” Lotte points. 

We became the first financial institution in South Korea to 
introduce a blockchain-based fingerprint verification system, 
significantly enhancing customer convenience and security. It 
also allows users to make Lotte App Card payments and ac-
cess Smart Lotte app more easily.

2017 OUTLOOK AND PLANS
South Korea’s credit card industry is expected to face increas-
ing competition in 2017 in terms of mid-interest rate loans, mo-
bile platforms, and the FinTech market. Some of the reasons for 
this include an anticipated reduction in personal consumption 
and an increasing risk of credit card defaults due to a high lev-
el of household debt. Lotte Card will attempt to counter this 
situation by entering into new types of businesses and diver-
sifying its revenue structure by increasing mobile-based loans 
and revolving credit.  

We also intend to gain an early edge in the 
area of wearable, biometrics-based, near- 
field communications payments market to 
ensure our leadership in the FinTech and 
mobile-based markets. In addition, we are 
planning to expand our cardholder base and 
enhance customer convenience by issuing 
a Mobile Lotte Card. We will continue to 
enhance the competitiveness of our finan-
cial products by means of big data and by 
strengthening our risk management pro-
cesses.

C R E D I T  C A R D  B I L L I N G S

2016	 61,316

2015	 56,551

2014	 53,484

*** in KRW billionsO P E R AT I N G  P R O F I T  

2016	 138

2015	 166

2014	 203

61,316

138

LOTTE CARD
Business Review

*** in KRW billions

No. of Cardholders

Market Share

7,470,000

9.1%

(K-IFRS consolidated basis)
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2016 REVIEW
The South Korean consumer electronics market experienced 
slow growth in 2016 due to ongoing consumer resistance, in 
which sales of both mobile communications services and de-
vices and large home appliances continued to shrink. Himart 
dealt with this situation by widening its range of products, 
strengthening its online shopping and omnichannel services, 
and enhancing its marketing activities. 

These steps helped us to record sales of KRW 3,939.4 billion, 
up 1.1% over the year. This was largely due to steady increas-
es in sales of home appliances and other household items, 
along with a high rate of growth in terms of air conditioner, 
online shopping mall, and omnichannel sales. Our operating 
profit surged by 9% to KRW 174.5 billion.

We continued with our transition into a “home and lifestyle 
shop”. Our focus was on improving the 
operational efficiency and competitiveness 
of our bricks-and-mortar stores, as well 
as continuously renovating them. We also 
opened nineteen new stores, bringing our 
total to 457.

Another strategy that we undertook to 
draw more customers and add to our 
profitability was to diversify our prod-
uct range. We launched a wide variety of 
PB products and introduced more global 
brands, ranging from large home appli-
ances to smaller items and more general 
types of merchandise. Some of the internationally-known 
brands whose products we imported included Aqua, Whirl-
pool, Kitchenaid, American Standard, InterDesign, Guzzini, 
and Jeseph Joseph. 

We also experienced very healthy growth in our online oper-
ations. Our Himart Shopping Mall increased the number of 
items it carried to approximately 40,000. We combined this 
with a program of same-day deliveries and installations, sig-
nificantly adding to customer satisfaction and convenience. 
Our omnichannel services, like Smart Pick, Smart Beacon, and 
Omni Sales, were also expanded. 

Our Smart Pick service was augmented with our new Cross 
Pick program, allowing customers who had ordered prod-
ucts online to pick them up at any 7-Eleven or Himart stores 
across the country. We extended our Omni Sales service to 
all our stores across the country, giving more customers the 
convenience of ordering products that are not in stock at our 
bricks-and-mortar stores from the Himart Shopping Mall in-
stead. Taken together, these efforts helped to boost our online 
sales totals by 112.8% from the year before. We also expanded 
our business territories, launching a Home Care kitchen and 
bedding cleaning service. 

2017 OUTLOOK AND PLANS
The South Korean consumer electronics market is anticipated 
to gradually emerge from the slow growth it has been experi-
encing in the second half of 2017. Demand for new home ap-
pliances, such as clothes dryers, will likely increase. A similar 
result is expected for mobile devices. Demand for cost-effective 
items should be also on the rise due to the increasing polariza-
tion of the market. 

Himart will continue improving its earnings by diversifying its 
product mix and increasing its selection of PB and high-profit 
products. We will also focus on developing different store for-
mats and making them more efficient, and enhance our omni-
channel services and online operations, including our mobile 
businesses. We will introduce online channel-only products 
and logistics centers, and expand the Omni Zone to all our 
stores. Our new Home Care service will be expanded to help 

build our image as a true home and lifestyle 
retailer. 

HIMART
Business Review

S A L E S  

2016	 3,939

2015	 3,896

2014	 3,754

*** in KRW billions

*** in KRW billionsO P E R AT I N G  P R O F I T  

2016	 175

2015	 160

2014	 144

3,939

175
(K-IFRS consolidated basis)

(K-IFRS consolidated basis)

No. of Stores

Market Share

457

47.0%
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2016 REVIEW
Although South Korea’s retail industry experienced sluggish 
growth in overall terms, its convenience store sector enjoyed 
growth in excess of 16% from the previous year, with a total 
market value of more than KRW 18 trillion. This impressive 
rate of growth was partly attributable to changes in con-
sumption patterns due to a rise in the number of one-person 
households in the country. Another factor was an increasingly 
positive view on the part of consumers of the nature and ne-
cessity of convenience stores. As a result, convenience stores 
are evolving into more generalized shopping venues, provid-
ing a wide range of products and services needed for people’s 
daily lives.

In 2016, 7-Eleven focused on profit-oriented, qualitative 
growth instead of mere quantitative growth in response to 
intensifying competition within the industry. We particularly 
strived to increase our earnings by manag-
ing our stores more efficiently and making 
improvements to poorly performing ones. 
As a result, sales grew by 11.7% over the 
year to KRW 3,704.2 billion, while operat-
ing profit rose by 8.4% to KRW 49.5 billion. 

Our main focus in 2016 was to continue 
developing “mega-hit” PB products that 
would mesh with the “modisumer (modi-
fy + consumer)” trend in which consumers 
recreate products to suit their own tastes. 
These products included Dongwon Tuna 
Ramen, combining tuna with ramen, and 
Yogurt Jelly, combining yogurt with jelly. 

We launched Choice L Gold, a premium PB brand, and intro-
duced a variety of products in collaboration with other Lotte 
food and retail affiliates, such as Hyeri Dosirak ready-to-eat 
meals. Our Seven Café coffee kiosks continued to be very 
popular among value-conscious customers. The total number 
of Seven Café stores grew to more than 4,200, selling 120,000 
cups of coffee a day. 

We also continued to diversify our omnichannel services. In 
addition to our already-operating online payment and Smart 
Beacon services, we launched our Cross Pick service, which 
allows customers to pick up merchandise purchased from 
Lotte Department Store, Himart, and other Lotte online shop-
ping malls at any 7-Eleven convenience stores. 
In addition, we carried out a number of activities that ben-
efited both 7-Eleven and our large number of store owners. 
They included a “Happiness Charging Concert,” creating a 
“7-Eleven Hall of Fame,” and presenting awards to thirty-six 
long-term store owners.

2017 OUTLOOK AND PLANS
Himart is anticipating that the South Korean consumer elec-
tronics market will gradually emerge from the slow growth 
it has been experiencing in the second half of 2017. Demand 
for new home appliances, such as clothes dryers and high-lev-
el kitchen appliances, will likely increase. A similar result is 
expected for mobile devices. Demand for cost-effective items 
should be also on the rise due to the increasing polarization of 
the market. 

Himart’s operating strategy for 2017 is to continue improving 
its earnings by diversifying its product mix and increasing its 
selection of PB and high-profit products, including well-known 
international brands. We will also focus on developing differ-
ent store formats and making them more efficient. In addition, 
we will enhance our omnichannel services and online opera-
tions, including our mobile businesses. We will also introduce 

online channel-only products and logistics 
centers, as well as expanding the Omni Zone 
to all our stores. Our new Home Care service 
will be expanded to help build our image as 
a true home and lifestyle retailer. 

S A L E S

2016	 3,704

2015	 3,315

2014	 2,686

*** in KRW billions

*** in KRW billionsO P E R AT I N G  P R O F I T

2016	 50

2015	 46

2014	 38

3,704

50

7-ELEVEN
Business Review

(K-IFRS consolidated basis)

(K-IFRS consolidated basis)

No. of Stores  
in South Korea

Market Share

8,556

26.6%
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2016 REVIEW
The South Korean home shopping industry experienced stag-
nant growth in 2016. This was mainly due to reduced consum-
er demand, smaller audiences for TV shopping, and increased 
competition, following a prolonged economic slowdown and 
steadily-increasing household debt. Home shopping compa-
nies endeavored to deal with this challenging environment 
by securing new growth drivers including online and T-Com-
merce businesses, PB brands, and overseas markets. 

Lotte Home Shopping enhanced the competitiveness of its 
products by ensuring that its offerings mirrored the nature of 
the medium on which they were being sold, including on TV, 
the Internet, or through mobile devices and T-Commerce. In 
addition, we added to our range of licensed brands and pro-
prietary products, and developed a number of new broadcast-
ing formats to raise our audience levels, including offering 
omni-items and producing “themed” programs. These steps 
enabled us to up our total transaction volume by 2.3% year-
on-year to KRW 3,056.4 billion. Our operating profit rose by 
7.6% to KRW 80.9 billion, while our Internet shopping volume 
surged by 22.7%, led by an increase in mobile shopping sales. 

The popularity of our Lotte OneTV home shopping service 
also grew, thanks in large part to the introduction of exciting 
new exclusive products and the advent of two-way commu-
nications with customers through our Baro TV, Lotte Home 
Shopping, and Lotte One-TV apps. We also reinforced our 
omnichannel services linking TV with Internet shopping 
malls, T-Commerce, and offline PR centers, by opening the 
Studio Shop, a new-concept experiential space, at Lotte Pre-
mium Outlets Icheon and Lotte Premium Outlets Paju. An-
other step that we took was to continue developing products 
on the basis of rational consumption trends, launching new 
PB brands, and upgrading other ones. In addition, we intro-
duced the LBL (Life Better Life) luxury clothing brand to com-
plement our existing lines from GEORGES RECH, CHANTY, 
and Daniel Hechter. 

2017 OUTLOOK AND PLANS
The South Korean home shopping industry is expected to re-
main in the doldrums in 2017, due to continuing consumer re-
sistance, the advent of new and more popular types of sales 
channels, intensifying competition, and changes in govern-
mental policies. However, we believe that our online business 
will continue to grow, mostly due to the increasing popularity 
of mobile shopping. 

Lotte Home Shopping will respond to these challenges by mak-
ing further improvements to its TV home shopping business. 
This will include adding more premium home appliances, 
kitchen and bathroom remodeling products, and highly prof-
itable premium PB brands. We will also take steps to enhance 
our online and mobile shopping businesses, by introducing 
distinguished products, simplifying payment methods, and 
increasing mobile events. In addition, we will carry out more 
promotions linked to our offline channels and offer more prod-
ucts and services appealing to younger shoppers. 

LOTTE HOME SHOPPING
Business Review

2016 REVIEW
South Korea’s super-supermarket industry faced sluggish 
growth in 2016 due to reduced consumer demand, a pro-
longed economic slump, increasing governmental regulations 
regarding store openings and opening hours, and intensifying 
competition. Lotte Super took a number of steps to deal with 
this situation. They included renovating our existing stores 
and opening new ones, introducing products that mirror new 
consumption trends, improving the efficiency of our outlets, 
and reducing our costs. 

We operated a total of 577 new stores by the end of the year, 
maintaining our number one industry ranking for both sales 
and number of outlets. We were also the first player in the 
industry to enter the high-level food market, opening two 
Lotte Premium Food Market stores stocked with more than 
7,000 food items from South Korea and abroad. In addition, 
we built a Lotte Fresh Center delivery facility in Gwangju. 
Restricting itself to the delivery of products that customers 
have ordered online, it was a first for the industry to open in 
the provincial regions of South Korea. 

We continued to focus our product development efforts on 
fresh foods and private brand products, becoming the first 
player in the industry to sell South Korean Beef T-bone steaks 
and smoked salmon. In addition, we launched our Choice L 
Gold premium brand in collaboration with other Lotte food 
and retail affiliates, offering a wide variety of products includ-
ing instant ramen, pastas, and Greek yogurt. We also installed 
an EV recharging station at Lotte Super Yongin to serve the 
burgeoning number of electric vehicles in the country.

We increased our number of omnichannel services. Follow-
ing Smart Pick, Drive & Pick, and Smart Beacon, we launched 
Rental Smart Pick by combining our Smart Pick and car rental 
services.  

2017 OUTLOOK AND PLANS
We are forecasting that domestic consumption will continue to 
slow in 2017, largely due to reduced consumer confidence and 
increasing household debt. The SSM industry is expected to 
respond to changes in consumption trends due to a continu-
ing rise in the number of one- and two-person households and 
a rapidly aging society. Lotte Super will strengthen its online 
businesses, including mobile operations. We will also make 
changes to our strategy for opening new stores by ensuring 
that they mirror the demographics of the districts in which 
they are located. In addition, we will focus on our franchise 
business, and enter into new growth engines like the Premium 
Food Market.

LOTTE SUPER
Business Review

S A L E S

2016	 2,195

2015	 2,184

2014	 2,178

*** in KRW billions

*** in KRW billionsO P E R AT I N G  P R O F I T

2016	 0.1

2015	 11

2014	 14

2,195

0.1
(K-IFRS consolidated basis)

(K-IFRS consolidated basis)

TOTA L  T R A N S AC T I O N  V O LU M E

2016	 3,056

2015	 2,988

2014	 2,805

*** in KRW billions

*** in KRW billionsO P E R AT I N G  P R O F I T

2016	 81

2015	 72

2014	 98

3,056

81

(K-IFRS consolidated basis)

Major Businesses

TV and Web TV Shopping / Catalogue Shopping
Mobile Shopping / Online Shopping / T-Commerce

Major Businesses

Lotte Mart / Lotte My Super / Lotte Market 999
e-Super online mall / Lotte Premium Food Market 
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2016 REVIEW
South Korea’s retail industry suffered from a sharply reduced 
level of consumer confidence as a result of a protracted eco-
nomic slowdown and intensifying competition. Despite this, 
the health and beauty sector, or H & B, continued to enjoy 
healthy returns as consumers’ purchasing patterns contin-
ued to change in favor of neighborhood-based shopping, 
small-quantity purchases, and value-conscious consumption. 
This prompted H & B stores to focus on developing their ge-
neric brands and providing distinguished shopping services, 
gaining high popularity among women in their twenties and 
thirties. Total market volume exceeded KRW 1.3 trillion, while 
the total number of stores passed the one thousand mark. This 
resulted in increasingly keen competition within the industry, 
as well as among related retail channels.  

LOHB’s has opened a large number of new stores since its es-
tablishment in 2013. In 2016, we opened thirty-six new ones, 
bringing our grand total to eight-seven. Our ongoing history 
of store expansion, assiduous brand development, and ag-
gressive marketing resulted in sales that grew by 99% over 
the year to reach KRW 92.3 billion.

Since we are a relative latecomer to the H & B store sector, 
we decided to adopt a strategy of clearly differentiating our 
merchandise as a means of strengthening our business foun-
dations. We introduced a wide variety of health care, beauty 
care, and health food brands made in South Korea and abroad, 
including such exclusive brands as BOURJOIS, Clinique, Dar-
phin, Cha Hong, Huxley, PAULA’S CHOICE, Dolly Wink, and 
PAYOT. In addition, we developed a number of cost-effective 
PB products to satisfy the tastes of younger women, who form 
our major customer base.

We opened a mobile app in July. This allowed us to provide 
current and prospective customers with up-to-date product 
information and other services, including beauty tips, cou-
pons, rewards points, and information about upcoming spe-
cial events. In October, we entered the Lotte.com website, en-

abling customers to purchase our products at online shopping 
malls. In addition, we renovated our stores and changed our 
formats to create a more pleasant shopping environment and 
mirror the demographics of each store’s location. We also fo-
cused on making improvements to our internal systems and 
infrastructures by building a number of state-of-the-art oper-
ating systems and relocating the Osan logistics center. 

2017 OUTLOOK AND PLANS
South Korea’s retail industry will likely face more stagnant 
growth leading to intensifying competition among different 
retail channels in 2017. Despite this, growth within the H & B 
sector is anticipated to be fairly healthy. We will enhance our 
competitiveness by differentiating our products and strength-
ening our PB and exclusive brand products. In addition, we 
will increase our presence within mobile shopping malls, by 
expanding our range of online-only and EB offerings, and car-
rying out both offline and online marketing campaigns. We 
will also innovate our store formats to reflect the demograph-
ics of each location, in addition to continuously opening new 
stores and revamping our customer services.

LOHB’S
Business Review

2016 REVIEW
South Korea’s film industry enjoyed significant sales in-
creases in 2016, largely due to continuing growth within 
the secondary market, including videos and DVDs. Box of-
fice sales edged up by 1.6% from the previous year to reach 
KRW 1,743.2 billion, while the total number of moviegoers 
decreased by 0.1% to 217.02 million. This still meant that ev-
ery person in the country went to an average of 4.2 movies a 
year, making South Koreans the world’s most prolific movie 
watchers yet again. 

Lotte Cinema recorded KRW 690.7 billion in sales and KRW 
34.6 billion in operating profit in 2016, up 9.2% and 12.9% re-
spectively YoY. Most of this was due to the opening of new 
multiplex cinemas, aggressive marketing strategies, and 
growth in our overseas operations. We also opened nine new 
multiplexes in Seoul and the capital region, bringing our 
country-wide total to 112. Being South Korea’s sole distrib-
uter for Paramount Pictures was also a major plus for us, al-
lowing us to show such blockbuster films as “The Big Short,” 
“Star Trek Beyond,” and “Jack Reacher: Never Go Back”. 

We opened the Silk Road Theater, dedicated to showing Chi-
nese movies, inside the Lotte Cinema Lotte World Tower in 
Jamsil, Seoul. It is the first such facility of its kind in South 
Korea. In addition, we introduced new-concept omnichan-
nel services, including Baro Coupon, supplying discount 
coupons to customers just by tapping their cell phones, and 
Smart Order, enabling them to order snacks in advance on 
mobile platforms and pick them up without standing in line.
With regard to our international operations, we focused on 
adding to our stable of multiplexes and strengthening rela-
tionships with our local business partners, while improving 
our profitability by increasing our sales in the supplementary 
market. We now operate eleven multiplex cinemas in China, 
and another twenty-nine in Vietnam. 

2017 OUTLOOK AND PLANS
Although the film industry is expected to continue its growth 
worldwide in 2017, competition within it will also accelerate. 
To cope with this situation, Lotte Cinema will continue to open 
more cinemas in Seoul and the surrounding metropolitan area 
and in large complexes in tandem with other Lotte Group af-
filiates. 

We will also introduce more specialized theaters, strengthen 
our omnichannel services, and install new projection technol-
ogies. In addition, we will boost our profitability by increasing 
our revenues from concession stands and other supplementa-
ry operations. Another step that we will take is to add to our 
investments in movies. We will also hold major events in con-
junction with film releases by Paramount Pictures, increasing 
our synergies with our multiplex business as a result. With re-
gard to our international operations, we will enhance our film 
distribution business in Vietnam and other countries. 

LOTTE CINEMA
Business Review

87

S A L E S

2016	 691

2015	 662

2014	 610

*** in KRW billions

*** in KRW billionsO P E R AT I N G  P R O F I T

2016	 35

2015	 30

2014	 54

691

35
(K-IFRS consolidated basis)

(K-IFRS consolidated basis)

*** in KRW billionsO P E R AT I N G  P R O F I T

(22)	 2016	

(15)	 2015	

(22)

S A L E S

2016	 92

2015	 47

*** in KRW billions

92

(K-IFRS consolidated basis)

(K-IFRS consolidated basis)

No. of Stores
No. of Overseas Cinemas/Screens

11/82China     29/133Vietnam

No. of Domestic Cinemas/Screens

112/793
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LOTTE SHOPPING’S CSR 

Our commitment to sustainable management encompasses the economy,
environment, customers, society, ethics, employees, and partners. Among these,

we have selected four areas – the economy, society, ethics,
and environment – as the focus of our sustainability efforts.

Chaired by the CEO, our Sustainable Management Committee systematically
manages every aspect of sustainability. Our focus on creating shared value is

led by the CSR Team operating under the umbrella of
our marketing organization through the Office of External Collaboration.

The team works to ensure that all our corporate social responsibility activities 
achieve their full potential.

SUSTAINABLE MANAGEMENT FOCUS

We pursue continuous
economic growth.

We contribute to national
and local development through

systematic social
contribution activities.

We practice integrity in
management and create

a fair and impartial
corporate culture.

We actively protect  
the environment and

prevent climate change.

AIMING TO BE
A TOP GLOBAL 

RETAILER

Economy Society

EnvironmentEthics

Lotte Shopping’s CSR
Customer-Oriented Management
Environmental Management
Win-Win Partnerships
Social Contributions

65
66
68
70
72

64~
73

Lotte Shopping is 
committed to the 
growth of mutually 
beneficial values 
by faithfully 
fulfilling all of its 
corporate social 
responsibilities.

07

Greater Tomorrows
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Customer satisfaction
Lotte Shopping does its utmost to ensure that all its business 
processes include customer satisfaction as their first priority. 
In 2015, we introduced the Lotte Customer Satisfaction Index, 
or LCSI, and revamped our service evaluation system with 
a special focus on customer satisfaction. The LCSI calculates 
customer satisfaction levels at each of our stores in such cat-
egories as human services, customer contact point manage-
ment, products and marketing, and the overall shopping en-
vironment. The results are reflected in our evaluations of each 
store. They are a key factor in determining which improve-
ments are needed, and what they should be. 

Voice of customers 
Customer kudos and complaints are handled at the customer 
service centers of every Lotte Shopping store. We use them 
to deal with any and all outstanding issues and problems as 
quickly as we can. Customers’ opinions that have been re-
ceived on our online Voice of the Customer (VOC) system are 
transferred to the employee in charge of them in real time so 
they can be replied to within a three-hour window. We also 
share the opinions of our customers with our employees and 
partner companies so we can work together to establish im-
provement plans. Some of the other efforts that we take to add 
to the quality of our customer services include asking them to 
participate in consumer panels, making improvements to our 
VOC system, holding employee service improvement compe-
titions, and providing customers with a single-point service 
area.

Employee training programs 
Lotte Shopping’s employee training programs are based on 
the specifications needed to fulfill each job, guaranteeing that 
all of our workers are able to provide customers with the very 
highest level of service. In 2016, our employees participated 
in two training classes: “Pro-Sales Training,” which enhanced 
their abilities in such areas as sales, product knowledge, and 
customer responses, and “Pro-Image Training,” which assist-
ed them in projecting a positive workplace image. We are also 
planning to strengthen our youth employment programs. 
This will be done by signing MOUs with local colleges and 
universities, helping us to increase our number of high-cal-
iber service personnel. We will develop a Lotte Department 
Store VIP Specialists’ Course to select students with high 
grades and offer them training so they can be hired to take 
exclusive charge of our VIP customers. 

High-level customer services
Lotte Department Store demonstrated its commitment to 
high-level customer services by carrying out a “Greeting 
Campaign” and a “Smile Campaign”. The goal of both cam-
paigns was to project an image of extra warmth and welcom-
ing toward our customers. VIP customers are also provided 
with a wide variety of custom-tailored services, including a 
one-on-one concierge service. VVIP customers can also take 

1

advantage of a LENITH service, enjoying such additional 
benefits as valet parking, invitations to cultural events, and 
the exclusive use of VIP lounges at the company’s overseas 
department stores. 

Protecting customers’ personal information
Lotte Shopping is exerting every effort to protect the personal 
information (PI) of its customers from unauthorized disclo-
sure. For example, we have instituted a strict program of PI 
handling policies. In addition, we have obtained ISO 27001 
Information Security Management System and Korea Internet 
& Security Agency ISMS certifications to ensure that our PI 
security management system is second to none in the world. 
Our state-of-the-art security system includes an electronic 
content management system, a separate network for handling 
personal customer information, a software management sys-
tem, and a document encryption solution. We also carry out 
regular employee training programs.

Ensuring food safety and health  
Lotte Shopping goes to great lengths to ensure the safety and 
freshness of all its food items. They include suspending or 
restricting the sale of products that have a high likelihood of 
developing bacteria that can lead to food poisoning. In addi-
tion to carrying out regular in-store inspections and others 
conducted by the Lotte Safety Center, we operate a number of 
training programs for our employees. 

Keeping stores safe and accident-free
Lotte Shopping’s safety management policies require that all 
its facilities undergo safety inspections every three months. 
They cover our sales floor and back-office facilities, fire sup-
pression facilities, gas-related facilities, escalators and ele-
vators, construction sites, and hazardous materials. We also 
monitor the air quality of our stores and parking lots on a 
regular basis. In addition, we offer our employees training in 
such areas as how to prepare for earthquakes and terrorist 
attacks. We also maintain a 24/7 security system, including 
security patrols and strict access 

Enriching customer’s lives 
through distinguished services, 
stringent safety and security 
practices, and innovative 
business processes

Customer Centered 
Management

First
Ranked first in Department Store category in 
2016 National Customer Service Index (NCSI) 

survey for the fourteenth consecutive yea

First
Ranked first in Department Store category 

in 2016 Korean Standard Service Quality Index 
(KS-SQI) survey 

➊ Service Academy training for new employees
➋ Overseas store customer service training
➌ Sanitary inspections

➊ ➋ ➌
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2
Environmental 
Management

Lotte Shopping works hand-
in-hand with its customers 
to help keep the global 
environment clean and 
healthy. Our efforts include 
eco-friendly campaigns and  
a wide range of environmental 
protection activities.

Green Lotte and our environmental management policies 
Lotte Shopping has established a six-point environmental 
management policy to help protect the environment and pro-
mote eco-friendly, sustainable growth. Our “Green Lotte” mot-
to reflects this commitment to environmental management and 
our keen desire to raise people’s awareness of the importance 
of environmental values and the need to develop a culture of 
eco-friendly consumption. Our “Green Lotte” environmental 
management media productions always include two charac-
ters: “Saeromi”, which signifies a tree leaf and its new growth, 
and “Haemi”, a representation of the sun that is necessary to 
make the leaf grow into the future. 

Green Stores and Green Purchasing
We are always adding to our number of Lotte Department and 
Lotte Mart green stores, with an eventual goal of making all 
of them 100% environmentally friendly. This also leads to a 
reduction in our environmental quality improvement charges. 
Green Stores, which are designated by the Ministry of Envi-
ronment and Korea Environmental Industry & Technology 
Institute, refer to retail outlets that have made significant con-
tributions to a culture of eco-friendly consumption by means 
of environmentally friendly facilities, products, environmental 
awareness campaigns, and similar efforts.

As part of this commitment to the environment, we have made 
green purchasing one of our highest priorities. This involves 
signing a voluntary agreement regarding green purchasing 
with the Ministry of Environment. Whenever we purchase 
such materials as paper and other office supplies, for instance, 
we always try to buy ones that are free of environmentally 
harmful substances and have obtained an Eco-Label mark.

The Green Card Eco-Money Points Program
Lotte Department Store has been carrying out a Green Card Eco 
Money Points program since 2014 to promote the consumption 
of eco-friendly products. These cards are promotional credit 
cards that are jointly provided by the Ministry of Environment, 
retail operators, and product manufacturers. Whenever some-
one holding a Green Card purchases an eco-friendly product 
that has been certified by the Ministry of Environment, they 
earn Eco Money Points that are equivalent to between 1% and 
5% of the total purchase price. During special promotional pe-
riods in June and December, the 5% bonus increases to 25%. 
The points can then be redeemed for gift certificates at retail 
stores, or used in a variety of other ways.

Eco Shops
Lotte Department Store’s Eco Shops are eco-friendly multi-
shops located at its main and Jamsil branches. Working in tan-
dem with the Korea Green Foundation, they encourage custom-
ers to adopt a sustainable lifestyle by buying environmentally 
friendly products, such as clothing made with eco-friendly ma-
terials, kitchen utensils and bath supplies sourced from natural 
products, and other items made of recycled materials. The pro-
ceeds from these sales are then used to carry out a wide range 
of eco-friendly campaigns. 

The Environmental Doomsday Clock
Lotte Department Store installed an “environmental doomsday 
clock” in front of its main branch to raise people’s awareness 
of the importance of the natural world. The clock, which has 
been showing an ecological “doomsday time” since 2008, gives 
people a sense of the urgent need to protect the environment 
and preserve it for future generations. 

Growing Trees for a Better World
Lotte Mart has been carrying out a tree planting campaign to 
reduce the production of pollutants like yellow dust particu-
lates and lessen the volume of greenhouse gases. In July 2014, 
the company signed an MOU for a forest carbon offset program 
with the Ministry of Environment, the Korea Environmen-
tal Industry & Technology Institute, and Future Forests and 
helped to create a Green Forest for Carbon Offsets in Seoul. 
The company has developed three more such forests in the city 
since then, planting approximately 20,000 trees to date.

Hosting the Green Lotte Childrens’ Environmental Art Festival 
We have been sponsoring the Green Lotte Childrens’ Environ-
mental Art Festival, the largest of its kind in the industry, for 
the past thirty-seven years. Its goal is to make young people 
aware of the importance of a clean environment and the harm 
done by environmental pollution. A total of 15,153 children 
participated in the festival in 2016.

KRW 457 million

Value of Lotte Department Store Eco-Shop 
sales in 2016

15,153
Number of participants in Green Lotte 

Children’s Environmental Art Festival in 2016

➊ ➋ ➌  Green Lotte Childrens’ Environmental Art Festival

➊ ➋ ➌
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3
Win-Win 
Partnerships

Growing with partner 
companies by assisting them in 
stabilizing their management, 
helping them find new markets 
both at home and abroad, 
supporting them through 
training and education, and 
strengthening communications 
with them.

Providing partner companies with working capital  
Lotte Shopping has instituted a number of financial support 
programs to help its partner companies manage their finances 
more efficiently. Lotte Department Store operates a KRW 100 
billion Win-Win Growth Fund that provides interest-free loans 
of up to KRW 400 million per partner. There is also a KRW 105 
billion Shared Growth Fund that focuses on reducing the cost 
of borrowing from financial institutions. The company also of-
fers financial assistance to its partners in purchasing raw and 
subsidiary materials, and works with the Industrial Bank of 
Korea to provide them with lines of credit. Lotte Mart oper-
ates a KRW 90 billion Shared Growth Fund, and offers SMEs 
both direct and indirect financial assistance through a program 
called Family Loans. Lotte Super assists its partner companies 
through a KRW 23 billion Shared Growth Fund, interest-free 
advance payments, and other types of loans. 

Dream Plaza, ensuring mutually beneficial growth with SMEs
Lotte Department Store provide SMEs with a stable market for 
their goods through its chain of Dream Plazas, South Korea’s 
first-ever outlets dedicated solely to the sale of SME products. 
It opened the first one at its main branch in 2014 and another 
one at the Yeongdeungpo branch in 2016, and now operates a 
total of four. The other ones are located at the company’s main 
Busan and Jamsil branches. The company covers all the costs 
of their stores’ employees and interior furnishings. The compa-
ny also opened a Global Dream Plaza at its branch in Weihai, 
China in February 2017. It offers SMEs additional assistance 
in identifying new markets overseas by paying for their initial 
supply, transportation, customs clearance, and interior deco-
rating expenses. 

Helping SMEs identify overseas markets
Lotte Shopping has a number of support programs in place to 
help SMEs expand overseas. In 2016, for instance, Lotte De-
partment Store hosted five South Korean product fairs at its 
branches in Weihai, Shenyang, and Tianjin, China, giving its 
SME partners an expanded opportunity to impress overseas 
customers with the quality of their brands and products. Since 
all of the costs related to these fairs are covered by the compa-
ny, SMES are relieved of a variety of expenses, including cus-
toms clearances. Lotte Department Store also hosted Overseas 
Purchase Consultation meetings in Ho Chi Minh City and Ja-
karta to help its SME partners find new markets abroad. A total 
of 241 meetings were held. Attended by twenty partner com-
panies, they generated approximately USD 5 million worth of 
sales. In addition, the company opened a store selling products 
made by an SME brand called Ppippilong at its branch in Shen-
yang, and subsidized some of its expenses.

Lotte Mart helps SMEs find new overseas markets by selling 
their products at its K-HIT PLAZAS located in its branches in 
Kelapa Gading, Indonesia, Gongyixiqiao, China, and Tan Binh, 
Indonesia.

Offering compliance training to partner companies 
Lotte Department Store has been operating a RISK Compliance 
Training program since February 2016, allowing it to pass on its 
wide experience in the field of compliance management to its 
SME partners. The RISK acronym is an abbreviation of Labor 
Law (i.e., the RIGHT to work), Personal Information Protec-
tion Law (INFORMATION), the Food Sanitation Act (SANI-
TATION), and Intellectual Property Rights (KNOWLEDGE). 
The company provides its partners with monthly training ses-
sions conducted by lawyers with a broad range of experience 
in these areas, allowing them to fill in any blanks that might 
otherwise exist in their operations. 

Enhancing competitiveness through communications  
and education
Lotte Department Store has been enhancing communications 
with its partner companies through a “Healing Camp” pro-
gram since 2015. The camp provides employees of the com-
pany’s partners and buyers working for the company with an 
opportunity to share common experiences and resolve mutu-
al problems. The company also operates a Win-Win Growth 
Academy targeting employees of its partner companies. It of-
fers them both short- and long-term service and job training 
programs to sharpen their strengths and abilities.

Win-win growth websites 
Lotte Department Store, Lotte Mart, and Lotte Super all oper-
ate win-win growth websites to ensure closer communications 
with their business partners. In addition to providing SMEs 
with information on the nature and availability of financial and 
training programs, the websites offer them advice in such areas 
as merchandising and carrying out special events. They also 
provide SMEs with a channel for filing complaints about free 
and fair trade and ethical issues, and contain a FAQ page to 
help them get obtain the sort of practical and timely informa-
tion they all need. As a result of these efforts, Lotte Mart won 
first place in the Retail Industry category in the Win-Win Index 
Evaluations conducted by the Korea Commission for Corpo-
rate Partnership every year since 2011. Lotte Department Store 
received an “excellent” grade in 2015. 

KRW 88.5 billion

Value of Lotte Department Store’s financial 
support to partner companies in 2016

First
Lotte Mart ranked first in Win-Win Index 

Evaluations every year from 2011 to 2014

➊ Global Dream Plaza
➋ Overseas Purchasing Consultation Meeting
➌ Healing Camp for partner companies

➊ ➋ ➌

* Win-win growth websites
Lotte Department Store: https://buying.lotteshopping.com
Lotte Mart: http://winwin.lottemart.com/
Lotte Super: http://winwin.lottesuper.co.kr
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Social 
Contribution

Caring and sharing to help 
resolve social issues for a 
healthier and happier world

Helping the underprivileged
Lotte Department Store has been carrying out a “Lovely 
House” program to help renovate social assistance facilities 
serving children and seniors since 2014. The program is fund-
ed by a donation-matching campaign in which its employees 
contribute 1% of their salaries, which are then matched by the 
company. As of 2015, the program had completed 35 projects. 

In 2016, the company launched the Happiness of 10,000 Won 
Campaign, another matching grant program in which it match-
es monthly employee donations of KRW 10,000. One thousand 
employees participated in the campaign, raising KRW 180 mil-
lion and helping to improve fifty facilities.

New hope around the world
Lotte Shopping also carries out a number of international so-
cial contribution activities. Lotte Department Store, in tandem 
with Plan Korea, helps to build “Lotte Schools” for kindergar-
ten and elementary school children living in isolated regions 
of Vietnam. As of 2015, the company had completed four Lotte 
Schools, complete with educational equipment and materials. 
It also paid for the installation of a 20-ton rainwater harvesting 
and treatment system to provide potable water to people living 
in under-serviced areas near Hanoi and Ho Chi Minh City. In 
addition, it is planning to help install a 40-ton rainwater drink-
ing facility in Jakarta, Indonesia this May.

KRW 18.1 billion

Value of spending by Lotte Shopping on 
social contribution activities in 2016

KRW 180 million

Value of donations to Happiness of  
10,000 Won Campaign by  

Lotte Department Store in 2016

4

➊ School on Board
➋ Travel to enjoy the moon
➌ Happiness of 10,000 Won

➊ ➋ ➌

Lovely Family campaign 
In 2016, Lotte Department Store and the Ministry of Gender 
Equality and Families worked together to establish the “Love-
ly Family” campaign, to deal with such issues as child abuse 
and South Korea’s low birthrate. Lotte Department Store took 
a number of steps to fulfill its part of the campaign, includ-
ing installing elevators in all its stores to aid pregnant women 
and nursing mothers and hosting a country-wide competition 
asking for suggestions about how it should be run. Approxi-
mately one thousand people participated and suggested many 
different ideas, four of which were chosen by virtue of their 
excellence. The company also offers women whose careers 
have been interrupted an opportunity to become employed 
again through a training program in lecturing. In addition, it 
helps children grow into environmental leaders with the Lotte 
Department School on Board. The program offers elementary 
school students an opportunity to learn about the history and 
cultures of East Asia by traveling to China and Japan. During 
Chuseok (the South Korean Thanksgiving holiday), the com-
pany invites children from non-Korean families to watch the 
moon at Lotte World in Jamsil, Seoul.

Helping neighbors in need
Lotte Shopping also organizes volunteer clubs at its stores 
across the country. The clubs, whose members include store 
employees, the employees of our partner companies, and dedi-
cated customers, carry out a wide range of volunteer activities, 
such as helping people living in broken homes and sole-sup-
port senior citizens, and cleaning up the environment. They 
work in association with many organizations, such as local 
governments, NGOs, and social assistance facilities. 



LOTTE SHOPPING  ANNUAL REPORT 2016

74 75

Independent Auditor’s Report
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

75
76
78
79
81
84

74~
160

Lotte Shopping 
is committed 
to improving 
its operating 
performance and 
enhancing its 
financial soundness.

08

Financial Review

Independent 
Audutors’ Report
Based on a report originally issued in Korean

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial 
statements of Lotte Shopping Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries 
(the “Group”), which comprise the consolidated statements of 
financial position as at December 31, 2016 and 2015, the consol-
idated statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity 
and cash flows for the years then ended, and notes, comprising 
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explan-
atory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial 
Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presen-
tation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance 
with Korean International Financial Reporting Standards, and 
for such internal control as management determines is neces-
sary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial state-
ments that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 

Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consoli-
dated financial statements based on our audits.  We conducted 
our audits in accordance with Korean Standards on Auditing.  
Those standards require that we comply with ethical require-
ments and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements 
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evi-
dence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated 
financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on our 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material mis-
statement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error.  In making those risk assessments, we consid-

er internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair 
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order 
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circum-
stances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.  An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of 
the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suffi-
cient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present 
fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial posi-
tion of the Group as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 and its con-
solidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows 
for the years then ended in accordance with Korean Internation-
al Financial Reporting Standards.

Other matter
The procedures and practices utilized in the Republic of Korea 
to audit such consolidated financial statements may differ from 
those generally accepted and applied in other countries.

T H E  B O A R D  O F  D I R E C T O R S  A N D  S H A R E H O L D E R S
L O T T E  S H O P P I N G  C O . ,  LT D . :

This report is effective as of March 15, 2017, the audit report date.  Certain subsequent events or circumstances, which may occur between the audit report date and 
the time of reading this report, could have a material impact on the accompanying consolidated financial statements and notes thereto.  Accordingly, the readers of 
the audit report should understand that the above audit report has not been updated to reflect the impact of such subsequent events or circumstances, if any.

KPMG Samjong Accounting Corp.

Seoul, Korea

March 15, 2017
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Consolddated Statements of 
Financial Position

Lotte Shopping Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries
As of December 31, 2016 and 2015

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.

December 31, 2015

1,751,268

918,851

9,672,512

3,265,997

2,828

385,396

447

15,997,299

1,274,851

2,089,193

15,759,107

520,982

2,715,569

862,820

1,413,805

59,740

24,696,067

40,693,366

December 31, 2016

2,269,177

1,031,338

9,979,329

3,324,377

2,961

322,866

2,267

16,932,315

1,336,700

2,319,322

15,932,242

691,845

2,591,950

764,748

1,278,199

68,586

24,983,592

41,915,907

Notes

8,36,43

6,8,42,43

7,8,23,43

5,9

10

11

12,13

7,8,23,43

5,14,42

15

5,16

5,16

10

35

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Trade and other receivables

Other financial assets

Inventories

Income tax refund receivable

Other non-financial assets

Non-current assets held for sale

Total current assets

Investments in associates and joint ventures

Other financial assets

Property, plant and equipment, net

Investment property, net

Goodwill

Other intangible assets, net

Other non-financial assets

Deferred tax assets

Total non-current assets

Total assets

Korean won (millions)
December 31, 2015

4,267,139

5,465,907

533,789

134,348

217,574

60,359

1,239,537

11,918,653

9,816,438

279,552

81,291

1,365,668

8,086

32,458

103,378

11,686,871

23,605,524

157,454

3,910,752

269,118

(79,039)

11,893,663

95,502

16,247,450

840,392

17,087,842

40,693,366

December 31, 2016

5,058,613

5,785,352

626,345

153,972

221,442

68,755

1,471,476

13,385,955

9,424,335

260,489

68,907

1,342,334

10,736

40,024

119,085

11,265,910

24,651,865

157,454

3,910,752

269,118

(116,353)

11,995,610

87,953

16,304,534

959,508

17,264,042

41,915,907

Notes

8,18,40,42,43

8,17,42,43

8,23,43

19

20

21

8,18,40,42,43

8,23,43

22

35

19

20

21

1,24

24

25

26

27

28

Lotte Shopping Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries
As of December 31, 2016 and 2015

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Consolddated Statements of 
Financial Position, Continued

Liabilities

Borrowings and debentures, net of issuance costs

Trade and other payables

Other financial liabilities

Income tax payables

Unearned revenues

Provisions

Other non-financial liabilities

Total current liabilities

Borrowings and debentures, net of issuance costs

Other financial liabilities

Employee benefit liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities

Unearned revenues

Provisions

Other non-financial liabilities

 Total non-current liabilities

Total liabilities

Equity

Common stock of  ₩5,000 par value Authorized - 60,000,000 

shares Issued and outstanding – 31,490,892 shares

Capital surplus

Hybrid securities

Capital adjustments

Retained earnings

Accumulated other comprehensive income

Stockholders’ equity attributable to owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

Total equity

Total liabilities and equity

Korean won (millions)



LOTTE SHOPPING  ANNUAL REPORT 2016

78 79

Consolidated Statements of 
Changes in Equity

2015

29,127,655

(20,217,144)

8,910,511

(8,056,798)

853,713

81,556

(853,305)

270,969

(439,614)

6,917

(79,764)

(265,737)

(345,501)

(17,457)

(1,122)

5,390

(13,189)

(99,836)

38,141

(2,880)

12,131

23,568

(28,876)

(42,065)

(387,566)

(383,067)

37,566

(345,501)

(405,940)

18,374

(387,566)

(13,393)

(13,611)

2016

29,526,413

(20,196,281)

9,330,132

(8,389,771)

940,361

161,191

(495,179)

213,266

(391,627)

61,409

489,421

(242,546)

246,875

11,994

(1,847)

(3,548)

6,599

(15,689)

8,756

4,760

(16,228)

6,767

(11,634)

(5,035)

241,840

168,195

78,680

246,875

166,352

75,488

241,840

5,257

5,246

Notes

30,37,39,40,42

9,30,33,42

31,33,42

32,42

32,42

34

34

12,13

35

22

23

29

Lotte Shopping Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries
For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Sales

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Selling, general and administrative expenses

Operating profit

Other income

Other expenses

Finance income

Finance costs

Equity method income on investments in associates

Profit (loss) before income tax

Income tax expense

Profit (loss) for the year

Other comprehensive income (loss) :

Items that will never be reclassified to profit or loss:

Remeasurements of net defined benefit liabilities

Net change in equity of equity method investments

Income tax on items that will never be reclassified to profit or loss

Total items that will never be reclassified to profit or loss

Items that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss:

Net change in unrealized fair value of available-for-sale financial assets

Exchange rate differences on translating foreign operations

Effective portion of unrealized changes in fair values of 	

cash flow hedges

Net change in equity of equity method investments

Income tax on items that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss

Total items that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss

Other comprehensive income (loss) for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income (loss) for the year

Profit (loss) attributable to:

- Owners of the Company

- Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income (loss) attributable to:

- Owners of the Company

- Non-controlling interests

Earnings (loss) per share

- Basic earnings (loss) per share (in won)

- Diluted earnings (loss) per share (in won)

Korean won (millions, except for earnings per share)

Consolidated Statements of 
Comprehensive Income

Total equity

Accumulated 
other com-
prehensive 

income

Hybrid 
securities

Non-
controlling 

interests

Retained
earnings

Capital
surplus

Stockholders’ 
equity 

attributable 
to owners of 

the Company

Capital
adjustments

Capital
stock

Lotte Shopping Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries
For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015

Korean won (millions)

Balance at January 1, 2015

Total comprehensive income (loss) 

for the year:

Profit (loss) for the year

Other comprehensive income 

(loss):

Net change in unrealized fair 

value of available-for-sale 	

financial assets

Exchange differences on 	

translating foreign operations

Effective portion of unrealized 

changes in fair values of cash 

flow hedges

Remeasurements of net 	

defined benefit liabilities

Change in equity of equity 

method investments

Subtotal

Total comprehensive income 

(loss) for the year

Transactions with owners of the 

Company, recognized directly in 

equity:

Dividends to owners of the Com-

pany

Interests of hybrid securities

Changes in ownership 	

interests in subsidiaries

Changes in subsidiaries

Other

Subtotal

Balance at December 31, 2015

17,543,877

(345,501)

(72,333)

38,086

(1,185)

(12,457)

5,824

(42,065)

(387,566)

(73,915)

(12,721)

3,334

15,100

(267)

(68,469)

17,087,842

106,836

-

(54,980)

38,403

(1,314)

-

6,557

(11,334)

(11,334)

-

-

-

-

-

-

95,502

269,118

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

269,118

818,074

37,566

(17,353)

(317)

129

(1,649)

(2)

(19,192)

18,374

(14,810)

-

3,674

15,100

(20)

3,944

840,392

12,360,095

(383,067)

-

-

-

(10,808)

(731)

(11,539)

(394,606)

(59,105)

(12,721)

-

-

-

(71,826)

11,893,663

3,910,752

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

3,910,752

16,725,803

(383,067)

(54,980)

38,403

(1,314)

(10,808)

5,826

(22,873)

(405,940)

(59,105)

(12,721)

(340)

-

(247)

(72,413)

16,247,450

(78,452)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(340)

-

(247)

(587)

(79,039)

157,454

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

157,454

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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Consolidated Statements of 
Changes in Equity, Continued

Total equity

Accumulated 
other com-
prehensive 

income

Hybrid 
securities

Non-
controlling 

interests

Retained
earnings

Capital
surplus

Stockholders’ 
equity 

attributable 
to owners of 

the Company

Capital
adjustments

Capital
stock

Lotte Shopping Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries
For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Korean won (millions)

Balance at January 1, 2016

Total comprehensive income (loss) 

for the year:

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income 

(loss):

Net change in unrealized fair val-

ue of available-for-sale financial 

assets

Exchange differences on trans-

lating foreign operations

Effective portion of unrealized 

changes in fair values of cash 

flow hedges

Remeasurements of net defined 

benefit liabilities

Change in equity of equity 

method investments

Subtotal

Total comprehensive income 

(loss) for the year

Transactions with owners of the 

Company, recognized directly in 

equity:

Dividends to owners of the Com-

pany

Interests of hybrid securities

Changes in ownership interests 

in subsidiaries

Changes in subsidiaries

Other

Subtotal

Balance at December 31, 2016

17,087,842

246,875

(11,092)

8,641

5,592

8,309

(16,485)

(5,035)

241,840

(77,554)

(12,849)

36,021

177

(11,435)

(65,640)

17,264,042

95,502

-

(8,376)

10,172

5,386

-

(14,731)

(7,549)

(7,549)

-

-

-

-

-

-

87,953

269,118

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

269,118

840,392

78,680

(2,716)

(1,531)

206

894

(45)

(3,192)

75,488

(18,449)

-

36,314

177

25,586

43,628

959,508

11,893,663

168,195

-

-

-

7,415

(1,709)

5,706

173,901

(59,105)

(12,849)

-

-

-

(71,954)

11,995,610

3,910,752

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

3,910,752

16,247,450

168,195

(8,376)

10,172

5,386

7,415

(16,440)

(1,843)

166,352

(59,105)

(12,849)

(293)

-

(37,021)

(109,268)

16,304,534

(79,039)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(293)

-

(37,021)

(37,314)

(116,353)

157,454

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

157,454

2015

(345,501)

265,737

114,614

6,213

840,136

146,054

618,638

805

128,627

22,176

41,306

17,670

42,962

13,543

8,116

239

12,279

84,090

-

85,212

803

6,905

-

-

31

497,662

254,350

-

(21,847)

(120)

(2,295)

(699)

(8,445)

(98,196)

(91,007)

(28,270)

(12,595)

(3,821)

(794,062)

(92,885)

(8,364)

22,496

(107,972)

(687,511)

(86,365)

(72,037)

(49,089)

(153,320)

(38,716)

2016

246,875

242,546

123,069

17,660

835,967

137,198

201,523

184

97,427

162

7,404

73,528

(19,600)

15,616

-

19,996

1,673

42,741

5,233

94,602

420

1,971

20,060

51,101

543

472,122

237,072

7,697

(39,815)

(12,045)

(2,786)

-

-

(61,954)

(104,150)

(8)

(5,519)

(1,229)

(777,813)

(87,037)

(7,070)

(117,045)

(145,272)

(763,589)

(47,093)

1,139

38,872

285,730

43,165

Lotte Shopping Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries
For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit (loss) for the year

Income tax expense

Post-employment benefits

Long-term employee benefits 

Depreciation

Amortization

Impairment loss on intangible assets

Loss on disposal of intangible assets 

Loss on foreign currency translation

Loss on foreign currency transactions

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment

Bad debt expenses (Reversal of allowance for bad depts)

Impairment loss on other non-current assets

Loss on valuation of financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Loss on transactions of derivative instruments

Loss on valuation of derivative instruments

Equity method loss on investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures

Impairment loss on investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures

Rental expenses (Amortization of discount on deposit, etc.)

Loss on disposal of available-for-sale financial assets

Impairment loss on available-for-sale financial assets

Loss on redemption of debentures

Miscellaneous losses

Other expenses

Cost of card business

Interest expense

Financial guarantee costs

Gain on foreign currency translation

Gain on foreign currency transactions

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Gain on disposal of investment property

Gain on transactions of derivative instruments

Gain on valuation of derivative instruments

Equity method gain of investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures

Gain on disposal of available-for-sale financial assets

Gain on disposal of investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures

Other income

Income of card business

Interest income

Dividend income

Trade receivables

Other receivables

Other financial assets

Inventories

Other non-financial assets

Trade payables

Other payables

Other financial liabilities

Korean won (millions)

Consolidated Statements of 
Cash Flows
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Consolidated Statements of 
Cash Flows, Continued

2015

(19,837)

(9,602)

91,248

(54,698)

(89,176)

(346,210)

697,143

(155,429)

83

641,069

1,323,830

13,976

123,111

-

140,929

735

3,400

7,648

6

1,431

(1,775,233)

(5,137)

(144,966)

(139,247)

(1,094,939)

(100,165)

(8,040)

(828)

-

(37)

46,173

48,999

(1,558,354)

2016

(8,968)

(8,474)

248,065

(53,492)

(92,298)

(251,973)

699,178

(156,487)

45

1,506,867

1,940,735

12,673

1,490

2,316

57,370

339

-

6,296

7

-

(1,575,056)

(11,695)

(87,068)

(56,162)

(1,206,957)

(102,532)

(17,404)

(904)

(7,881)

-

40,772

35,288

(968,373)

Lotte Shopping Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries
For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015

 

Unearned revenues

Provisions

Other non-financial liabilities

Payment of post-employment benefits

Plan assets

Income tax paid

Interest received

Interest paid

Dividends received

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Proceeds from sale of financial assets

Collection of loans

Proceeds from sale of available-for-sale financial assets

Proceeds from sale of investments in associates and joint ventures

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of intangible assets

Proceeds from disposal of investment property

Proceeds from capital distribution from associates 

Decrease of other non-financial assets

Cash inflows from Business combination

Purchase of financial assets

Increase of loans

Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets

Purchase of investments in associates and joint ventures

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment

Acquisition of intangible assets

Acquisition of investment property

Acquisition of other investments

Cash outflows from Business combination

Cash outflows from disposal of subsidiaries, net of proceeds received

Interest received

Dividends received

Net cash used in investing activities

Korean won (millions)

Cash flows from financing activities 

Proceeds from borrowings

Proceeds from issuance of debentures

Capital contribution from non-controlling interests

Proceeds related to sale and lease back transactions

Cash inflows from settlement of derivative instruments

Repayment of borrowings

Redemption of debentures

Acquisition of additional ownership in subsidiaries

Cash outflows from settlement of derivative instruments

Payment of hybrid securities interests

Payment of finance lease liabilities

Cash outflows from other financing activities

Interest paid

Dividends paid

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Impact of foreign currency exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents

Exchange differences on translating foreign operations

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

2015

2,494,790

3,008,247

3,297

7,570

-

(2,177,278)

(2,251,083)

(343)

(18,675)

(12,721)

(13,865)

(112)

(234,905)

(73,914)

731,008

(186,277)

1,928,136

2,290

7,119

1,751,268

2016

3,020,549

2,251,620

34,798

21,068

2,226

(3,018,855)

(1,985,866)

-

-

(12,849)

(16,940)

-

(239,430)

(77,554)

(21,233)

517,261

1,751,268

168

480

2,269,177

Lotte Shopping Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries
For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Korean won (millions)
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(a) Organization and Description of the Company

Lotte Shopping Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) was established on July 2, 1970 in the Republic of Korea to engage in retail operations 
through department stores, outlet stores, discount stores, supermarkets and H&B stores.  In addition to the retail operations, 
the Company’s business includes a chain of multiplex movie theaters under the brand name of Lotte Cinema and so on.  The 	
Company’s stock was listed on the Korea Exchange and the London Stock Exchange through an initial public offering in 	
February 2006.
The stockholders of the Company as of December 31, 2016 are as follows:

(b) Description of Subsidiaries

The consolidated financial statements of the Company comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the 
“Group” and individually as “Group entities”) and the Group’s interest in associates and joint ventures.  A summary of the 	
subsidiaries of the Company as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 is as follows:

1. General Description of the Reporting Entity, Continued

Stockholder

Shin, Dong Bin

Shin, Dong Ju

Shin, Kyuk Ho

Shin, Young Ja

Hotel Lotte Co., Ltd.

Korea Fuji Film Co., Ltd.

Lotte Confectionery Co., Ltd.

LOTTE DATA COMMUNICATION COMPANY

Lotte Chilsung Beverage Co., Ltd.

Lotte Engineering & Construction Co., Ltd.

Hotel Lotte Pusan Co., Ltd.

Treasury share

Others

Total

Ownership (%)

13.46 

13.45 

0.93 

0.74 

8.83 

7.86 

7.86 

4.81 

3.93 

0.95 

0.78 

6.16 

30.24 

100.00 

Number of shares

4,237,627

4,235,883

293,877

232,818

2,781,947

2,474,543

2,474,543

1,515,653

1,237,272

300,019

246,720

1,938,688

9,521,302

31,490,892

Subsidiaries

LOTTE Members China

Lotte Members Vietnam Co., Ltd.

Woori Home Shopping & Television Co., Ltd.

Lotte DatViet Homeshopping Co., Ltd.

Korea Seven Co., Ltd.

Buy the way Inc.

NCF Co., Ltd.

Lotte Gimhae Development Co., Ltd.

Lotte Suwon Station Shopping Town Co., Ltd.

Lotte Songdo Shopping Town Co., Ltd.

CS Mart Co., Ltd.

LOTTE Himart Co., Ltd. (*2)

Lotte Department Store Masan Co., Ltd.

Lotte Members Co., Ltd

LOTTE.COM INC

LOTTE PS NET

Lotte Ulsan Development Co., Ltd. 

Lotte (China) Management Co., Ltd.

Lotte Shopping Holdings (Hong Kong) Co., Limited

Qingdao LOTTE Mart Commercial Co., Ltd.

LOTTE MART COMPANY LIMITED (*3)

Liaoning LOTTE Mart Co., Ltd. (*3)

Lotte Mart China Co., Ltd. (*4) 

Swift Harvest Ltd. and its subsidiaries (*4)

Hong Fung Ltd. and its subsidiaries (*4)

Nantong Meili Properties Limited (*4)

Zhuji Decheng Properties Limited (*4)

Nantong Yaodong Properties Limited (*4)

Nantong Fuhua Properties Limited and its subsidi-

ary (*4)

Nantong Jinyou Properties Limited and its subsidi-

ary (*4)

Nantong Branda Properties Limited and its subsidi-

ary (*4)

Nantong Fortune Trade Properties Limited (*4)

Nantong Fine Spring Properties Limited (*4)

Nantong Fine Port Properties Limited and its sub-

sidiary (*4)

Huai An Full Faith Properties  Limited (*4)

Jilin LOTTE Mart Co., Ltd.

Lotte Mart (Chongqing) Commercial Co., Ltd.

Lotte Shopping Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries
December 31, 2016 and 2015

Subsidiaries

Lotte Card Co., Ltd.

eB Card Co., Ltd.

Gyeonggi Smartcard Co., Ltd.

Inchon Smartcard Co., Ltd.

The 6th Supreme (*1)

The 7th Supreme (*1)

The 8th Supreme (*1)

The 9th Supreme (*1)

The 10th Supreme (*1)

PT. Lotte Members Indonesia

93.78 

95.00 

100.00 

100.00 

0.90 

0.90 

0.90 

0.90 

0.50

100.00 

Percentage of ownership (%)

Credit card, financing

Electronic banking business

Electronic banking business

Electronic banking business

SPC

SPC

SPC

SPC

SPC

Business support service

Products or services

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Fiscal year

Korea

Korea

Korea

Korea

Korea

Korea

Korea

Korea

Korea

Indonesia

Location

China

Vietnam

Korea

Vietnam

Korea

Korea

Korea

Korea

Korea

Korea

Korea

Korea

Korea

Korea

Korea

Korea

Korea 

China

Hong Kong

China

China

China

China 

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

China

China

China

China 

China 

China 

China

China

China 

China

China

China

Location

Business support service

Business support service

TV Home Shopping

TV Home Shopping

Distribution

Distribution

Apparel manufacturing

Service company

Real estate development

Real estate development

Distribution

Consumer electronics

Distribution

Business support service

E-commerce business

Financial support service

Real estate business, 

Real estate lease

Business management

Holding company

Distribution

Distribution

Distribution

Distribution,  

Real estate development

Distribution, 

Real estate development

Real estate development

Real estate development

Real estate development

Real estate development

Real estate development 

Real estate development 

Real estate development 

Real estate development

Real estate development

Real estate development 

Real estate development

Distribution

Distribution

Products or services

100.00 

100.00 

53.03 

90.02 

51.14 

100.00 

99.80 

100.00 

95.00 

56.30 

99.95 

65.25 

100.00 

93.88

50.01

63.64

94.84 

70.00 

100.00 

100.00 

100.00 

100.00 

100.00  

100.00 

100.00 

100.00 

100.00 

100.00 

100.00 

 

100.00  

100.00 

 

100.00 

100.00 

100.00  

100.00 

100.00 

100.00 

Percentage of ownership (%)

Lotte Shopping Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries
December 31, 2016 and 2015

Fiscal year

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31 

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31 

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31 

Dec. 31 

Dec. 31 

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31 

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Notes to the Consolidated 
Financial Statements

December 31, 2016  
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Subsidiaries

Lotte Business Management (Tianjin) Co., Ltd.

Lotte Department Store (Shenyang) Co., Ltd.

Lotte International Department Store (Weihai) 	

Co., Ltd.

LOTTE DEPARTMENT STORE (TIANJIN) CO., LTD.

Lotte Department Store (Chengdu) Co., Ltd.

LOTTE MART (CHENGDU) COMMERCIAL  

COMPANY LIMITED

Lotte Shopping Business Management  

(Hong Kong) Limited

Lotte Cinema Hong Kong Co., Limited

LHSC Limited 

Lucky Pai Ltd. and its subsidiaries

LOTTE PROPERTIES (CHENGDU) HK LIMITED

Lotte Properties (Chengdu) Limited 

LOTTE SHOPPING HOLDINGS (SINGAPORE) PTE. LTD. 

LOTTE VIETNAM SHOPPING JOINT STOCK 

COMPANY (*5) 

(Formerly, LOTTE VIETNAM SHOPPING CO., LTD.)

PT. LOTTE SHOPPING INDONESIA (*5)

PT. LOTTE MART INDONESIA

PT. LOTTE Shopping Avenue Indonesia

Lotte Shopping India Private Limited

LOTTEMART C&C INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

Lotte Shopping Plaza Vietnam Co., Ltd.

LOTTE HOTEL & RETAIL VIETNAM PTE. LTD.

Lotte Holdings Hong Kong Ltd.  

(Formerly, Kotobuki Holding (HK) Ltd.)

Hai Thanh - Kotobuki Joint Venture Company

LOTTE CINEMA VIETNAM CO., LTD.

LOTTE E-Commerce Vietnam Co., Ltd

LOTTE Properties Hanoi (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.

LOTTE Properties Hanoi Co. Ltd.

(*1) �Although the Group holds less than 50% of these investees, the Group determined that the Group controlled these investees, since it was exposed, or had rights, to variable returns from its involvement with these 

investees and had the ability to affect those returns through its power over these investees.

(*2) �During 2013, the Company issued exchangeable bonds which are exchangeable to common stocks of LOTTE Himart Co., Ltd.  Due to the exercise of the put option, the Company redeemed W307,400 million of the 

issued bonds on January 25, 2016.  Therefore, the total number of the exchangeable common stocks for the issued bond is changed from 3,538,224 shares to 152,016 shares.  If all exchangeable bonds are exchanged 

to the common stocks of LOTTE Himart Co., Ltd., the Company’s percentage of ownership on LOTTE Himart Co., Ltd. will be decreased from 65.25% to 64.60%.  In addition, the Company entered into securities 

lending agreements to lend shares of LOTTE Himart Co., Ltd. owned by the Company up to 50% of the total exchangeable common stocks.  As of December 31, 2015, the total number of the common stocks of 

Lotte Himart Co., Ltd. under securities lending agreements is 1,180,384 shares.  On January 25, 2016, the Company collected all of them.

(*3) �For the year period ended December 31, 2016, these were reclassified to subsidiaries of Lotte Shopping Holdings (Hong Kong) Co., Limited.

(*4) �These subsidiaries were presented as Lotte Mart China Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries until 2014.  As Lotte Mart China Co., Ltd. sold the shares of these subsidiaries to Lotte Shopping Holdings (Hong Kong) Co., Limited in 

2015, the Group presents these subsidiaries separately.

(*5) �For the year period ended December 31, 2016, these were reclassified to subsidiaries of LOTTE SHOPPING HOLDINGS (SINGAPORE) PTE. LTD. 

Lotte Shopping Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries
December 31, 2016 and 2015

China

China

China 

China

China

China 

Hong Kong 

Hong Kong

Cayman 

islands

China

Hong Kong

China 

Singapore 

Vietnam 

 

Indonesia

Indonesia

Indonesia

India

India

Vietnam

Singapore

Hong Kong 

Vietnam

Vietnam

Vietnam

Singapore

Vietnam

Location

Distribution

Distribution

Distribution 

Distribution

Distribution

Distribution 

SPC 

Cinema

Holding company 

TV Home Shopping

Holding company

Real estate lease, Apartment  

sales services

Holding company 

Distribution 

 

Distribution

Distribution

Distribution

Distribution

Distribution

Distribution

Holding company

Holding company 

Hotel

Cinema

Distribution

Holding company

Distribution

Products or services

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31 

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31 

Dec. 31 

Dec. 31

Dec. 31 

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31 

Dec. 31 

Dec. 31 

 

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31 

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Fiscal year

100.00 

100.00 

100.00  

100.00 

100.00 

100.00  

100.00  

100.00 

91.14  

100.00 

73.46 

100.00 

100.00 

 

99.99  

 

80.00 

100.00 

100.00 

100.00 

100.00 

100.00 

60.00 

100.00  

70.00 

90.00 

100.00

80.00

100.00

Percentage of ownership (%)

Lotte Shopping Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries
December 31, 2016 and 2015

Subsidiaries

Lotte Card Co., Ltd.

eB Card Co., Ltd.

Gyeonggi Smartcard Co., Ltd.

Inchon Smartcard Co., Ltd.

The 6th Supreme (*1)

The 7th Supreme (*1)

The 8th Supreme (*1)

The 9th Supreme (*1)

PT. Lotte Members Indonesia

LOTTE Members China

Lotte Members Vietnam Co., Ltd.

Woori Home Shopping & Television Co., Ltd.

Lotte DatViet Homeshopping Co., Ltd.

Korea Seven Co., Ltd.

Buy the way Inc.

NCF Co., Ltd.

Lotte Gimhae Development Co., Ltd.

Lotte Suwon Station Shopping Town Co., Ltd.

Lotte Songdo Shopping Town Co., Ltd.

CS Mart Co., Ltd.

LOTTE Himart Co., Ltd. (*2)

Lotte Department Store Masan Co., Ltd.

Lotte Members Co., Ltd

LOTTE.COM INC

LOTTE PS NET

LOTTE MART COMPANY LIMITED

Lotte (China) Management Co., Ltd.

Lotte Shopping Holdings (Hong Kong) Co., Limited

Qingdao LOTTE Mart Commercial Co., Ltd.

Liaoning LOTTE Mart Co., Ltd.

Lotte Mart China Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries 

Swift Harvest Ltd. and its subsidiaries (*3) 

Hong Fung Ltd. and its subsidiaries (*3)

Nantong Meili Properties Limited (*3)

Zhuji Decheng Properties Limited (*3)

Nantong Yaodong Properties Limited (*3)

Nantong Fuhua Properties Limited and its	

 subsidiary (*3)

Nantong Jinyou Properties Limited and its 	

subsidiary (*3)

Nantong Branda Properties Limited and its 	

subsidiary (*3)

Percentage of ownership (%)

93.78 

95.00 

100.00 

100.00 

0.90 

0.90 

0.90 

0.90 

100.00 

100.00 

100.00 

53.03 

85.58 

51.14 

100.00 

99.80 

100.00 

95.00 

56.30 

99.95 

65.25 

100.00 

93.78

50.01

63.64

100.00 

70.00 

100.00 

100.00 

100.00 

100.00  

100.00  

100.00 

100.00 

100.00 

100.00 

100.00  

100.00  

100.00  

Products or services

Credit card, financing

Electronic banking business

Electronic banking business

Electronic banking business

SPC

SPC

SPC

SPC

Business support service

Business support service

Business support service

TV Home Shopping

TV Home Shopping

Distribution

Distribution

Apparel manufacturing

Service company

Real estate development

Real estate development

Distribution

Consumer electronics

Distribution

Business support service

E-commerce business

Financial support service

Distribution

Business management

Holding company

Distribution

Distribution

Distribution, 

Real estate development

Distribution, 

Real estate development

Real estate development

Real estate development

Real estate development

Real estate development

Real estate development 

Real estate development 

Real estate development 

Fiscal year

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31 

Dec. 31 

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31 

Dec. 31 

Dec. 31 

Location

Korea

Korea

Korea

Korea

Korea

Korea

Korea

Korea

Indonesia

China

Vietnam

Korea

Vietnam

Korea

Korea

Korea

Korea

Korea

Korea

Korea

Korea

Korea

Korea

Korea

Korea

China

China

Hong Kong

China

China

China 

Hong Kong 

Hong Kong

China

China

China

China 

China 

China 

December 31, 2015  
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Subsidiaries

Nantong Fortune Trade Properties Limited(*3)

Nantong Fine Spring Properties Limited (*3)

Nantong Fine Port Properties Limited and its sub-

sidiary (*3)

Huai An Full Faith Properties  Limited (*3)

Jilin LOTTE Mart Co., Ltd.

Lotte Mart (Chongqing) Commercial Co., Ltd.

Lotte Business Management (Tianjin) Co., Ltd.

Lotte Department Store (Shenyang) Co., Ltd.

Lotte International Department Store (Weihai) Co., 

Ltd.

LOTTE DEPARTMENT STORE (TIANJIN) CO., LTD.

Lotte Department Store (Chengdu) Co., Ltd.

LOTTE MART (CHENGDU) COMMERCIAL 	

COMPANY LIMITED

Lotte Shopping Business Management 	

(Hong Kong) Limited

LHSC Limited

Lucky Pai Ltd. and its subsidiaries

LOTTE PROPERTIES (CHENGDU) HK LIMITED

Lotte Properties (Chengdu) Limited

LOTTE VIETNAM SHOPPING CO., LTD.

LOTTE SHOPPING HOLDINGS (SINGAPORE) PTE. LTD.

PT. LOTTE SHOPPING INDONESIA

PT. LOTTE MART INDONESIA

PT. LOTTE Shopping Avenue Indonesia

Lotte Shopping India Private Limited

LOTTEMART C&C INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

Lotte Shopping Plaza Vietnam Co., Ltd.

LOTTE HOTEL & RETAIL VIETNAM PTE. LTD.

Kotobuki Holding (HK) Ltd.

Hai Thanh - Kotobuki Joint Venture Company

LOTTE CINEMA VIETNAM CO., LTD.

Percentage of ownership (%)

100.00 

100.00 

100.00  

100.00 

100.00 

100.00 

100.00 

100.00 

100.00  

100.00 

100.00 

100.00  

100.00  

91.14 

100.00 

73.46 

100.00

100.00 

100.00 

80.00 

100.00 

100.00 

100.00 

100.00 

100.00 

60.00 

100.00 

70.00 

90.00 

Products or services

Real estate development

Real estate development

Real estate development 

Real estate development

Distribution

Distribution

Distribution

Distribution

Distribution 

Distribution

Distribution

Distribution 

SPC 

Holding company

TV Home Shopping

Holding company

Real estate lease

Distribution

Holding company

Distribution

Distribution

Distribution

Distribution

Distribution

Distribution

Holding company

Holding company

Hotel

Cinema

Fiscal year

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31 

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31 

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31 

Dec. 31 

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Dec. 31

Location

China

China

China 

China

China

China

China

China

China 

China

China

China 

Hong Kong 

Cayman islands

China

Hong Kong

China

Vietnam

Singapore

Indonesia

Indonesia

Indonesia

India

India

Vietnam

Singapore

Hong Kong

Vietnam

Vietnam

Lotte Shopping Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries
December 31, 2016 and 2015

(*1) �Although the Group holds less than 50% of these investees, the Group determined that the Group controlled these investees, since it was exposed, or had rights, to variable returns from its involvement with these 

investees and had the ability to affect those returns through its power over these investees.

(*2) �During 2013, the Company issued exchangeable bonds which are exchangeable to common stocks of LOTTE Himart Co., Ltd.  Due to the exercise of the put option, the Company redeemed ₩307,400 million of the 

issued bonds on January 25, 2016.  Therefore, the total number of the exchangeable common stocks for the issued bond is changed from 3,538,224 shares to 152,016 shares.  If all exchangeable bonds are exchanged 

to the common stocks of LOTTE Himart Co., Ltd., the Company’s percentage of ownership on LOTTE Himart Co., Ltd. will be decreased from 65.25% to 64.60%.  In addition, the Company entered into securities 

lending agreements to lend shares of LOTTE Himart Co., Ltd. owned by the Company up to 50% of the total exchangeable common stocks.  As of December 31, 2015, the total number of the common stocks of 

Lotte Himart Co., Ltd. under securities lending agreements is 1,180,384 shares.  On January 25, 2016, the Company collected all of them. 

(*3) �These subsidiaries were presented as Lotte Mart China Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries until 2014.  As Lotte Mart China Co., Ltd. sold the shares of these subsidiaries to Lotte Shopping Holdings (Hong Kong) Co., Limited in 

2015, the Group presents these subsidiaries separately. 

Lotte Shopping Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries
December 31, 2016 and 2015

(c) �Financial information of significant subsidiaries as of and for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 are summarized 
as follows:

Subsidiaries

Lotte Card Co., Ltd.

eB Card Co., Ltd.

Woori Home Shopping & Television Co., Ltd.

Korea Seven Co., Ltd.

Buy the way Inc.

Lotte Suwon Station Shopping Town Co., Ltd.

Lotte Songdo Shopping Town Co., Ltd.

CS Mart Co., Ltd.

LOTTE Himart Co., Ltd.

Lotte Members Co., Ltd

LOTTE.COM INC

LOTTE MART COMPANY LIMITED

Qingdao LOTTE Mart Commercial Co., Ltd.

Lotte Shopping Holdings 

(Hong Kong) Co., Limited

Swift Harvest Ltd. and its subsidiaries

LOTTE PROPERTIES (CHENGDU) HK LIMITED

Lotte Properties (Chengdu) Limited

LHSC Limited

LOTTE VIETNAM SHOPPING JOINT STOCK 	

COMPANY

(Formerly, LOTTE VIETNAM SHOPPING CO., LTD.)

LOTTE SHOPPING HOLDINGS (SINGAPORE) PTE. LTD.

PT. LOTTE SHOPPING INDONESIA

PT. LOTTE MART INDONESIA

9,982,357

186,951

888,217

1,106,098

117,455

317,501

241,376

165,638

3,004,859

219,972

155,325

167,016

24,458

1,061,307

567,494

442,194

623,386

31,309

469,971 

 

591,379

314,896

184,712

2,167,293

59,827

589,947

315,968

85,884

75,751

89,252

109,789

1,895,662

57,059

280

(54,198)

(52,126)

289,225

(337,675)

212,408

372,977

31,309

25,155 

 

591,371

138,077

(14,315)

7,815,064

127,124

298,270

790,130

31,571

241,750

152,124

55,849

1,109,197

162,913

155,045

221,214

76,584

772,082

905,169

229,786

250,409

-

444,816 

 

8

176,819

199,027

1,643,515

84,929

886,033

3,522,760

181,433

43,989

40,365

420,600

3,939,442

61,585

204,186

306,080

-

689

696,047

-

-

-

263,151 

 

845,571

268,901

106,561

13,895

37,991

38,403

(22,147)

(8,644)

(3,988)

8,729

121,428

1,603

(30,312)

(30,974)

(10,260)

(268,922)

(151,586)

(7,130)

(11,833)

(90)

(13,367) 

 

(45,096)

12,643

(15,953)

Korean won (millions)
Assets Liabilities Equity Sales Net income

(loss)

109,747

13,908

31,785

37,573

(21,049)

(8,643)

(3,987)

8,733

122,985

1,510

(29,329)

(29,786)

(8,435)

(254,553)

(150,595)

(785)

(27,943)

854

(13,018) 

 

(36,610)

19,246

(16,338)

Total
comprehensive

Income (loss)
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(c) �Financial information of significant subsidiaries as of and for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 are summarized 
as follows:, continued

(*) �Companies described above had been subsidiaries of Lucky Pai Ltd., but they were excluded from consolidation due to loss of control as of December 31, 2016.

(d) �Entities included in subsidiaries in 2016 are as follows:

Description

Establishment 

Split-off

Reclassification from joint venture due to acquisition of additional inter-

ests

Subsidiaries

Lotte Ulsan Development Co., Ltd.

LOTTE E-Commerce Vietnam Co., Ltd

The 10th Supreme 

LOTTE PROPERTIES HANOI (SINGAPORE) PTE. LTD.

LOTTE PROPERTIES HANOI CO., LTD

Lotte Cinema Hong Kong Co., Limited

Chongqing Yujia Lucky Pai Commercial Co., Ltd.

(Formerly, Chongqing Yujia Co., Ltd.)

(e) Entities excluded from subsidiaries in 2016 are as follows:

Description

Liquidation

Loss of control

Subsidiaries

Times Supermarket Limited

Wealth Concept Inc.

Supreme Forum Ltd.

Apex Forum Ltd.

Ocean Luck Asia Investment Ltd.

East Fine Enterprise Ltd.

Fine Port Ltd

Fine Spring Ltd.

Full Faith Development Ltd.

Goldwell Corporation Ltd.

Ocean Rich International Ltd.

Waho (China) Ltd.

Wealthland Corporation Ltd.

Hangzhou Lucky Pai Investment Co., Ltd. (*)

Heilongjiang Fangxin TV shopping Media. Co., Ltd. (*)

Subsidiaries

Lotte Card Co., Ltd.

eB Card Co., Ltd.

Woori Home Shopping & Television Co., Ltd.

Korea Seven Co., Ltd.

Buy the way Inc.

Lotte Suwon Station Shopping Town Co., Ltd.

Lotte Songdo Shopping Town Co., Ltd.

CS Mart Co., Ltd.

LOTTE Himart Co., Ltd.

Lotte Members Co., Ltd

LOTTE.COM INC

LOTTE MART COMPANY LIMITED

Qingdao LOTTE Mart Commercial Co., Ltd.

Lotte Shopping Holdings  

(Hong Kong) Co., Limited

Swift Harvest Ltd. and its subsidiaries

LOTTE PROPERTIES (CHENGDU) HK LIMITED

Lotte Properties (Chengdu) Limited

LHSC Limited

LOTTE VIETNAM SHOPPING CO., LTD.

LOTTE SHOPPING HOLDINGS (SINGAPORE) PTE. LTD.

PT. LOTTE SHOPPING INDONESIA

PT. LOTTE MART INDONESIA

140,751

(1,448)

(27,591)

10,195

(54,557)

(12,939)

(1,910)

10,360

105,484

119

(1,187)

(26,048)

(74,729)

(392,957) 

(100,109)

5,460

3,617

(157,743)

(25,730)

(16,528)

7,216

(16,272)

9,198,112

186,395

841,097

1,005,362

144,380

355,624

240,931

156,077

2,905,213

179,446

194,553

149,837

20,399

1,195,329 

705,045

436,070

532,211

30,455

435,575

318,693

269,260

175,309

2,057,546

45,918

588,162

280,099

106,933

84,393

93,239

101,056

1,782,827

29,361

29,609

(24,412)

(125,580)

461,890 

(194,952)

213,194

400,921

30,455

38,173

318,677

118,830

2,023

7,140,566

140,477

252,935

725,263

37,447

271,231

147,692

55,021

1,122,386

150,085

164,944

174,249

145,979

733,439 

899,997

222,876

131,290

-

397,402

16

150,430

173,286

1,625,815

69,718

854,483

3,079,967

234,847

46,138

5,378

431,707

3,896,137

56,916

211,241

334,162

24,617

- 

838,622

-

-

-

216,131

-

768,484

245,874

134,273

(1,478)

10,762

10,616

(54,769)

(12,943)

(1,911)

10,119

106,595

153

3,878

(26,008)

(72,610)

(430,468) 

(99,837)

(6,998)

(3,816)

(164,324)

(26,417)

(37,416)

11,039

(15,703)

Korean won (millions)
Assets Liabilities Equity Sales Net income

(loss)

Total
comprehensive

Income (loss)

Lotte Shopping Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries
December 31, 2016 and 2015

Lotte Shopping Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries
December 31, 2016 and 2015

(f) Non-controlling interests

Financial information related to significant non-controlling interests for subsidiaries as of and for the years ended December 31, 
2016 and 2015 are as follows:

December 31, 2016

Description

Ownership interests held by NCI

Current assets

Non-current assets

Current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Net assets

Net assets attributable to 

non-controlling interests

Dividends paid to non-controlling interests during the year

Revenue

Profit

Total comprehensive income

Profit attributable to non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income attributable to non-con-

trolling interests

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Effect of currency exchange rate

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

LOTTE Himart

Co., Ltd.

34.75%

730,013

787,602

450,474

706,177

360,964

125,446

3,528

3,939,442

117,351

118,908

40,783

41,324

236,937

(77,853)

(130,889)

-

28,195

Woori Home 

Shopping & 

Television Co., Ltd.

46.97%

606,759

326,453

282,043

17,964

633,205

311,612

14,090

896,644

66,472

60,191

31,034

28,078

93,250

(4,633)

(30,000)

(95)

58,522

Lotte Card 

Co., Ltd.

6.22%

9,730,368

495,255

3,192,706

4,882,008

2,150,909

134,981

-

1,786,996

110,494

113,592

7,108

7,303

(328,572)

(58,255)

471,557

265

84,995

Korea Seven 

Co., Ltd.

48.86%

372,481

736,773

628,016

162,114

319,124

155,543

832

3,522,760

40,942

40,111

20,005

19,599

102,521

(85,924)

20,439

-

37,036

Korean won (millions)
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Financial information related to significant non-controlling interests for subsidiaries as of and for the years ended December 31, 
2016 and 2015 are as follows:, continued

December 31, 2015

Description
Ownership interests held by NCI
Current assets
Non-current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Net assets
Net assets attributable to 
non-controlling interests
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests during the year
Revenue
Profit
Total comprehensive income
Profit attributable to non-controlling interests
Total comprehensive income attributable to non-con-
trolling interests
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Effect of currency exchange rate
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

LOTTE Himart
Co., Ltd.
34.75%

640,377
782,971
638,445
532,696
252,207

87,650

2,707
3,896,137

102,518
101,406

35,628
35,242

120,304
(84,763)
(10,612)

-
24,929

Woori Home 
Shopping & 

Television Co., Ltd.
46.97%

566,430
320,939
235,407

19,210
632,752
297,320

10,332
864,626

56,696
18,389
26,408

8,420

(38,781)
37,752

(22,000)
50

(22,979)

Lotte Card 
Co., Ltd.

6.22%
8,893,970

508,588
2,601,830
4,763,411
2,037,317

127,678

-
1,789,948

119,811
123,231

7,348
7,560

(530,980)
(47,305)
728,580

474
150,769

Korea Seven 
Co., Ltd.

48.86%
324,879
683,638
578,113
147,150
283,254
136,776

1,770
3,079,967

10,442
10,021

5,102
4,897

147,610
(119,197)

(79,358)
-

(50,945)

Korean won (millions)

Lotte Shopping Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries
December 31, 2016 and 2015

Lotte Shopping Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries
December 31, 2016 and 2015

(g) Changes in a parent’s ownership interest in subsidiaries that did not result in change in control

① Details of the parent’s additional investments in subsidiaries for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 are summarized 
as follows:

2016

Subsidiaries
Qingdao LOTTE Mart Commercial Co., Ltd.

LOTTE CINEMA VIETNAM CO., LTD.
Lotte Datviet Homeshopping Co., Ltd.
Lotte Ulsan Development Co., Ltd.

LOTTE SHOPPING HOLDINGS 
(SINGAPORE) PTE. LTD.
Lotte Members Co., Ltd
Total

After
(84,555)
(58,432)
(52,126)

18,594
5,776

22,967
23,551
64,269
68,864
53,566
62,474

41,025
27,700
13,164
10,299

5,951
13,900

-
4,254
4,383

24,382
145,058

After
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%

90.00%
90.02%
95.98%
94.84%

100.00%
100.00%

93.88%

Before
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%

90.00%
85.58%

100.00%
95.98%

100.00%
100.00%

93.78%

Before
(125,580)

(86,132)
(65,290)

8,295
398

9,123
23,542
60,015
64,481
29,205

(81,943)

Korean won (millions) Parent’s portion in net assetsPercentage of ownership (%)

② Details of the parent’s additional investments in subsidiaries for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 are summarized 
as follows:, continued

2015

Subsidiaries
Lotte Shopping Plaza Vietnam Co., Ltd.
Lotte Department Store Masan Co., Ltd.
Lotte Shopping Holdings (Hong Kong) Co.,  
Limited
LOTTE PS NET
Swift Harvest Ltd. and its subsidiaries
Lotte Business Management (Tianjin) Co., Ltd.
Qingdao LOTTE Mart Commercial Co., Ltd.
LOTTE CINEMA VIETNAM CO., LTD.
NCF Co., Ltd.
Total

After
additional 

acquisition
26,479
15,908

750,306

3,037
34,729

(47,740)
(125,580)

7,182
17,060

681,381

2,173
12,000

979

6,704
52,069
19,250
44,034

4,232
343

141,784

After
additional 

acquisition
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%

63.64%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%

90.00%
99.80%

Before 
additional 

acquisition
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%

62.78%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%

90.00%
98.30%

Before 
additional 

acquisition
24,306

3,908
749,327

(3,456)
(17,340)
(66,990)

(169,614)
2,950

16,804
539,895

Korean won (millions) Parent’s portion in net assetsPercentage of ownership (%)

(a)  Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in 
accordance with Korean International Financial Reporting 
Standards (“K-IFRS”), as prescribed in the Act on External 
Audits of Stock Corporation in the Republic of Korea.
The consolidated financial statements were authorized for 
issue by the Board of Directors on March 2, 2017, which will 
be submitted for approval to the shareholders’ meeting to be 
held on March 24, 2017.

(b)  Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared 
on the historical cost basis, except for the following material 
items in the statement of financial position:

- �derivative financial instruments are measured at fair value
- �financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss are 

measured at fair value 
- �available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value 
- �liabilities for defined benefit plans are recognized at the net of 

the total present value of defined benefit obligations less the 
fair value of plan assets and unrecognized past service costs

(c)  Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements of the parent and each subsidiary are 
prepared in functional currency of the respective operation. 

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Ko-
rean won, which is the Parent Company’s functional curren-
cy and the currency of the primary economic environment in 
which the Group operates.

(d)  Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in 
conformity with K-IFRS requires management to make judg-
ments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application 
of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, lia-
bilities, income and expenses.  Actual results may differ from 
these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are 
reviewed on an ongoing basis.  Revisions to accounting esti-
mates are recognized in the period prospectively.

① �Information about assumptions and estimation 
uncertainties

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties 
that have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjust-
ment within the next financial year are included in the fol-
lowing notes:

Note 16 – Goodwill and Intangible assets 
Note 20 – Provisions
Note 22 – Employee benefits
Note 35 – Income taxes
Note 40 – Contingent liabilities and financial commitments
Note 43 – Risk management

2. Basis of Accounting



LOTTE SHOPPING  ANNUAL REPORT 2016

94 95

Lotte Shopping Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries
December 31, 2016 and 2015

Lotte Shopping Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries
December 31, 2016 and 2015

② Measurement of fair value
A number of the Group’s accounting policies and disclosures 
require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and 
non-financial assets and liabilities.  The Group has an estab-
lished control framework with respect to the measurement of 
fair values.  This includes a valuation team that has overall 
responsibility for overseeing all significant fair value mea-
surements, including Level 3 fair values, and reports directly 
to the CFO.
The valuation team regularly reviews significant unobserv-
able inputs and valuation adjustments.  If third party infor-
mation, such as broker quotes or pricing services, is used to 
measure fair values, then the valuation team assesses the ev-
idence obtained from the third parties to support the conclu-
sion that such valuations meet the requirements of K-IFRS, 
including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which such 
valuations should be classified.
Significant valuation issues are reported to the Group’s Audit 
Committee.
When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the 
Group uses market observable data as far as possible. Fair 
values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hi-
erarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques 
as follows.

- �Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for 
identical assets or liabilities

- �Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly 
(i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices)

- �Level 3: inputs for the assets or liability that are not based on 
observable market data (unobservable inputs)

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a 
liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, 
then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety 
in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level 
input that is significant to the entire measurement.
The Group recognizes transfers between levels of the fair val-
ue hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which 
the change has occurred.
Further information about the assumptions made in measur-
ing fair values is included in following notes:

Note 8 - Fair value of financial instruments

Except for the changes below, the Group has consistently ap-
plied the accounting policies set out in Note 4 to all periods 
presented in these consolidated financial statements.

The Group has adopted the following amendments to stan-
dards and new interpretation with a date of initial applica-
tion of January 1, 2016.

- �Amendments to K-IFRS 1001 ‘ Presentation of Financial 
Statements’

The nature of the changes are explained below.

① Presentation of Financial Statements
These amendments clarify the materiality and aggregation, so 
that they specify the considerations in the case of additional 
presentation of the subtotal and clarify the order of the notes 
and other comprehensive income arising from associates.
The impact of the amendments on the Group’s consolidated  
financial statements is not significant.

The significant accounting policies applied by the Group in 
preparation of its consolidated financial statements are in-
cluded below.  The accounting policies set below have been 
applied consistently to all periods presented in these consoli-
dated financial statements except for the changes in account-
ing policies as explained in Note 3.

(a)  Operating segment 

An operating segment is a component of the Group that 
engages in business activities from which it may earn rev-
enues and incur expenses, including revenues and expens-
es that relate to transactions with any of the Group’s other 
components.  All operating segments’ operating results are 
reviewed regularly by the Group’s chief operating decision 
maker to make decisions about resources to be allocated to 
the segment and assess its performance, and for which dis-
crete financial information is available.  
Segment results that are reported to the Group’s chief oper-
ating decision maker include items directly attributable to a 
segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable 
basis. Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred 
during the period to acquire property, plant and equipment, 
and intangible assets other than goodwill. 
The Group has six reportable segments which consist of 
department stores, discount stores, credit card service, con-
sumer electronics retail, convenience stores and others, as 
described in note 39.3. Changes in Accounting Policies

4. Significant Accounting Policies

(b)  Basis of consolidation

① Business combinations
The Group accounts for business combinations using the ac-
quisition method when control is transferred to the Group.  The 
consideration transferred in the acquisition is generally mea-
sured at fair value, as are the identifiable net assets acquired.  
Any goodwill that arises is tested annually for impairment.  
Any gain on a bargain purchase is recognized in profit or loss 
immediately.  Transaction costs are expensed as incurred, ex-
cept if related to the issue of debt or equity securities.
The consideration transferred does not include amounts 
related to the settlement of pre-existing relationships. Such 
amounts are generally recognized in profit or loss.
Any contingent consideration is measured at fair value at the 
date of acquisition.  If an obligation to pay contingent con-
sideration that meets the definition of a financial instrument 
is classified as equity, then it is not remeasured and settle-
ment is accounted for within equity.  Otherwise, subsequent 
changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration are 
recognized in profit or loss.
If share-based payment awards (replacement awards) are re-
quired to be exchanged for awards held by the acquiree’s em-
ployees (acquiree’s awards), then all or a portion of the amount 
of the acquirer’s replacement awards is included in measuring 
the consideration transferred in the business combination. 
This determination is based on the market-based measure 
of the replacement awards compared with the market-based 
measure of the acquiree’s awards and the extent to which the 
replacement awards relate to pre-combination service.

② Non-controlling interests(“NCI”)
NCI are measured at their proportionate share of the acquiree’s 
identifiable net assets at the date of acquisition. Changes in the 
Group’s interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of 
control are accounted for as equity transactions.

③ Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.  The Group 
controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has rights to, vari-
able returns from its involvement with the entity and has the 
ability to affect those returns through its power over the en-
tity.  The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in 
the consolidated financial statements from the date on which 
control commences until the date on which control ceases.

④ Loss of control
When the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognizes 
the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, and any related NCI 
and other components of equity.  Any resulting gain or loss is 
recognized in profit or loss. Any interest retained in the former 
subsidiary is measured at fair value when control is lost.

⑤ Interests in equity-accounted Investees
The Group’s interests in equity-accounted investees comprise 
interests in associates and a joint venture.

Associates are those entities in which the Group has signifi-
cant influence, but not control or joint control, over the finan-
cial and operating policies.  A joint venture is an arrangement 
in which the Group has joint control, whereby the Group has 
rights to the net assets of the arrangement, rather than rights 
to its assets and obligations for its liabilities.
Interests in associates and the joint venture are accounted 
for using the equity method.  They are initially recognized at 
cost, which includes transaction costs.  Subsequent to initial 	
recognition, the consolidated financial statements include the 
Group’s share of the profit or loss and OCI of equity-account-
ed investees, until the date on which significant influence or 
joint control ceases.

⑥ Transactions eliminated on consolidation
Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealized 
income and expenses arising from intra-group transactions, 
are eliminated.  Unrealized gains arising from transactions 
with equity-accounted investees are eliminated against the 
investment to the extent of the Group’s interest in the invest-
ee. Unrealized losses are eliminated in the same way as unre-
alized gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence 
of impairment.

⑦ Acquisitions from entities under common control
The assets and liabilities acquired under business combina-
tions under common control are recognized at the carrying 
amounts recognized previously in the consolidated financial 
statements of the ultimate parent.  The difference between 
consideration transferred and carrying amounts of net assets 
acquired is recognized as part of share premium.

(c)  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call de-
posits with maturities of three months or less from the acquisi-
tion date that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in 
their fair value, and are used by the Group in the management 
of its short-term commitments.  Equity investments are excluded 
from cash equivalents unless they are, in substance, cash equiv-
alents, for example in the case of preferred shares when it has a 
short maturity with a specified redemption date.

(d)  Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realiz-
able value.  Net realizable value is the estimated selling price 
in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of 	
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Lotte Shopping Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries
December 31, 2016 and 2015

or firm commitments (a fair value hedge) and foreign cur-
rency risk of highly probable forecasted transactions or firm 
commitments (a cash flow hedge).
On initial designation of the hedge, the Group formally docu-
ments the relationship between the hedging instruments and 
hedged items, including the risk management objectives and 
strategy in undertaking the hedge transaction, together with 
the methods that will be used to assess the effectiveness of the 
hedging relationship.

Fair value hedge
Changes in the fair value of a derivative hedging instrument 
designated as a fair value hedge are recognized in profit or 
loss.  The gain or loss from remeasuring the hedging instru-
ment at fair value for a derivative hedging instrument and 
the gain or loss on the hedged item attributable to the hedged 
risk are recognized in profit or loss in the same line item of the 
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
The Group discontinues fair value hedge accounting if the 
hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, 
or if the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge account-
ing.  Any adjustment arising from gain or loss on the hedged 
item attributable to the hedged risk is amortized to profit or 
loss from the date the hedge accounting is discontinued.

Cash flow hedge
When a derivative is designated to hedge the variability in 
cash flows attributable to a particular risk associated with a 
recognized asset or liability or a highly probable forecasted 
transaction that could affect profit or loss, the effective por-
tion of changes in the fair value of the derivative is recog-
nized in other comprehensive income, net of tax, and present-
ed in the hedging reserve in equity.  Any ineffective portion 
of changes in the fair value of the derivative is recognized 
immediately in profit or loss.
If the hedging instrument no longer meets the criteria for 
hedge accounting, expires or is sold, terminated, exercised, 
or the designation is revoked, then hedge accounting is dis-
continued prospectively.  The cumulative gain or loss on the 
hedging instrument that has been recognized in other com-
prehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss in the pe-
riods during which the forecasted transaction occurs.  If the 
forecasted transaction is no longer expected to occur, then the 
balance in other comprehensive income is recognized imme-
diately in profit or loss.

② Other derivative financial instruments
Changes in the fair value of other derivative financial instru-
ment not designated as a hedging instrument are recognized 
immediately in profit or loss.

(g)  Impairment of financial assets

A financial asset not carried at fair value through profit or loss 
is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there 
is objective evidence that it is impaired.  A financial asset is 
impaired if objective evidence indicates that a loss event has 
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset, and that the 
loss event had a negative effect on the estimated future cash 
flows of that asset that can be estimated reliably.  However, 
losses expected as a result of future events, regardless of like-
lihood, are not recognized.
If there is objective evidence that financial instruments are 
impaired, impairment losses are measured and recognized. 
In addition, for an investment in an equity security, a signif-
icant or prolonged decline in its fair value below its cost is 
objective evidence of impairment.

① Financial assets measured at amortized cost
An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured 
at amortized cost is calculated as the difference between its 
carrying amount and the present value of its estimated future 
cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest 
rate.  Losses are recognised in profit or loss and reflected in 
an allowance account.
When the Group considers that there are no realistic prospects 
of recovery of the asset, the relevant amounts are written off. 
If the amount of impairment loss subsequently decreases and 
the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring 
after the impairment was recognised, then the previously 
recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss 
either directly or by adjusting an allowance account.
 
② Financial assets carried at cost
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has oc-
curred on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried 
at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably mea-
sured, or on a derivative asset that is linked to and must be 
settled by delivery of such an unquoted equity instrument, 
the amount of the impairment loss is measured as the differ-
ence between the carrying amount of the financial asset and 
the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted 
at the current market rate of return for a similar financial as-
set. Such impairment losses shall not be reversed.

③ Available-for-sale financial assets 
When a decline in the fair value of an available-for-sale fi-
nancial asset has been recognized in other comprehensive 
income and there is objective evidence that the asset is im-
paired, the cumulative loss that had been recognized in other 
comprehensive income shall be reclassified from equity to 
profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment even though 
the financial asset has not been derecognized.  Impairment 

completion and selling expenses.
The cost of inventories is based on the total-weighted average 
method, moving average method and retail method except 
for goods-in-transit. The cost of goods-in-transit and unfin-
ished apartment units is determined by the specific identifi-
cation method.
When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inven-
tories is recognized as an expense in the period in which the re-
lated revenue is recognized.  The amount of any write-down of 
inventories to net realizable value and all losses of inventories 
are recognized as an expense in the period the write-down or 
loss occurs.  The amount of any reversal of any write-down of 
inventories, arising from an increase in net realizable value, is 
recognized as a reduction in the amount of inventories and rec-
ognized as an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

(e)  Non-derivative financial assets

The Group recognizes and measures non-derivative financial 
assets by the following four categories: financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss, held-to-maturity investments, 
loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial assets.  
The Group recognizes financial assets in the consolidated 
statement of financial position when the Group becomes a 
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.Upon 
initial recognition, non-derivative financial assets are mea-
sured at their fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset 
not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that 
are directly attributable to the asset’s acquisition or issuance.

① Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
A financial asset is classified as financial assets are classified 
at fair value through profit or loss if it is held for trading or 
is designated as such upon initial recognition.  Upon initial 
recognition, transaction costs are recognized in profit or loss 
when incurred.  Financial assets at fair value through profit 
or loss are measured at fair value, and changes therein are 
recognized in profit or loss.

② Held-to-maturity investments
A non-derivative financial asset with a fixed or determinable 
payment and fixed maturity, for which the Group has the 
positive intention and ability to hold to maturity, are classi-
fied as held-to-maturity investments.  Subsequent to initial 
recognition, held-to-maturity investments are measured at 
amortized cost using the effective interest method.

③ Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed or de-
terminable payments that are not quoted in an active market.  
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables are 
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest meth-

od except for loans and receivables of which the effect of dis-
counting is immaterial.

④ Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are those non-derivative fi-
nancial assets that are designated as available-for-sale or are 
not classified as financial assets at fair value through profit 
or loss, held-to-maturity investments or loans and receiv-
ables.  Subsequent to initial recognition, they are measured at 
fair value, which changes in fair value, net of any tax effect, 
recorded in other comprehensive income in equity.  Invest-
ments in equity instruments that do not have a quoted mar-
ket price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be 
reliably 	 measured and derivatives that are linked to and 
must be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity instru-
ments are measured at cost.

⑤ De-recognition of financial assets
The Group derecognizes a financial asset when the con-
tractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or it 
transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows on 
the financial asset in a transaction in which substantially all 
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are 
transferred.  Any interest in transferred financial assets that is 
created or retained by the Group is recognized as a separate 
asset or liability.
If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards 
of ownership of the transferred financial assets, the Group 
continues to recognize the transferred financial assets and 
recognizes financial liabilities for the consideration received.

⑥ Offsetting between financial assets and financial liabilities
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net 
amount is presented in the consolidated statement of finan-
cial position only when the Group currently has a legally en-
forceable right to offset the recognized amounts, and there is 
the intention to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and 
settle the liability simultaneously.

(f)  �Derivative financial instruments, including hedge 	
accounting

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value.  Subsequent 
to initial recognition, derivatives are measured at fair value, 
and changes therein are accounted for as described below.

① Hedge accounting
The Group holds forward exchange contracts, interest rate 
swaps, currency swaps and other derivative contracts to 
manage interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk. The 
Group designated derivatives as hedging instruments to 
hedge the risk of changes in the fair value of assets, liabilities 
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losses recognized in profit or loss for an investment in an 
equity instrument classified as available-for-sale shall not be 
reversed through profit or loss.  If, in a subsequent period, 
the fair value of a debt instrument classified as available-for-
sale increases and the increase can be objectively related to an 
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized in 
profit or loss, the impairment loss shall be reversed, with the 
amount of the reversal recognized in profit or loss.

(h)  Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are initially measured at cost 
and after initial recognition, are carried at cost less accumu-
lated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. The 
cost of property, plant and equipment includes expenditures 
arising directly from the construction or acquisition of the 
asset, any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to 
the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of 
operating in the manner intended by management and the 
initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the 
item and restoring the site on which it is located.
Subsequent to initial recognition, an item of property, plant 
and equipment shall be carried at its cost less any accumu-
lated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Subsequent costs are recognized in the carrying amount of 
property, plant and equipment at cost or, if appropriate, as 	
separate items if it is probable that future economic benefits 
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost 
of the item can be measured reliably.  The carrying amount 
of the replaced part is derecognized.  The costs of the day-to-
day servicing are recognized in profit or loss as incurred.
Property, plant and equipment, except for land, are depreci-
ated over estimated useful lives that appropriately reflect the 
pattern in which the asset’s future economic benefits are ex-
pected to be consumed on a straight-line basis. A component 
that is significant compared to the total cost of property, plant 
and equipment is depreciated over its separate useful life.
Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and 
equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from 
disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant and 
equipment and are recognized in profit or loss.
The estimated useful lives of the Group’s property, plant and 
equipment are as follows:

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are 
reviewed at the end of each reporting date and adjusted, if 
appropriate. The change is accounted for as a change in an 
accounting estimate.

(i)  Intangible assets

Intangible assets are measured initially at cost and, subse-
quently, are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and 
accumulated impairment losses.
Amortization of intangible assets except for goodwill is cal-
culated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives 
of intangible assets from the date that they are available for 
use.  The residual value of intangible assets is zero.  However, 
as there are no foreseeable limits to the periods over which 
club memberships trademark and trade name are expected 
to be available for use, this intangible asset is determined as 
having indefinite useful lives and not amortized.

Useful lives and the amortization methods for intangible assets 
with finite useful lives are reviewed at the end of each reporting 
period.  The useful lives of intangible assets that are not being 
amortized are reviewed at the end of each reporting period to 
determine whether events and circumstances continue to sup-
port indefinite useful life assessments for those assets. Changes 
are accounted for as changes in accounting estimates.

(j)  Investment property

Property held for the purpose of earning rentals or benefiting 
from capital appreciation is classified as investment property.  
Investment property is initially measured at its cost.  Trans-
action costs are included in the initial measurement.  Subse-
quently, investment property is carried at depreciated cost 
less any accumulated impairment losses.
Subsequent costs are recognized in the carrying amount of in-
vestment property at cost or, if appropriate, as separate items 
if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with 
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can 
be measured reliably.  The carrying amount of the replaced 
part is derecognized.  The costs of the day-to-day servicing 
are recognized in profit or loss as incurred.
Investment property except for land, are depreciated on a 
straight-line basis over 5 to 50 years as estimated useful lives.
Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are 
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reviewed at the end of each reporting date and adjusted, if 
appropriate.  The change is accounted for as a change in an 
accounting estimate.

(k)  Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets, or disposal groups comprising assets and 
liabilities, that are expected to be recovered primarily through 
sale rather than through continuing use, are classified as held 
for sale.  In order to be classified as held for sale, the asset (or 
disposal group) must be available for immediate sale in its 
present condition and its sale must be highly probable.  The 
assets or disposal group that are classified as non-current as-
sets held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying 
amount and fair value less cost to sell.
The Group recognizes an impairment loss for any initial or 
subsequent write-down of an asset (or disposal group) to fair 
value less costs to sell, and a gain for any subsequent increase 
in fair value less costs to sell, up to the cumulative impair-
ment loss previously recognized in accordance with K-IFRS 
1036, ‘Impairment of Assets’.
A non-current asset that is classified as held for sale or part of 
a disposal group classified as held for sale is not depreciated 
(or amortized).

(l)  Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial assets, 
other than assets arising from employee benefits, invento-
ries, deferred tax assets and non-current assets held for sale, 
are reviewed at the end of the reporting period to determine 
whether there is any indication of impairment.  If any such 
indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is esti-
mated.  Goodwill and intangible assets that have indefinite 
useful lives or that are not yet available for use, irrespective 
of whether there is any indication of impairment, are tested 
for impairment annually by comparing their recoverable 
amount to their carrying amount.
For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the 
smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows that are 
largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or 
group of assets (“CGU”). The recoverable amount of an asset 
or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value 
less costs to sell.  The value in use is estimated by applying a 
pre-tax discount rate that reflect current market assessments 
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset 
or CGU for which estimated future cash flows have not been 
adjusted, to the estimated future cash flows expected to be 
generated by the asset or CGU.
An impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss if the carrying 
amount of an asset or a CGU exceeds its recoverable amount.
Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated to 

each CGU that is expected to benefit from the synergies aris-
ing from the goodwill acquired.  Any impairment identified at 
the CGU level will first reduce the carrying value of goodwill 
and then be used to reduce the carrying amount of the other 
assets in the CGU on a pro rata basis.   Except for impair-
ment losses in respect of goodwill which are never reversed, 
an impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in 
the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.  An 
impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s 
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that 
would have been determined, net of depreciation or amorti-
zation, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

(m)  Leases

The Group classifies and accounts for leases as either a fi-
nance or operating lease, depending on the terms.  Leases 
where the Group assumes substantially all of the risks and 
rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases.  All oth-
er leases are classified as operating leases.

① Finance leases
At the commencement of the lease term, the Group recogniz-
es as finance assets and finance liabilities in its consolidated 
statements of financial position, the lower amount of the fair 
value of the leased property and the present value of the min-
imum lease payments, each determined at the inception of 
the lease.  Any initial direct costs are added to the amount 
recognized as an asset.
Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the fi-
nance charge and the reduction of the outstanding liability.  
The finance charge is allocated to each period during the 
lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest 
on the remaining balance of the liability.  Contingent rents are 
charged as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.
The depreciable amount of a leased asset is allocated to each 
accounting period during the period of expected use on a sys-
tematic basis consistent with the depreciation policy the lessee 
adopts for depreciable assets that are owned.  If there is no 
reasonable certainty that the lessee will obtain ownership by 
the end of the lease term, the asset is fully depreciated over 
the shorter of the lease term and its useful life.  The Group re-
views to determine whether the leased asset may be impaired.

② Operating leases
Leases where the lessor retains a significant portion of the 
risks and rewards of ownership are classified as operating 
leases.  Payments made under operating leases (net of any 
incentives received from the lessor) are recognized in profit 
or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Buildings
Structures
Machinery 
Vehicles
Furniture and fixtures
Tools and equipment
Display fixtures
Other property, plant and equipment  
(“Other PP&E”)

Useful lives (years)
 5 ~ 50
 2 ~ 40
 3 ~ 30
 5 ~ 10

 2 ~ 7
 2 ~ 15
 2 ~ 20
 3 ~ 40

Industrial property rights
Rights to use facility
Film copyrights 

Other intangible assets

Useful lives (years)
5 ~ 10
5 ~ 20

Actual revenue as a percentage of 
total estimated revenue

2 ~ 10
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(n)  Borrowing costs

The Group capitalizes borrowing costs directly attributable to 
the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying as-
set as part of the cost of that asset.  Other borrowing costs are 
recognized in expense as incurred.  A qualifying asset is an as-
set that requires a substantial period of time to get ready for its 
intended use or sale.  Financial assets and inventories that are 
manufactured or otherwise produced over a short period of 
time are not qualifying assets.  Assets that are ready for their 
intended use or sale when acquired are not qualifying assets.
To the extent that the Group borrows funds specifically for 
the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the Group deter-
mines the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitaliza-
tion as the actual borrowing costs incurred on that borrowing 
during the period less any investment income on the tempo-
rary investment of those borrowings. 
To the extent that the Group borrows funds generally and 
uses them for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the 
Group shall determine the amount of borrowing costs eligible 
for capitalization by applying a capitalization rate to the ex-
penditures on that asset.  The capitalization rate shall be the 
weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to the bor-
rowings of the Group that are outstanding during the period, 
other than borrowings made specifically for the purpose of 
obtaining a qualifying asset.  The amount of borrowing costs 
that the Group capitalizes during a period shall not exceed the 
amount of borrowing costs incurred during that period.

(o)  Non-derivative financial liabilities

The Group classifies non-derivative financial liabilities into fi-
nancial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss or other fi-
nancial liabilities in accordance with the substance of the con-
tractual arrangement and the definitions of financial liabilities.  
The Group recognizes financial liabilities in the consolidated 
statement of financial position when the Group becomes a 
party to the contractual provisions of the financial liability.

① Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include 
financial liabilities held for trading or designated as such 
upon initial recognition.  Subsequent to initial recognition, 
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are 
measured at fair value, and changes therein are recognized in 
profit or loss.  Upon initial recognition, transaction costs that 
are directly attributable to the acquisition are recognized in 
profit or loss as incurred.

② Other financial liabilities
Non-derivative financial liabilities other than financial liabil-
ities at fair value through profit or loss are classified as other 

financial liabilities.  At the date of initial recognition, other fi-
nancial liabilities are measured at fair value minus transaction 
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition.  Subse-
quent to initial recognition, other financial liabilities are mea-
sured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.
The Group derecognizes a financial liability from the con-
solidated statement of financial position when it is extin-
guished (i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is 
discharged, cancelled or expires).

(p)  Employee benefits

① Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits are employee benefits that are 
expected to be settled wholly before twelve months after the 
end of the annual reporting period in which the employees 
render the related services.  When an employee has rendered 
service to the Group during an accounting period, the Group 
recognizes the undiscounted amount of short-term employee 
benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service.

② Other long-term employee benefits 
Other long-term employee benefits include employee bene-
fits that are expected to be settled beyond 12 months after the 
end of the annual reporting period in which the employees 
render the related service.  The Group’s net obligation in re-
spect of long-term employee benefits is the amount of future 
benefit that employees have earned in return for their service 
in the current and prior periods.  That benefit is discounted to 
determine its present value.  Remeasurements are recognized 
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

③ Retirement benefits: defined contribution plans
When an employee has rendered service to the Group during 
a period, the Group recognizes the contribution payable to 
a defined contribution plan in exchange for that service as a 
liability (accrued expense), after deducting any contribution 
already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the 
contribution due for service before the end of the reporting 
period, the Group recognizes that excess as an asset (prepaid 
expense) to the extent that the prepayment will lead to a re-
duction in future payments or a cash refund.

④ Retirement benefits: defined benefit plans
The Group’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit 
plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the 
amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the 
current and prior periods, discounting that amount and de-
ducting the fair value of any plan assets.
The calculation of defined benefit obligations is performed 
annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit cred-
it method.  When the calculation results in a potential asset 

for the Group, the recognized asset is limited to the present 
value of economic benefits available in the form of any future 
refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to 
the plan.  To calculate the present value of economic benefits, 
consideration is given to any applicable minimum funding 
requirements.
Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which 
comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets 
(excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, 
excluding interest), are recognized immediately in OCI.  The 
Group determines the net interest expense (income) on the 
net defined benefit liability (asset) for the period by applying 
the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obliga-
tion at the beginning of the annual period to the then-net de-
fined benefit liability (asset), taking into account any changes 
in the net defined benefit liability (asset) during the period as 
a result of contributions and benefit payments.  Net interest 
expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans 
are recognized in profit or loss.
When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is 
curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to past 
service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognized im-
mediately in profit or loss.  The Group recognizes gains and 
losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the 
settlement occurs.

(q)  Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present le-
gal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, it is 
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic 
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable 
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
The risks and uncertainties that inevitably surround many 
events and circumstances are taken into account in reaching 
the best estimate of a provision.  Where the effect of the time 
value of money is material, provisions are determined at the 
present value of the expected future cash flows.
Where some or all of the expenditures required to settle a 
provision are expected to be reimbursed by another party, 
the reimbursement is recognized when, and only when, it is 
virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the en-
tity settles the obligation.  The reimbursement is presented as 
a separate asset. Provisions are reviewed at the end of each 
reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current best esti-
mates.  If it is no longer probable that an outflow of resources 
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation, the provision is reversed.

(r)  Foreign currencies

① Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respec-
tive functional currencies of Group entities at exchange rates 
at the dates of the transactions.  Monetary assets and liabili-
ties denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated to the 
functional currency using the reporting date’s exchange rate.  
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign 
currencies that are measured at fair value are retranslated to 
the functional currency at the exchange rate at the date that 
the fair value was determined.
Foreign currency differences arising on retranslation are rec-
ognized in profit or loss, except for differences arising on the 
retranslation of available-for-sale equity instruments, a finan-
cial liability designated as a hedge of the net investment in a 
foreign operation, or qualifying cash flow hedges, which are 
recognized in other comprehensive income.  Non-monetary 
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign 
currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date of 
the transaction.

② Foreign operations
If the presentation currency of the Group is different from a 
foreign operation’s functional currency, the financial state-
ments of the foreign operation are translated into the presen-
tation currency using the following methods:
The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, whose func-
tional currency is not the currency of a hyperinflationary 
economy, are translated to presentation currency at exchange 
rates at the reporting date.  The income and expenses of for-
eign operations are translated to functional currency at ex-
change rates at the dates of the transactions.  Foreign curren-
cy differences are recognized in other comprehensive income.
Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign opera-
tion and any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts 
of assets and liabilities arising on the acquisition of that for-
eign operation is treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign 
operation.  Thus they are expressed in the functional currency 
of the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.
When a foreign operation is disposed of, the relevant amount 
in the translation is transferred to profit or loss as part of the 
profit or loss on disposal.  On the partial disposal of a subsid-
iary that includes a foreign operation, the relevant proportion 
of such cumulative amount is reattributed to non-controlling 
interest.  In any other partial disposal of a foreign operation, 
the relevant proportion is reclassified to profit or loss.
Foreign exchange gains or losses arising from a monetary 
item receivable from or payable to a foreign operation, the 
settlement of which is neither planned nor likely to occur in 
the foreseeable future and which in substance is considered 
to form part of the net investment in the foreign operation, 
are recognized in other comprehensive income in the trans-
lation reserve.
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(s)  Equity capital
     
① Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.  Incremental costs 
directly attributable to the issuance of ordinary shares and 
share options are recognized as a deduction from equity, net 
of any tax effects.
When the Group repurchases its share capital, the amount 
of the consideration paid is recognized as a deduction from 
equity and classified as treasury shares.  The profits or losses 
from the purchase, disposal, reissue, or retirement of trea-
sury shares are not recognized as current profit or loss.  If the 
Group acquires and retains treasury shares, the consideration 
paid or received is directly recognized in equity.

② Hybrid securities
Debt and equity instruments issued by the Group are clas-
sified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance 
with the substance of the arrangement and the definitions 
of financial liability and an equity instrument.  When the 
Group has an unconditional right to avoid delivering cash or 
another financial asset to settle a contractual obligation, the 
Group’s hybrid securities are classified as equity instruments.

(t)  Revenue

Revenue from sale of goods, rendering of services or use of 
the Group assets is measured at the fair value of the consid-
eration received or receivable, net of returns, trade discounts 
and volume rebates.  

① Sales of goods
Revenue is recognized when persuasive evidence exists, 
usually in the form of an executed sales agreement, that the 
significant risks and rewards of ownership have been trans-
ferred to the buyer, recovery of the consideration is probable, 
the associated costs and possible return of goods can be esti-
mated reliably, there is no continuing management involve-
ment with the goods, and the amount of revenue can be mea-
sured reliably.
The Group recognizes sales on a gross basis for merchan-
dise of which the Group bears the overall inventory risk in 
connection with purchase contracts with vendors where the 
merchandise may only be returned for a full refund prior to 
the end of the relevant season (for seasonal merchandise) or 
within 90 days from delivery (for non-seasonal merchandise).  
The Group recognizes sales on a net basis for merchandise 
that may be returned to vendors at any time.

② Customer loyalty programmes 
For customer loyalty programmes, the fair value of the con-
sideration received or receivable from the initial sale is al-

located between the award credits (“points”) and the other 
components of the sale.  The Group supplies all of the awards 
with its products.  The amount allocated to the points is esti-
mated by reference to the fair value of its products for which 
they could be redeemed, since the fair value of the points 
themselves is not directly measurable.  The fair value of its 
products is estimated taking into account the expected re-
demption rate and the timing of such expected redemptions.  
Such amount is deferred and revenue is recognized only 
when the points are redeemed and the Group has fulfilled its 
obligations to supply its products.

③ Commissions
When the Group acts in the capacity of an agent rather than 
as the principal in a transaction, the revenue recognized is the 
net amount of commission made by the Group.

④ Rental income
Rental income from investment property, net of lease incen-
tives granted, is recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line 
basis over the term of the lease.

⑤ Income of card business
The Group recognizes interest and fee income from cardhold-
ers and merchants on an accrual basis.  Certain fees associat-
ed with lending activities which meet specified criteria, are 
deferred and amortized over the life of the loan as an adjust-
ment to the carrying amount of the loan.  The amortization of 
deferred fee is recognized as operating revenue.

(u)  Finance income and finance costs 	

Finance income comprises interest income on funds invest-
ed (including available-for-sale financial assets), dividend 
income, gains on the disposal of available-for-sale financial 
assets, changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value 
through profit or loss, and gains on hedging instruments that 
are recognized in profit or loss.  Interest income is recognized 
as it accrues in profit or loss, using the effective interest meth-
od.  Dividend income is recognized in profit or loss on the 
date that the Group’s right to receive payment is established, 
which in the case of quoted securities is the ex-dividend date.
Finance costs comprise interest expense on borrowings, un-
winding of the discount on provisions, dividends on prefer-
ence shares classified as liabilities, changes in the fair value of 
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, impairment 
losses recognized on financial assets, and losses on hedging 
instruments that are recognized in profit or loss.  Borrowing 
costs that are not directly attributable to the acquisition, con-
struction or production of a qualifying asset are recognized in 
profit or loss using the effective interest method.

Lotte Shopping Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries
December 31, 2016 and 2015

(v)  Income taxes

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax.  Cur-
rent tax and deferred tax are recognized in profit or loss except 
to the extent that it relates to a business combination, or items 
recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.
	
①  Current tax
Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the tax-
able profit or loss for the year, using tax rates enacted or sub-
stantively enacted at the end of the reporting period and any 
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.  The tax-
able profit is different from the accounting profit for the period 
since the taxable profit is calculated excluding the temporary 
differences, which will be taxable or deductible in determining 
taxable profit (tax loss) of future periods, and non-taxable or 
non-deductible items from the accounting profit.

② Deferred tax
The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax 
assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from 
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the re-
porting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its 
assets and liabilities.
The Group recognizes a deferred tax liability for all taxable 
temporary differences associated with investments in sub-
sidiaries, associates, and interests in joint ventures, except to 
the extent that the Group is able to control the timing of the 
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that 
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable 
future.  The Group recognizes a deferred tax asset for all de-
ductible temporary differences arising from investments in 
subsidiaries and associates, to the extent that it is probable 
that the temporary difference will reverse in the foreseeable 
future and taxable profit will be available against which the 
temporary difference can be utilized.
The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at 
the end of each reporting period and reduces the carrying 
amount to the extent that it is no longer probable that suf-
ficient taxable profit will be available to allow the benefit of 
part or all of that deferred tax asset to be utilized.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax 
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset 
is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax 
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the 
end of the reporting period.  The measurement of deferred 
tax liabilities and deferred tax assets reflects the tax conse-
quences that would follow from the manner in which the 
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period to recover 
or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a 
legally enforceable right to offset the related current tax lia-

bilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by 
the same tax authority and they intend to settle current tax 
liabilities and assets on a net basis.

(w)  Earnings per share 

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share 
(EPS) data for its ordinary shares.  Basic EPS is calculated 
by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary share-
holders of the Company by the weighted average number of 
ordinary shares outstanding during the period, adjusted for 
own shares held.  Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the 
profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the 
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding, 
adjusted for own shares held, for the effects of all dilutive 
potential ordinary shares, which comprise convertible notes. 

(x)  Emission Rights

The Group accounts for greenhouse gases emission right and 
the relevant liability as below pursuant to the Act on Alloca-
tion and Trading of Greenhouse Gas Emission which became 
effective in 2015.

① Greenhouse Gases Emission Right
Greenhouse Gases Emission Right consists of emission al-
lowances which are allocated from the government free of 
charge or purchased from the market.  The cost includes any 
directly attributable costs incurred during the normal course 
of business.
Emission rights held for the purpose of performing the ob-
ligation is classified as an intangible asset and is initially 
measured at cost and are carried at cost less accumulated im-
pairment losses after initial recognition.  Emission rights held 
for short-swing profits are classified as current asset and are 
measured at fair value with any changes in fair value recog-
nized as profit or loss in the respective reporting period.
The Group derecognizes an emission right asset when the 
emission allowance is unusable, disposed or submitted to 
government in which the future economic benefits are no 
longer expected to be probable.

② Emission liability
Emission liability is a present obligation of submitting emis-
sion rights to the government with regard to emission of 
greenhouse gas.  Emission liability is recognized when out-
flow of resources in performing the obligation is probable 
and the costs required to perform the obligation are reliably 
estimable.  Emission liability is an amount of estimated obli-
gations for emission rights to be submitted to the government 
for the performing period.  The emission liability is measured 
based on the expected quantity of emission for the perform-
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ing period in excess of emission allowance in possession and 
the unit price for such emission rights in the market at the 
end of the reporting period.

(y)  New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

The following new standards, interpretations and amend-
ments to existing standards have been published but are not 
mandatory for the Group for annual periods beginning on 
January 1, 2016, and the Group has not early adopted them.
Management is in the process of evaluating the impact of the 
amendments on the Group’s consolidated financial statements. 

① K-IFRS 1109 ‘Financial Instruments’
K-IFRS 1109, published on September 25, 2015 which replac-
es existing guidance in K-IFRS 1039 Financial Instruments: 
Recognition and Measurement, is effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after January 1, 2018, with early adoption 
permitted.  The Group currently plans to apply K-IFRS1109 
for the year beginning on January 1, 2018.

K-IFRS 1109 will generally be applied retrospectively, except 
for the following:
- �exemption allowing the Group not to restate comparative 

information for prior periods with respect to classification 
and measurement including impairment changes; and 

- �Prospective application of new hedge accounting except for 
those specified in K-IFRS 1109 for retrospective application 
such as accounting for the time value of options and the for-
ward element of forward contracts.

Key features of the new standard, K-IFRS 1109 includes new 
classification and measurement approach for financial assets 
that reflects the business model in which assets are managed 
and their cash flow characteristics, impairment methodolo-
gy reflects based on changes in ‘expected credit losses’ (ECL) 
model for financial assets, and expanded scope of hedged 
items and hedging instrument which qualify for hedge ac-
counting and changes in assessment method for effect of 
hedging relationships.
To ensure smooth implementation of K-IFRS1109, the Group 
needs to assess the financial impact of adopting K-IFRS 1109, 
to formulate the accounting policy, and to design, implement 
and enhance the accounting system and related controls. The 
expected quantitative impact of adopting K-IFRS 1109 on the 
Group’s financial statements cannot be reliably estimated be-
cause it will be dependent on the financial instruments that 
the Group holds and economic conditions at that time as well 
as accounting elections and judgments that it will make in 
the future.
The Group plans to change the accounting process and in-
ternal control and to assess the financial impact on its con-

solidated financial statements resulting from the adoption 
of K-IFRS 1109 by December 31, 2017. Expected impacts on 
consolidated financial statements upon adoption of K-IFRS 
1109 are generally categorized as follows:

Classification and measurement of financial assets
Classification of financial assets under K-IFRS 1109 is driven 
by the entity’s business model for managing financial assets 
and their cash flow characteristics.  This contains three prin-
cipal classification categories: financial assets measured at 
amortized cost, fair value through other comprehensive in-
come (FVOCI) and fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL). 
Derivatives embedded in contracts where the host is a finan-
cial asset are never bifurcated. Instead, the hybrid financial 
instrument as a whole is assessed for classification.  Details 
of the classification based on business models and cash flow 
characteristics are as follows:

As new classification requirements for financial assets un-
der K-IFRS 1109 are more stringent than requirements under 
K-IFRS 1039, the adoption of the new standard may result in 
increase in financial assets designated as FVTPL and higher 
volatility in profit or loss of the Group.
As of December 31, 2016, the Group has financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss amounting to ₩67,059 million, 
loans and receivables amounting to ₩12,415,872 million, 
available-for-sale financial assets amounting ₩627,288 mil-
lion.  K-IFRS 1109, a financial asset shall be measured at am-
ortised cost if both of the following conditions are met: the fi-
nancial asset is held within a business model whose objective 
is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash 
flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise 
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.  
The Group has recognized the loans and receivables as amor-
tized cost as of December 31, 2016.
A financial asset is measured at FVOCI under K-IFRS 1109 if 
the objective of the business model is achieved both by col-
lecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and 

the asset’s contractual cash flows represent solely payments 
of principal and interest. As of December 31, 2016, the Group 
has W14,485 million of debt instruments classified as avail-
able-for-sale financial assets.
Under K-IFRS 1109, equity instruments that are not held for 
trading may be irrevocably designated as FVOCI on initial 
recognition with no recycling of amounts from OCI to profit 
and loss. As of December 31, 2016, the Group has W612,802 
million of available-for-sale equity instruments.
K-IFRS 1109, a financial asset shall be measured at fair value 
through profit or loss unless it is measured at amortised cost 
or at fair value through other comprehensive income.  As of 
December 31, 2016, the Group has debt instruments classified 
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss amount-
ing to W10,022 million and has no equity instruments classi-
fied as financial assets at fair value through profit or losses.

Classification and measurement of financial liabilities
Under K-IFRS 1109, for the financial liabilities designated as 
FVTPL using the fair value option, the element of gains or 
losses attributable to changes in the own credit risk should 
normally be recognized in OCI, with the remainder recog-
nized in profit or loss. These amounts recognized in OCI 
are not recycled to profit or loss even when the liability is 
derecognized. However, if presentation of the fair value 
change in respect of the liability’s credit risk in OCI results 
in or enlarges an accounting mismatch in profit or loss, gains 
and losses are entirely presented in profit or loss.  Adoption of 
K-IFRS 1109 may result in decrease in profit or loss, since the 
amount of fair value changes that is attributable to changes 
in the credit risk of the liability will be presented in OCI.  As 
of December 31, 2016, the Group has financial liability at fair 
value through profit or loss amounting to ₩26,281 million.

Impairment : financial assets and contract assets
The current impairment requirements under K-IFRS 1039 are 
based on an ‘incurred loss model’, where the impairment ex-
ists if there is objective evidence as a result of one or more 
events that occurred after the initial recognition of an asset.  
However, K-IFRS 1109 replaces the incurred loss model in 
K-IFRS 1039 with an ‘expected credit loss model’ which ap-
plies to debt instruments measured at amortized cost or at 
fair value through other comprehensive income.
Under K-IFRS 1109, the Group should recognize a loss allow-
ance or provision at an amount equal to 12-month expected 
credit losses or lifetime expected credit losses for financial as-
sets determined by the extent of probable credit deterioration 
since initial recognition as explained below.  Therefore, the 
new impairment requirements are expected to result in earli-
er recognition of credit losses compared to the incurred loss 
model of K-IFRS 1039.

K-IFRS 1109 allows the Group to only recognize the cumu-
lative changes in lifetime expected credit losses since initial 
recognition as a loss allowance for purchased or originated 
credit-impaired financial assets at the reporting date.
As of December 31, 2016, the Group has debt instruments rec-
ognized as amortized cost amounting to ₩12,415,872 million 
won(loans and receivables), recognized as available-for-sale 
financial assets amounting to ₩14,485 million won and set a 
loss allowance amounting to ₩243,270 million.

Hedge accounting
K-IFRS 1109 maintains the mechanics of hedge accounting 
from those in K-IFRS 1039. However, K-IFRS 1109 replaces 
existing rule-based requirements under K-IFRS 1039 that 
are complex and difficult to apply with principle based re-
quirement focusing more on the Group’s risk management 
purposes and procedures. Under K-IFRS 1109, more hedging 
instruments and hedged items are permitted and 80%-125% 
effectiveness requirement is removed.
By complying with the hedging rules in K-IFRS 1109, the 
Group may apply hedge accounting for transactions that cur-
rently do not meet the hedging criteria under K-IFRS 1039 
thereby reducing volatility in profit or loss.
As of December 31, 2016, the Group recognized the total 
amount of ₩219,760 million as hedged assets and W5,190 
million as hedged liabilities that applied hedge accounting 
and changes in fair value of cash flow hedge in the amount of 
₩6,878 million (after deducting the tax effect) was recognized 
in OCI for the year ended December 31, 2016. Upon initial ap-
plication of K-IFRS 1109, the Group may choose as its account-
ing policy to continue to apply hedge accounting requirements 
under K-IFRS 1039 instead of the requirements in K-IFRS 1109. 
The Group is still in the process of evaluating whether to make 
such accounting policy election upon adoption date.

Business model  
assessment
Hold to collect contractual  
cash flows
Hold to collect contractual  
cash flows and sell financial assets
Hold to sell financial assets  
and others

 
Solely payments of  
principal and interest
Amortized cost(*1) 

FVOCI- measured  
at fair value (*1)
FVTPL-measured  
at fair value

 
Others 

FVTPL- 
measured at 
fair value (*2) 
 
 

Contractual cash flow characteristics

(*1) �To eliminate or significantly reduce the accounting mismatch, the Group may irrevocably designate 

a financial asset as measured at FVTPL using the fair value option at initial recognition.

(*2) �Equity instruments that are not held for trading may be irrevocably designated as FVOCI using the 

fair value option.

Stages (*1)
No significant increase in 
credit risk since initial recog-
nition (*2) 
 

Significant increase in credit 
risk since initial recognition
Objective evidence of credit 
risk impairment 

 
Stage 1 
 
 
 

Stage 2 

Stage 3 
 

Loss allowance
Loss allowances are determined for 
the amount of the expected credit 
losses that result from default events 
that are possible within 12 months 
after the reporting date.
Loss allowances are determined for 
the amount of the expected credit 
losses that result from all possible 
default events over the expected life 
of the financial instrument.

(*1) �Under K-IFRS 1115, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (see note 3 (26) (2)), for trade receiv-

ables and contract assets arising with no significant credit risk, loss allowances are recognized at 

an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.  However, for trade receivables and contract 

assets with a significant financing component arising under K-IFRS 1115, the Group may choose as 

its accounting policy to recognize loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit 

losses.  In addition, for receivables under lease arrangement, the Group may choose to recognize 

loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

(*2) �The Group may assume that a financial asset’s credit risk has not increased significantly since initial 

recognition if the asset has low credit risk at the reporting date.
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② K-IFRS 1115 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’
K-IFRS 1115, published in November 6, 2015, establishes a 
comprehensive framework for determining whether, how 
much and when revenue is recognized.  It replaces existing 
revenue recognition guidance, including K-IFRS 1018, Reve-
nue, K-IFRS 1011, Construction Contracts, K-IFRS 2013, Rev-
enue—Barter Transactions Involving Advertising Services, 
K-IFRS 2113, Customer Loyalty Programmes, K-IFRS 2115, 
Revenue—Barter Transactions Involving Advertising Ser-
vices, and K-IFRS 2118, Transfers of assets from customers.  
K-IFRS 1115 is effective for annual reporting periods begin-
ning on or after January 1, 2018, with early adoption permit-
ted.  The Group will adopt K-IFRS 1115 from the beginning 
of the financial year beginning on or after January 1, 2018 
and apply to the comparative historical reporting periods 
presented in accordance with the K-IFRS 1008, Accounting 
Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors retro-
spectively and will adopt the simplified method so that the 
Group does not restate the consolidated financial statements.

K-IFRS 1018 provides separate revenue recognition criteria 
by transaction type which include sale of goods, rendering of 
services, and use of entity assets by others yielding interest, 
royalties and dividends. However, K-IFRS 1115 introduces a 
five-step model for revenue recognition that focuses on the 
‘transfer of control’ rather than the ‘transfer of risks and re-
wards’. The steps in five-step model are as follows:

- �identification of the contract with a customer;
- �identification of the performance obligations in the contract;
- �determination of the transaction price;
- �allocation of the transaction price to the performance obliga-

tions in the contract; and
- �recognition of revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a per-

formance obligation.

The Group has not been able to undertake preparatory work 
related to the adoption of K-IFRS 1115, it has not been able 
to analyze the financial impact of the adoption of this stan-
dard on its consolidated financial statements.  The Group will 
complete the analysis of the financial impact of adopting the 
standard in 2017.

③ K-IFRS 1013, ‘Statement of Cash Flows’
K-IFRS 1013 requires disclosure of changes in liabilities aris-
ing from financial activities.  The Group will adopt   K-IFRS 
1107 from the beginning of the financial year beginning on or 
after January 1, 2017.

④ K-IFRS 1012, ‘Income Taxes
K-IFRS 1012 includes decreases below cost in the carrying 
amount of a fixed-rate debt instrument measured at fair value 

for which the tax base remains at cost give rise to a deductible 
temporary difference.  This applies irrespective of whether 
the debt instrument’s holder expects to recover the carrying 
amount of the debt instrument by sale or by use, ie continu-
ing to hold it, or whether it is probable that the issuer will 
pay all the contractual cash flows.  The probable inflow of 
taxable economic benefits may exceed the carrying amount of 
the asset.  In evaluating whether it will have sufficient taxable 
profit in future periods, an entity compares the deductible 
temporary differences with future taxable profit that excludes 
tax deductions resulting from the reversal of those deductible 
temporary differences.  The Group will adopt K-IFRS 1012 
from the beginning of the financial year beginning on or after 
January 1, 2017.

Significant business combinations of the Group in 2016 and 
2015 are as follows:

① Acquisition of L.pay Service Business
The Group entered into an agreement to acquire L.pay Ser-
vice Business from Mybi.Co.Ltd on May 30, 2016 and the 
Group consummated the acquisition on June 30, 2016.

② Acquisition of LOTTE.COM INC
On February 26, 2015, the Group acquired 15.62% of capital 
stock of LOTTE.COM INC, in which the Group held 34.39% 
of its capital stock prior to the acquisition.  As a result of the 
acquisition of additional interests, the Group obtained control 
over LOTTE.COM INC by holding 50.01% of its capital stock.

③ Acquisition of LOTTE PS NET
The Group and LOTTE.COM INC held 31.91% and 30.87% of 
LOTTE PS NET, respectively, prior to the Group’s obtaining 
control over LOTTE.COM INC in February 2015.  As a result 
of obtaining control over LOTTE.COM INC, the Group ob-
tained control over LOTTE PS NET by holding 62.78% of its 
capital stock.	

④ Acquisition of Lotte Department Store Masan Co., Ltd.
The Group entered into an agreement to acquire department 
stores (MASAN store and BUSAN CENTRAL store) from 
DAEWOO INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION on Septem-
ber 2, 2014 and the Group consummated the acquisition on 
June 30, 2015.

5. Business Combination 

The following summarizes the recognized amounts of assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date.

December 31, 2015December 31, 2016

Accounts
Lotte Department 

Store Masan Co., Ltd

3,725
2,560

453
16,673

1,222
-

763
25,396

12,741
- 

9,752

464
975

23,932
1,464

 
L.pay Service 

-
-
-
- 
 

1,607
5,788

-
7,395

-
- 

-

-
-
-

7,395

LOTTE.COM INC

12,872
86,402

1,560
34,521

9,099
17,073

6,256
167,783

128,632
- 

5,408

944
163

135,147
32,636

LOTTE PS NET

26
1,526

-
728

49,870
36

9
52,195

4,370
27,000 

11,790

-
12,300
55,460
(3,265)

Korean won (millions)

The following summarizes major classes of consideration transferred.

Korean won (millions) December 31, 2015December 31, 2016

Description
Fair value of the Group’s existing equity interest (*)
Cash and cash equivalents
Total consideration transferred
Cash and cash equivalents held by subsidiary acquired
Net cash inflow (outflow)

Lotte Department 
Store Masan Co., Ltd

-
7,630
7,630
3,725

(3,905)

 
L.pay Service 

-
7,687
7,687

-
(7,687)

LOTTE.COM INC
14,104
11,563
25,667
12,872

1,309

LOTTE PS NET
2,480

-
2,480

26
26

(*) �The Group recognized a gain on disposal of existing equity interests of W6,880 million upon consummation of the business combination.  The gain is included in financial income in the Group’s statement of compre-

hensive income for the year ended December 31, 2015.

Goodwill recognized as a result of business combinations is as follows:

Accounts
Total consideration transferred
Non-controlling interests

Subtotal
Less: Fair value of identifiable net assets

Goodwill

Lotte Department 
Store Masan Co., Ltd

7,630
-

7,630
(1,464)

6,166

 
L.pay Service 

7,687
-

7,687
(7,395)

292

LOTTE.COM INC
25,667
16,315
41,982

(32,636)
9,346

LOTTE PS NET
2,480

(1,215)
1,265
3,265
4,530

Korean won (millions) December 31, 2015December 31, 2016
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Trade receivables
Other receivables
Allowance for doubtful accounts

Total

December 31, 2015

621,014
349,065
(51,228)
918,851

December 31, 2016

692,751
367,420
(28,833)

1,031,338

Korean won (millions)

Trade and other receivables as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 are summarized as follows:

6. Trade and Other Receivables

Description 
Current:

Time deposits
Special deposits
Money Market Fund

Non-current:
Special deposits
Available-for-sale financial assets

Total

December 31, 2015

78,441
154,000

21,744

2,505
             21,408 

278,098

December 31, 2016

58,238
184,682

25,873

9,961
16,424

295,178

Korean won (millions)

Restricted deposits included in short-term and long-term financial instruments as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 are 
summarized as follows:

7. Restricted Deposits

Description 

Busan Bank and others
Industrial Bank of Korea and others
Citibank and others

Busan Bank and others
Busan City Hall and others

(a) The carrying amount and the fair value of financial instruments as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 are summarized as follows:

 
Cash and cash equivalents
Financial assets at fair value 
through profit or loss 
 
 
 
 

Loans and receivables (*1) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Available-for-sale financial 
assets 
 
 

Derivative assets held for 
the purpose of hedging 
 

 
Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term financial instruments
Long-term Financial Instruments
Current Derivative assets held for the  
purpose of trading
Non-current Derivative assets held for the 
purpose of trading
Subtotal
Current :
Trade and other receivables
Short-term financial instruments
Short-term loans
Accrued income
Current portion of deposits
Card financial assets
Non-current :
Long-term financial instruments
Long-term loans
Deposits
Accrued income
Subtotal
Marketable available-for-sale financial assets 
(*2)
Non-marketable available-for-sale financial 
assets (*3)
Subtotal
Current 
Non-current 
Subtotal
Total

December 31, 2016

Carrying  
amount 
2,269,177

40,003
10,022

1,312 

15,722 

67,059

1,031,338
865,432

15,008
36,169
89,751

8,853,173

9,958
52,186

1,462,840
18

12,415,873
280,520 

346,768 

627,288
78,401

141,368
219,769

15,599,166

Fair  
value

2,269,177
40,003
10,022

1,312 

15,722 

67,059

1,031,338
865,432

15,008
36,169
89,751

8,853,173

9,958
52,186

1,462,840
18

12,415,873
280,520 

346,768 

627,288
78,401

141,368
219,769

15,599,166

December 31, 2015

Fair  
value

1,751,268
60,003

-
- 

- 

60,003

918,851
1,221,935

12,136
37,664

107,947
8,178,959

2,507
54,909

1,361,193
8

11,896,109
282,887 

279,170 

562,057
53,868

108,519
162,387

14,431,824

Carrying  
amount
1,751,268

60,003
-
- 

- 

60,003

918,851
1,221,935

12,136
37,664

107,947
8,178,959

2,507
54,909

1,361,193
8

11,896,109
282,887 

279,170 

562,057
53,868

108,519
162,387

14,431,824

Korean won (millions)

8. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

(*1) Book value is considered as a reasonable approximation value of fair value. 

(*2) Marketable available-for-sale financial assets traded in the active market are measured at fair value based on the market prices.

(*3) �Some of non-marketable available-for-sale financial assets that do not have a quoted market price in an active market are measured at fair value based on valuation of external valuation agencies as of the end of 

reporting period.  Others are recorded based on acquisition cost because either the fair value cannot be reliably measured or the difference between fair value and acquisition cost is immaterial.
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(b) Other financial assets as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 are summarized as follows:

 
Current:

Short-term financial instruments
Short-term loans
Available-for-sale financial assets
Accrued income
Deposits 
Card business financial assets
Derivative assets held for the purpose of trading
Derivative assets held for the purpose of hedging

Subtotal
Non-current:

Long-term financial instruments
Available-for-sale financial assets
Long-term loans
Deposits 
Accrued income
Derivative assets held for the purpose of trading
Derivative assets held for the purpose of hedging

Subtotal
Total

December 31, 2015

1,281,938
12,136

-
37,664

107,947
8,178,959

-
53,868

9,672,512

2,507
562,057

54,909
1,361,193

8
-

108,519
2,089,193

11,761,705

December 31, 2016

905,435
15,008

80
36,169
89,751

8,853,173
1,312

78,401
9,979,329

19,980
627,208

52,186
1,462,840

18
15,722

141,368
2,319,322

12,298,651

Korean won (millions)

Lotte Shopping Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries
December 31, 2016 and 2015

(c) Available-for-sale financial assets as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 are summarized as follows:

 
Marketable available-for-sale financial assets:
BNK Financial Group Inc.  
(Formerly, BS Financial Group Inc.)
Shinhan Financial Group Co., Ltd.
LOTTE FOOD CO.,LTD.
momo.com Inc.
Others

Subtotal
Non-marketable available-for-sale financial assets:
LOTTE Logistics Corp.
LOTTE rental co., ltd.
SPARX Asset Management Korea Co., Ltd.  
(Formerly, Cosmo Asset Management Co., Ltd.)
Lotte Global Logistics Co.,LTD.
Lotte Properties (Shenyang) Limited
Investment in government bonds
Others

Subtotal
Total

December 31, 2016

Percentage of 
ownership 

2.62% 

0.07%
3.45%

15.02%

4.64%
13.53%
17.70% 

3.62%
17.93%

Number of 
shares 

8,543,826 

311,118
47,180

21,333,420

66,308
1,592,072

149,807 

660,805
29,928,756

Acquisition 
cost

56,179 

2,247
10,167
37,684

5,622
111,899

4,000
164,967

50,118 

25,169
41,919
10,775
55,823

352,771
464,670

December 31, 2015

Carrying 
amount

55,248 

12,305
44,774

161,737
8,823

282,887

13,865
142,420

34,457 

41,919
386

46,123
46,123

279,170
562,057

Carrying  
amount

74,160 

14,078
30,620

154,828
6,834

280,520

17,729
165,622

29,962 

25,292
41,919
10,476
55,768

346,768
627,288

Korean won (millions)

(d) The carrying amount and the fair value of financial liabilities as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 are summarized as follows:

 
Financial liabilities at fair 
value through profit or loss  
 
 
 

Financial liabilities based on 
amortized cost (*) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Derivative liabilities held for 
the purpose of hedging 
 

 
Overseas convertible bonds
Current derivative liabilities held for the 
purpose of trading
Non-current derivative liabilities held for the 
purpose of trading
Subtotal
Current :

Trade and other payables
Short-term borrowings 
Current portion of long-term borrowings
Current portion of long-term debentures
Accrued expenses
Current portion of withholding deposit
Finance lease liabilities
Other liabilities

Non-current :
Long-term borrowings
Long-term debentures
Withholding deposit
Finance lease liabilities
Other liabilities

Subtotal
Current 
Non-current 

Subtotal
Total

December 31, 2016

Carrying  
amount 

-
14,420 

11,861 

26,281

5,785,352
1,537,255

903,232
2,618,126

333,554
241,622

25,721
10,132

1,706,080
7,718,255

206,949
19,826
17,560

21,123,664
896

4,294
5,190

21,155,135

Fair  
value

-
14,420 

11,861 

26,281

5,785,352
1,537,255

903,232
2,618,126

333,554
241,622

25,721
10,132

1,706,080
7,718,255

206,949
19,826
17,560

21,123,664
896

4,294
5,190

21,155,135

December 31, 2015

Fair  
value

113,440
- 

24,608 

138,048

5,465,907
1,789,819

467,641
1,896,239

276,716
244,524

11,282
665

1,856,538
7,959,900

201,134
32,870

5,595
20,208,830

602
15,345
15,947

20,362,825

Carrying  
amount

113,440
- 

24,608 

138,048

5,465,907
1,789,819

467,641
1,896,239

276,716
244,524

11,282
665

1,856,538
7,959,900

201,134
32,870

5,595
20,208,830

602
15,345
15,947

20,362,825

Korean won (millions)

(*) Book value is considered as a reasonable approximation value of fair value.

(e) Other financial liabilities as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 are summarized as follows:

 
Current:
Accrued expenses
Deposit received
Derivative liabilities held for the purpose of hedging
Derivative liabilities held for the purpose of trading
Finance lease liabilities assets
Others

Subtotal
Non-current:
Deposit received
Derivative liabilities held for the purpose of hedging
Derivative liabilities held for the purpose of trading
Finance lease liabilities
Other financial liabilities

Subtotal
Total

December 31, 2015

276,716
244,524

602
-

11,282
665

533,789

201,134
15,345
24,608
32,870

5,595
279,552
813,341

December 31, 2016

333,554
241,622

896
14,420
25,721
10,132

626,345

206,949
4,294

11,861
19,826
17,559

260,489
886,834

Korean won (millions)
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(f) The fair value hierarchy
The fair value measurements classified by fair value hierarchy as of December 31, 2016 are as follows:

Description 
Available-for-sale financial assets
Derivative assets

Total financial assets
Derivative liabilities

Total financial liabilities

Total

543,357
236,804
780,161

31,471
31,471

Level Ⅲ

248,352
17,034

265,386
26,281
26,281

Level Ⅱ

14,485
219,770
234,255

5,190
5,190

Level Ⅰ

280,520
-

280,520
-
-

Korean won (millions)

(g) Level 3 fair values
Changes in Level 3 fair values for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

 
Beginning of the year
Transfer in of Level 3
Gain (loss) included in finance costs
- Gain (loss) on valuation of derivative instruments
Gain (loss) included in OCI
- Net change in unrealized fair value of available-for-sale financial assets
Purchases
Disposal
Reclassification to investments in associates
End of the year

December 31, 2015

112,217
-

167
7,262

137,912
(84,132)

-

173,426

December 31, 2016

173,426
1,500

9,585
1,090

53,504
-
-

239,105

Korean won (millions)

The fair value measurements classified by fair value hierarchy as of December 31, 2015 are as follows:

In measuring Level 2 fair values, the Group used Strip & Bootstrapping method, etc. and the Group used the significant observ-
able inputs of risk-free rate, etc.
In measuring Level 3 fair values, the Group used discounted cash flows model, etc. and the Group used the significant unobserv-
able inputs of forecast annual revenue growth rate and risk-adjusted discount rate, etc.

Description 
Available-for-sale financial assets
Derivative assets

Total financial assets
Oversees convertible bonds
Derivative liabilities

Total financial liabilities

Total

481,307
162,387
643,694
113,440

40,555
153,995

Level Ⅲ

198,034
-

198,034
-

24,608
24,608

Level Ⅱ

386
162,387
162,773
113,440

15,947
129,387

Level Ⅰ

282,887
-

282,887
-
-
-

Korean won (millions)

Lotte Shopping Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries Lotte Shopping Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries
December 31, 2016 and 2015 December 31, 2016 and 2015

(h) Sensitivity analysis

For the fair values of available-for-sale financial assets and stock options, reasonably possible changes as of December 31, 2016 
to one of the significant unobservable inputs, holding other inputs constant, would have the following effects on fair values.

① Equity securities

Korean won (millions)

Description
Available-for-sale financial assets

Terminal growth rate

1% Increase
49,002

0.5% Increase
22,442

Discount rate

1% Increase
(45,888)

1% Decrease
62,570

② Stock options (liability-classified)

Korean won (millions)

Description
Stock options

Stock price volatility

1% Increase
4

1% Decrease
(2)

Discount rate

10% Increase
5,598

10% Decrease
(5,590)

(a) Inventories as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 are summarized as follows:

9. Inventories

 
Merchandise
Finished goods
Goods in process
Raw materials
Subsidiary materials
Supplies
Materials-in-transit
Unsold apartment units
Unfinished apartment units
Total

December 31, 2016

Acquisition  
cost 

2,979,195
14,855

1,529
678

-
2,002
4,593
8,488

345,373
3,356,713

Allowance for 
valuation

(27,962)
(4,248)

-
(126)

-
-
-
-
-

(32,336)

December 31, 2015

Book  
value

2,931,039 
12,781 

969 
848 

23 
2,244 
2,149 

29,412 
286,532 

3,265,997 

Allowance for 
valuation

(21,290)
(4,798)

- 
(125)

- 
- 
- 
- 
- 

(26,213)

Korean won (millions)
Book  
value

2,951,233
10,607

1,529
552

-
2,002
4,593
8,488

345,373
3,324,377

Acquisition  
cost

2,952,329 
17,579 

969 
973 

23 
2,244 
2,149 

29,412 
286,532 

3,292,210 

(b) �For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, the amount of inventories recognized as cost of goods sold and changes of 
allowance for valuation losses of inventories are summarized as follows:

 
Cost of goods sold:
- Amount of inventories recognized as cost of goods sold
- Changes of allowance for valuation losses of inventories

December 31, 2015

18,909,058 
8,402 

December 31, 2016

18,895,068
6,123

Korean won (millions)
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Other non-financial assets as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 are summarized as follows:

10. Other Non-financial Assets

 
Current:

Advance payments
Prepaid expenses
Prepaid value added tax
Other

Subtotal
Non-current:

Long-term advance payments
Long-term prepaid expenses (*)
Other

Subtotal
Total

December 31, 2015

132,282
174,145

78,909
60

385,396

183,727
1,226,136

3,942
1,413,805
1,799,201

December 31, 2016

80,152
178,655

64,059
-

322,866

218,595
1,055,386

4,218
1,278,199
1,601,065

Korean won (millions)

(*) Long-term prepaid expenses mainly consist of lease prepayments.

Non-current assets held for sale as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

11. Non-current assets held for sale

 
Land (*1)
Buildings (*1)
Tools and equipment(*2)

Total

December 31, 2015

              - 
              - 

          447 
       447 

December 31, 2016

          103 
       2,164 
              - 
     2,267 

Korean won (millions)

(*1) Since Lotte.com decided to dispose of its land and buildings in 2016, these assets were reclassified to non-current assets held for sale.

(*2) �Since Qingdao Lotte Mart Commercial Co., Ltd. closed the Deyang store and decided to dispose of its tools and equipment in 2015, these assets were reclassified to non-current assets held for sale.  In 2016, Qingd-

ao Lotte Mart Commercial Co., Ltd. discarded them.

December 31, 2016

Company
Lotte Station Building Co., Ltd.
Daehong Communications Co., Ltd.
Lotte Capital Co., Ltd.
Lotteria Co., Ltd.
FRL Korea Co., Ltd.
Lotte Asset Development Co., Ltd.
Lotte Trading Co., Ltd.
Lotte Europe Holdings B.V.
Coralis S.A.
Others

Total

 
Location 
Korea
Korea
Korea
Korea
Korea
Korea
Korea
Netherlands
Luxembourg

 
Major operation
Distribution
Advertisement agency
Capital
Restaurant chain
Retail
Real estate development
Product brokerage
Holding company
Holding company

 
Ownership (%) 

25.00
34.00
22.36
38.68
49.00
39.14
27.68
26.98
45.00

Balance at  
December 31, 2016

123,880
131,289
214,361
227,004
234,139

36,717
121,282

3,063
1,242

143,905
1,236,882

Korean won (millions)

(a) The details of associates as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 are summarized as follows:

12. Investments in Associates

December 31, 2015

Company
Lotte Station Building Co., Ltd.
Daehong Communications Co., Ltd.
Lotte Capital Co., Ltd.
Lotteria Co., Ltd.
FRL Korea Co., Ltd.
Lotte Asset Development Co., Ltd.
Lotte Trading Co., Ltd.
Lotte Europe Holdings B.V.
Coralis S.A.
Others

Total

 
Location
Korea
Korea
Korea
Korea
Korea
Korea
Korea
Netherlands
Luxembourg

 
Major operation
Distribution
Advertisement agency
Capital
Restaurant chain
Retail
Real estate development
Product brokerage
Holding company
Holding company

 
Ownership (%)

25.00 
34.00 
22.36 
38.68 
49.00 
39.14 
27.68 
26.98
45.00 

Balance at  
December 31, 2015

121,725
135,243
195,323
239,270
187,626

49,316
124,077

-
11,923

131,252
1,195,755

Korean won (millions)

(b) �Changes in investments in associates for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 are as follows:allowance for valuation 
losses of inventories are summarized as follows:

Adjustment to

 

Company
Lotte Station Building Co., Ltd.
Daehong Communications Co., Ltd.
Lotte Capital Co., Ltd.
Lotteria Co., Ltd.
FRL Korea Co., Ltd.
Lotte Asset Development Co., Ltd.
Lotte Trading Co., Ltd. 
Lotte Europe Holdings B.V.
Coralis S.A.
Others

Total

Balance at  
December 

31, 2016
123,880
131,289
214,361
227,004
234,139

36,717
121,282

3,063
1,242

143,905
1,236,882

 
 

Disposal
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

(6,296)
(6,296)

 
 

Others
8

496
(1,128)

185
-

(1,249)
(15)

-
-

(155)
(1,858)

 
Impair-

ment
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

(5,233)
(5,233)

 
Capital ad-

justment
822

(9,353)
(870)
(913)
8,806

(8,679)
(3,374)

323
(911)
(347)

(14,496)

Net  
income 

(loss)
8,707
5,583

23,270
(11,538)

51,182
(2,671)

594
2,740

(14,244)
(2,571)
61,052

 
Divi-

dends
(7,382)

(680)
(2,234)

-
(13,475)

-
-
-
-
-

(23,771)

 
Acquisi-

tion
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

4,474
27,255
31,729

 
Beginning 

balance
121,725
135,243
195,323
239,270
187,626

49,316
124,077

-
11,923

131,252
1,195,755

Korean won (millions)

2016

Adjustment to

 

Company
Lotte Station Building Co., Ltd.
Daehong Communications Co., Ltd.
Lotte Capital Co., Ltd.
Lotteria Co., Ltd.
FRL Korea Co., Ltd.
Lotte Asset Development Co., Ltd.
Lotte Trading Co., Ltd. 
Lotte Europe Holdings B.V.
Coralis S.A.
Others

Total

Balance at  
December 

31, 2016
123,880
131,289
214,361
227,004
234,139

36,717
121,282

3,063
1,242

143,905
1,236,882

 
 

Disposal
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

(12,003)
(12,003)

 
 

Others
-

(514)
(515)
(181)

-
335
525

4,696
-

(7,359)
(3,013)

 
Capital ad-

justment
1,130
7,711

24,962
1,197

481
(6,383)

(13,571)
(2,832)

(907)
7

11,795

 
Divi-

dends
(13,597)

(9)
(2,234)

-
(19,502)

-
-
-
-
-

(35,342)

Business 
combina-

tion
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

396
396

 
Acquisi-

tion
-
-
-
-
-

19,571
-

10,855
-

49,764
80,190

 
Beginning 

balance
123,646
122,989
152,953
241,347
161,831

40,871
134,725

11,731
37,616

119,377
1,147,086

Korean won (millions)

2015

Net 
income 

(loss)
10,546

5,066
20,157
(3,093)
44,816
(5,078)

2,398
(24,450)
(24,786)
(18,930)

6,646
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(c) �Financial information of significant associates as of and for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 are summarized as 
follows:

2016

 

Company
Lotte Station Building Co., Ltd.
Daehong Communications Co., Ltd. 
Lotte Capital Co., Ltd. (*2)
Lotteria Co., Ltd.
FRL Korea Co., Ltd.
Lotte Asset Development Co., Ltd.
Lotte Trading Co., Ltd.
Lotte Europe Holdings B.V.
Coralis S.A.

 
Current 

asset
237,320
254,288

6,895,449
277,565
515,676
586,147
303,709
106,119

41,557

Non- 
current  

asset
503,325
411,691

-
957,434
149,335
268,414
905,072
445,948
393,162

 
Current 

liabilities
235,457
242,477

5,933,572
416,345
186,627
676,089
359,721
151,624
130,374

 
 

Sales
582,892
405,222
882,237

1,124,880
1,208,517

224,788
683,149
103,682

30,669

Non- 
current 

liabilities
9,667

44,387
-

268,456
550

85,065
166,814
379,567
336,040

Operating 
income  

(loss)
53,117
21,253

141,161
6,490

127,213
9,750
4,634

10,049
(10,775)

Other  
comprehensive 

income (loss)
3,324

(24,813)
(3,839)

3,616
17,971

(23,565)
(11,758)

1,196
(2,023)

Total  
comprehensive 

income (loss) (*1)
38,153
(8,495)

101,590
(5,684)

122,426
(30,389)

(9,547)
56,253

(33,660)

Korean won (millions)

2015

 

Company
Lotte Station Building Co., Ltd.
Daehong Communications Co., Ltd. 
Lotte Capital Co., Ltd. (*2)
Lotteria Co., Ltd.
FRL Korea Co., Ltd.
Lotte Asset Development Co., Ltd.
Lotte Trading Co., Ltd.
Lotte Europe Holdings B.V.
Coralis S.A.

 
Current 

asset
277,785
248,298

6,361,468
223,909
510,173
375,566
289,406

73,640
28,279

Non- 
current  

asset
450,438
451,607

-
843,767
144,316
239,175
915,687
416,992
409,687

 
Current 

liabilities
232,636
255,311

5,484,954
343,767
270,327
138,391
317,194
252,318

10,298

 
 

Sales
612,651
398,229
803,553

1,122,763
1,107,387

155,020
686,409

98,713
25,560

Non- 
current 

liabilities
8,689

53,698
-

152,659
1,253

351,236
187,920
236,348
435,619

Operating 
income  

(loss)
54,390
19,994

123,178
1,456

131,616
1,526
4,719
1,630

(15,628)

Other  
comprehensive 

income (loss)
4,519

21,227
8,562
2,626

981
(15,452)
(49,905)

(7,421)
(2,015)

Total  
comprehensive 

income (loss) (*1)
46,704
35,664
98,713
(3,208)
92,442

(28,426)
(38,519)

(113,189)
(57,079)

Korean won (millions)

(*1) Total comprehensive income stated above excludes attribution to non-controlling shareholder. 

(*2) Since Lotte Capital Co., Ltd. is a financial institution, it does not present current and non-current assets or liabilities.

(*1) Total comprehensive income stated above excludes attribution to non-controlling shareholder. 

(*2) Since Lotte Capital Co., Ltd. is a financial institution, it does not present current and non-current assets or liabilities.

(d) �The reconciliation of the net assets of the significant associates to the carrying amount of the equity interest in the associate as 
of December 31, 2016 and 2015 is as follows:

2016

Company
Lotte Station Building Co., Ltd.
Daehong Communications Co., Ltd. 
Lotte Capital Co., Ltd.
Lotteria Co., Ltd.
FRL Korea Co., Ltd.
Lotte Asset Development Co., Ltd.
Lotte Trading Co., Ltd.
Lotte Europe Holdings B.V.
Coralis S.A.

 
Net assets (*1)

495,521
379,547
958,505
550,120
477,834

92,928
438,079

20,876
(31,695)

Balance at  
December 31, 2016

123,880
131,289
214,361
227,004
234,139

36,717
121,282

3,063
1,242

Korean won (millions)
 

Ownership (%)
25.00
34.00
22.36
38.68
49.00
39.14
27.68
26.98
45.00

Ownership of 
net assets

123,880
129,046
214,315
212,789
234,139

36,374
121,282

5,633
(14,263)

 
Goodwill

-
2,243

-
14,215

-
343

-
9,676

15,162

 
Others (*2)

-
-

46
-
-
-
-

(12,246)
343

(*1) Net assets excluded non-controlling interests.

(*2) Others included unamortized amounts of difference of fair vlave, unrecognized amounts and foreign currency differences arising on retranslation.

2015

Company
Lotte Station Building Co., Ltd.
Daehong Communications Co., Ltd. 
Lotte Capital Co., Ltd.
Lotteria Co., Ltd.
FRL Korea Co., Ltd.
Lotte Asset Development Co., Ltd.
Lotte Trading Co., Ltd.
Lotte Europe Holdings B.V.
Coralis S.A.

 
Net assets (*1)

486,898
391,176
873,361
581,830
382,909
125,114
448,178

1,966
(7,952)

Balance at  
December 31, 2016

121,725
135,243
195,323
239,270
187,626

49,316
124,077

-
11,923

Korean won (millions)
 

Ownership (%)
25.00 
34.00 
22.36 
38.68 
49.00 
39.14 
27.68 
26.98
45.00 

Ownership of 
net assets

121,725
133,000
195,277
225,055
187,626

48,973
124,077

531
(3,578)

 
Goodwill

-
2,243

-
14,215

-
343

-
9,676

15,150

 
Others (*2)

-
-

46
-
-
-
-

(10,207)
351

(*1) Net assets excluded non-controlling interests.

(*2) Others included unamortized amounts of difference of fair vlave, unrecognized amounts and foreign currency differences arising on retranslation.

(e) Other financial liabilities as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 are summarized as follows:

Company
Lotte Incheon Development Co., Ltd.
Prototype Inc.
Eunpyeong PFV corporation

Total

Unrecognized accumulated losses
(1,760)

(10)
(57)

(1,827)

Unrecognized losses for the year
-

(10)
(57)
(67)

Korean won (millions)
2016

December 31, 2016

Company
D-Cinema of Korea Co., Ltd.
STL Co., Limited
LOTTE JTB Co., Ltd. 
Shenyang SL Cinema Investment Management Co., Ltd. 
Shandong Luckypai TV Shopping
Yunnan Maile TV Shopping Media Co., Ltd.
Chongqing Yujia Co., Ltd.
International Business Center Company Limited
PT. INDO LOTTE MAKMUR

Total

 
Location 
Korea
Korea
Korea
China
China
China
China
Vietnam
Indonesia

 
Major operation
Film equipment
Retail
Travel business
Cinema
TV Home Shopping
TV Home Shopping
TV Home Shopping
Distribution
Distribution

 
Ownership (%) 

50.00
50.00
50.00
49.00
49.00
49.00

-
50.00
50.00

Balance at  
December 31, 2016

838
511

7,373
928

9,684
3,868

-
63,895
12,721
99,818

Korean won (millions)

(a) �When the Group has rights to the net assets of the joint venture entity, the Group classifies the investment in entity as a joint 
venture.  The details of joint ventures as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 are summarized as follows:

13. Joint Ventures
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December 31, 2015

Company
D-Cinema of Korea Co., Ltd.
STL Co., Limited
LOTTE JTB Co., Ltd. 
Shenyang SL Cinema Investment Management Co., Ltd. 
Shandong Luckypai TV Shopping
Yunnan Maile TV Shopping Media Co., Ltd.
Chongqing Yujia Co., Ltd.
International Business Center Company Limited

Total

 
Location 
Korea
Korea
Korea
China
China
China
China
Vietnam

 
Major operation
Film equipment
Retail
Travel business
Cinema
TV Home Shopping
TV Home Shopping
TV Home Shopping
Distribution

 
Ownership (%) 

50.00
50.00
50.00
49.00
49.00
49.00
49.00
50.00

Balance at  
December 31, 2015

1,725
606

-
962

10,092
4,195

-
61,516
79,096

Korean won (millions)

(b) Changes in joint ventures for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

Adjustment to

Company
D-Cinema of Korea Co., Ltd.
STL Co., Limited
LOTTE JTB Co., Ltd. 
Shenyang SL Cinema Investment Management 
Co., Ltd.
Shandong Luckypai TV Shopping
Yunnan Maile TV Shopping Media Co., Ltd.
Chongqing Yujia Co., Ltd.
International Business Center Company Limit-
ed
PT. INDO LOTTE MAKMUR

Total

Balance at  
December 31, 2016

838  
511  

7,373  
928   

9,684  
3,868  

-  
63,895 

  
12,721  
99,818  

 
Others

-
-
-
- 

(408)
(168)

-
1,960 

673
2,057

Capital  
adjustment

-
-

(52)
(39) 

-
-
-

292 

(1,933)
(1,732)

Net  
income (loss)

(887)
(95)

(2,575)
5 

-
46

-
4,315 

(452)
357

 
Dividends

-
-
-
- 

-
(205)

-
(4,188) 

-
(4,393)

Acquisi-
tion

-
-

10,000
- 

-
-
-
- 

14,433
24,433

Beginning 
balance

1,725
606

-
962 

10,092
4,195

-
61,516 

-
79,096

Korean won (millions)

2016

Adjustment to

Company
D-Cinema of Korea Co., Ltd.
STL Co., Limited
LOTTE JTB Co., Ltd. 
Shenyang SL Cinema Investment  
Management Co., Ltd.
Shandong Luckypai TV Shopping
Yunnan Maile TV Shopping Media  
Co., Ltd.
Chongqing Yujia Co., Ltd.
International Business Center Company 
Limited

Total

Balance at  
December 31, 2015

1,725
606

-
962 

10,092
4,195 

-
61,516 

79,096

 
Others

-
-
-
- 

186
79 

-
3,911 

4,176

Capital  
adjustment

-
-
-

17 

-
- 

-
319 

336

Net  
income (loss)

1,725
(729)

(4,100)
20 

-
200 

-
3,155 

271

Business 
combination

-
-

4,100
- 

-
- 

-
- 

4,100

Acquisi-
tion

-
-
-
- 

-
- 

-
59,058 

59,058

Beginning 
balance

-
1,335

-
925 

9,906
4,225 

-
- 

16,391

Korean won (millions)

2015

Divi-
dends

-
-
-
- 

-
(309) 

-
(4,927) 

(5,236)

(c) Financial information of joint ventures as of and for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 are summarized as follows:

2016

 

Company
D-Cinema of Korea Co., Ltd.
STL Co., Limited
LOTTE JTB Co.,Ltd
Shenyang SL Cinema Investment 
Management Co., Ltd.
Shandong Luckypai TV Shopping
Yunnan Maile TV Shopping  
 Media Co., Ltd.
International Business Center  
Company Limited
PT. INDO LOTTE MAKMUR

 
Current 

asset
17,198

4,094
42,342

957 

43,186
13,894 

11,672 

17,975

Non- 
current  

asset
3,013

852
3,384
1,391 

3,725
1,903 

52,699 

6,499

 
Current 

liabilities
8,148
3,369

27,593
458 

26,643
9,757 

27,802 

96

 
 

Sales
5,329

16,149
26,267

1,250 

-
23,328 

22,104 

-

Non- 
current 

liabilities
10,387

555
3,437

- 

-
- 

1,355 

282

Operating 
income  

(loss)
(1,620)

(53)
2,547

9 

-
(1,505) 

11,336 

(1,281)

Other  
comprehensive 

income (loss)
-
-

(50)
(79) 

-
- 

583 

(3,867)

Total  
comprehensive 

income (loss)
(1,775)

(190)
2,533

(67) 

-
204 

9,213 

(4,770)

Korean won (millions)

2015

 

Company
D-Cinema of Korea Co., Ltd.
STL Co., Limited
LOTTE JTB Co.,Ltd
Shenyang SL Cinema  Investment 
Management Co., Ltd.
Shandong Luckypai TV Shopping
Yunnan Maile TV Shopping  
Media Co., Ltd.
Chongqing Yujia Co., Ltd.
International Business Center  
Company Limited

 
Current 

asset
25,784

3,436
15,500

884 

47,014
14,528 

1,622
13,831 

Non- 
current  

asset
9,289
1,186
3,441
1,586 

3,583
2,580 

385
54,857 

 
Current 

liabilities
13,777

2,978
23,709

513 

32,252
10,477 

32,252
32,701 

 
 

Sales
22,747
13,724
18,998

1,454 

24,086
29,944 

38,025
23,577 

Non- 
current 

liabilities
17,845

434
2,965

- 

-
- 

-
1,609 

Operating 
income  

(loss)
9,553

(1,187)
(13,551)

(37) 

(310)
1,315 

(12,329)
12,664 

Other  
comprehensive 

income (loss)
-
-
-

35 

-
- 

-
(1,996) 

Total  
comprehensive 

income (loss)
6,931

(1,458)
(15,980)

75 

(260)
394 

(11,418)
6,384 

Korean won (millions)

(d) �The reconciliation of the net assets of the joint ventures to the carrying amount of the equity interest in the joint ventures as 
of December 31, 2016 and 2015 is as follows:

2016

Company
D-Cinema of Korea Co., Ltd.
STL Co., Limited
LOTTE JTB Co.,Ltd
Shenyang SL Cinema Investment 
Management Co., Ltd.
Shandong Luckypai TV Shopping
Yunnan Maile TV Shopping  
Media Co., Ltd.
International Business Center  
Company Limited
PT. INDO LOTTE MAKMUR

 
Net assets (*1)

1,676
1,022

14,696
1,890 

20,268
6,039 

35,215 

24,096

Balance at  
December 31, 2016

838
511

7,373
928 

9,684
3,868 

63,895 

12,721

Korean won (millions)
 

Ownership (%)
50
50
50
49 

49
49 

50 

50

Ownership of 
net assets

838
511

7,348
926 

9,932
2,959 

17,608 

12,048

 
Goodwill

-
-
-
- 

-
909 

40,415 

-

 
Others (*2)

-
-

25
2 

(248)
- 

5,872 

673

(*1) Net assets excluded non-controlling interests..

(*2) Others included unamortized amounts of difference of fair vlave, unrecognized amounts and foreign currency differences arising on retranslation.



LOTTE SHOPPING  ANNUAL REPORT 2016

120 121

Lotte Shopping Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries
December 31, 2016 and 2015 December 31, 2016 and 2015

2015

Company
D-Cinema of Korea Co., Ltd.
STL Co., Limited
LOTTE JTB Co., Ltd. 
Shenyang SL Cinema Investment 
Management Co., Ltd.
Shandong Luckypai TV Shopping
Yunnan Maile TV Shopping  
Media Co., Ltd.
Chongqing Yujia Co., Ltd.
International Business Center Com-
pany Limited

 
Net assets (*1)

3,451
1,212

(7,733)
1,957 

18,344
6,631 

(30,246)
34,378 

Balance at  
December 31, 2015

1,725
606

-
962 

10,092
4,195 

-
61,516 

Korean won (millions)
 

Ownership (%)
50
50
50
49 

49
49 

49
50 

Ownership of 
net assets

1,725
606

(3,866)
959 

8,989
3,249 

(14,820)
17,189 

 
Goodwill

-
-
-
- 

-
946 

-
40,415 

 
Others (*2)

-
-

3,866
3 

1,103
- 

14,820
3,912 

(*1) Net assets excluded non-controlling interests.

(*2) Others included unamortized amounts of difference of fair vlave, unrecognized amounts and foreign currency differences arising on retranslation.

(a) Property, plant and equipment as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 are summarized as follows:

14. Property, Plant and Equipment

 
Land
Buildings 
Structures
Machinery
Vehicles
Display fixtures
Furniture and fixtures
Tools and equipment
Other PP&E
Construction-in-progress
Finance lease assets

Total

December 31, 2016 December 31, 2015

Acquisition  
cost 

8,043,145
7,451,692

354,615
304,071

7,937
787,860

4,071,279
199,722
259,999
887,620

65,140
22,433,080

Acquisition  
cost 

7,991,801
7,229,462

354,383
265,792

8,541
727,796

3,739,494
186,219
257,741
679,473

82,957
21,523,659

Accumulated 
depreciation 

-
(2,380,298)

(116,069)
(165,732)

(5,732)
(503,835)

(2,993,914)
(113,427)
(100,308)

-
(14,672)

(6,393,987)

Accumulated 
depreciation 

-
(2,169,376)

(102,766)
(144,192)

(5,759)
(432,687)

(2,648,079)
(103,005)

(90,634)
-

(23,679)
(5,720,177)

Accumulated im-
pairment losses

-
(62)

(2,959)
(838)
(109)

(13,671)
(35,266)

(9,757)
(40,581)

-
(3,608)

(106,851)

Accumulated im-
pairment losses

-
-
-

(417)
(50)

(9,440)
(5,587)
(3,492)

(23,618)
-

(1,771)
(44,375)

Korean won (millions)
Book  
value

8,043,145
5,071,332

235,587
137,501

2,096
270,354

1,042,099
76,538

119,110
887,620

46,860
15,932,242

Book  
value

7,991,801
5,060,086

251,617
121,183

2,732
285,669

1,085,828
79,722

143,489
679,473

57,507
15,759,107

(b) Changes in property, plant and equipment for the year ended December 31, 2016 are as follows:

  

Land
Buildings 
Structures
Machinery
Vehicles
Display fixtures
Furniture and fixtures
Tools and equipment
Other PP&E
Construction-in-progress
Finance lease assets

Total

2016

Book value  
as of January 1, 

2016 
7,991,801
5,060,086

251,617
121,183

2,732
285,669

1,085,828
79,722

143,489
679,473

57,507
15,759,107

Increase from  
business  

combination 
-
-
-
-
-
-

1,607
-
-
-
-

1,607

 
Deprecia-

tion 
-

(207,100)
(14,734)
(22,792)

(915)
(94,391)

(437,728)
(21,614)
(14,718)

-
(10,035)

(824,027)

 
Impair-

ment
-

(62)
(2,959)

(427)
(59)

(4,995)
(29,709)

(7,911)
(25,505)

-
(1,901)

(73,528)

 
 

Disposals
(8,669)
(3,835)
(1,047)

(40)
(186)

(2,476)
(5,372)
(1,084)

(11)
(21,341)

(15)
(44,076)

 
 

Others (*)
(11,947)
193,953

2,214
16,468

16
2,325

176,991
5,505
2,979

(455,284)
806

(65,974)

Book value as  
of December 31,  

2016 
8,043,145
5,071,332

235,587
137,501

2,096
270,354

1,042,099
76,538

119,110
887,620

46,860
15,932,242

 
 

Acquisitions 
71,960
28,290

496
23,109

508
84,222

250,482
21,920
12,876

684,772
498

1,179,133

Korean won (millions)

(*) Others include reclassifications of construction-in-progress to intangible assets, reclassification to investment property, effects of loss of control of subsidiaries and foreign exchange effects.

(c) Changes in property, plant and equipment for the year ended December 31, 2015 are as follows:

  

Land
Buildings 
Structures
Machinery
Vehicles
Display fixtures
Furniture and fixtures
Tools and equipment
Other PP&E
Construction-in-progress
Finance lease assets

Total

2015

Book value  
as of January 1, 

2015 
7,947,313
5,222,599

259,056
110,583

3,300
298,815

1,129,226
91,951

137,386
676,973

23,772
15,900,974

Increase from  
business  

combination 
-
-
-

8,510
-
-

11,050
-

462
535

39,634
60,191

 
Deprecia-

tion 
-

(212,570)
(15,646)
(20,722)

(1,018)
(93,696)

(438,968)
(20,797)
(15,741)

-
(8,366)

(827,524)

 
Impair-

ment
-
-
-

(395)
(50)

(2,407)
(5,571)
(1,253)
(7,994)

-
-

(17,670)

 
 

Disposals
(37,346)

(152,758)
(755)

(2,176)
(126)

(3,790)
(5,201)
(8,854)

(22,192)
(72,090)

-
(305,288)

 
 

Others (*)
76,241

178,110
8,879
9,981

(13)
15,420

158,907
7,654

44,154
(538,199)

2,215
(36,651)

Book value as  
of December 31,  

2015 
7,991,801
5,060,086

251,617
121,183

2,732
285,669

1,085,828
79,722

143,489
679,473

57,507
15,759,107

 
 

Acquisitions 
5,593

24,705
83

15,402
639

71,327
236,385

11,021
7,414

612,254
252

985,075

Korean won (millions)

(*) Others include reclassifications of construction-in-progress to intangible assets, reclassification to investment property, effects of loss of control of subsidiaries and foreign exchange effects.

(d) Pledged property, plant and equipment provided by the Group as of December 31, 2016 are as follows:

 
Offered assets(*)
Land and buildings etc.

 
Book value

333,075

 
Guaranteed amount

409,319

 
Type of borrowings

Secured Loan and others

 
Amount of borrowings

199,321

 
Guarantee recipient

Kookmin Bank and others

Korean won (millions)

(*) It is provided as collateral for borrowed money, security for lease deposit, and Provisional attachment of land
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(e) During 2016 and 2015, capitalized borrowing costs and capitalization interest rates are as follows:

 
Capitalized borrowing costs
Capitalization interest rates (%)

2015

8,162
2.72%~5.25%

2016

8,665
2.31%~7.42%

Korean won (millions)

(e) Fair value of investment property as of December 31, 2016 was follows:

 
Land and buildings

Fair value 

927,839

Book value

691,845

Korean won (millions)

(d) Income and expense from investment property
The details of income and expense from investment property during 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

Description 
Rent income
Direct operating expense (including maintenance and repair expenses)

2015

72,273
30,191

2016

75,183
29,610

Korean won (millions)

(a)  Investment property as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 are summarized as follows:

15. Investment Property

 
Land
Buildings 

Total

December 31, 2016 December 31, 2015

Acquisition  
cost 

380,715
404,926
785,641

Accumulated 
depreciation 

-
(93,796)
(93,796)

Korean won (millions)
Book  
value

380,715
311,130
691,845

Acquisition  
cost 

223,494
387,646
611,140

Accumulated 
depreciation 

-
(90,158)
(90,158)

Book  
value

223,494
297,488
520,982

(b) Changes in investment property for the year ended December 31, 2016 are as follows:

 
Land
Buildings 

Total

2016

Book value as of 
January 1, 2016

223,494
297,488
520,982

 
Acquisitions 

2,566
13,603
16,169

Korean won (millions)
 

Depreciation
-

(11,940)
(11,940)

 
Others (*)

154,655
11,979

-166,634

Book value as of 
December 31, 2016

380,715
311,130
691,845

(*) Others include reclassification between property, plant and equipment and investment property and foreign exchange effects.

(c) Changes in investment property for the year ended December 31, 2015 are as follows:

 
Land
Buildings 

Total

2015

Book value as of 
January 1, 2015

233,762
303,429
537,191

 
Acquisitions 

-
1,571
1,571

Korean won (millions)
 

Depreciation
-

(12,612)
(12,612)

 
Disposals

(960)
(1,966)
(2,926)

 
Others (*)

(9,308)
7,066

(2,242)

Book value as of 
December 31, 2015

223,494
297,488
520,982

(*) Others include reclassification between property, plant and equipment and investment property and foreign exchange effects.

(a) Intangible assets as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 are summarized as follows:

16. Goodwill and Intangible Assets

 
Goodwill
Industrial property rights
Rights to use facility
Membership
Other intangible  assets

Total

December 31, 2016 December 31, 2015

Acquisition  
cost 

3,558,053
145,347
525,136

39,966
544,546

4,813,048

Acquisition  
cost 

3,571,160
144,015
524,464

39,674
672,647

4,951,960

Accumulated 
amortization 

-
(7,146)

(170,967)
-

(255,676)
(433,789)

Accumulated 
amortization 

-
(5,999)

(144,449)
-

(357,448)
(507,896)

Accumulated im-
pairment losses

(966,103)
-

(41,321)
(6,276)
(8,861)

(1,022,561)

Accumulated im-
pairment losses

(855,591)
-

(2)
(5,532)
(4,550)

(865,675)

Korean won (millions)
Book  
value

2,591,950
138,201
312,848

33,690
280,009

3,356,698

Book  
value

2,715,569
138,016
380,013

34,142
310,649

3,578,389

(b) Changes in intangible assets for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

  

Goodwill
Industrial property rights
Rights to use  facility
Membership
Other intangible assets

Total

2016

Book value  
as of January 1, 

2016 
2,715,569

138,016
380,013

34,142
310,649

3,578,389

 
Business 

combination
30,735

-
-
-

5,788
36,523

 
 

Amortization 
-

(1,148)
(26,518)

-
(109,532)
(137,198)

 
Impair-

ment
(154,861)

-
(41,318)

(744)
(4,600)

(201,523)

 
 

Disposals
(186)

-
-
-

(281)
(467)

 
 

Others (*)
(432)

20
186

-
4,721
4,495

Book value as  
of December 31,  

2016 
2,591,950

138,201
312,848

33,690
280,009

3,356,698

 
 

Acquisitions 
1,125
1,313

485
292

73,264
76,479

Korean won (millions)

 (*) Others include reclassification of construction-in-progress to intangible assets and foreign exchange effects.

  

Goodwill
Industrial property rights
Rights to use facility
Membership
Other intangible assets

Total

2015

Book value  
as of January 1, 

2015 
3,277,238

138,604
406,541

33,476
300,224

4,156,083

 
Business 

combination
20,042

26
-

206
16,877
37,151

 
 

Amortization 
-

(1,108)
(26,544)

-
(118,402)
(146,054)

 
Impair-

ment
(616,934)

-
(2)

(1,087)
(573)

(618,596)

 
 

Disposals
(1,323)

-
(14)

(165)
(39)

(1,541)

 
 

Others (*)
36,256

258
32

-
35,578
72,124

Book value as  
of December 31,  

2015 
2,715,569

138,016
380,013

34,142
310,649

3,578,389

 
 

Acquisitions 
1,125
1,313

485
292

73,264
76,479

Korean won (millions)

 (*) Others include reclassification of construction-in-progress to intangible assets and foreign exchange effects.
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(c) Impairment testing for cash-generating units containing goodwill

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to the units at the lowest level at which the goodwill may be moni-
tored in terms of internal management of the Group and cannot be higher than any of the Group’s operating segments, as defined 
in the note 39.

Details of the goodwill allocated to the groups of cash-generating units as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

The value in use of each cash-generating unit was determined by discounting its estimated future cash flows.  The approach used 
to determine value in use as of December 31, 2016 was consistent with those used in 2015.  The calculation of value in use was 
based on the following key assumptions:

- Cash flows were estimated based on past experience, actual historical results of operations and the five-year business plan.
- �The annual revenue growth rate for the five-year period in the future was estimated based on an analysis of past revenue 

growth rates.  The revenues after the five-year period were assumed to grow constantly at zero to three percent.
- The Group’s weighted average cost of capital was applied as the discount rate in determining recoverable amount of cash-gen-
erating units. The weighted average costs of capital per each cash-generating unit are as follows:

Value in use is based on the above assumptions representing management’s estimation of future cash flows, and is calculated 
using external and internal sources of the Group.  As a result of impairment testing as of December 31, 2016, recoverable amounts 
of the cash-generating units in department stores, discount stores, finance business and others were less than its book value, 
including goodwill, therefore impairment losses were recognized.  As a result of impairment testing, value in use of the other 
cash-generating units is higher than their respective carrying amount as of December 31, 2016 and 2015.

As a result of the Group’s impairment test on indefinite intangible assets, the Group recognized an impairment loss of ₩743 
million and ₩1,807 million as of December 31, 2016 and 2015.

 
Department stores
Discount stores
Finance business
Consumer electronics retail
Convenience stores
Others

Total

December 31, 2015

198,464
409,941
113,320

1,282,696
202,948
508,200

2,715,569

December 31, 2016

198,464
326,632
113,320

1,242,973
202,948
507,613

2,591,950

Korean won (millions)

(d)  Impairment testing of other intangible assets with indefinite estimated useful lives

The details of intangible assets with indefinite estimated useful lives as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

 
Department stores
Discount stores
Finance business
Consumer electronics retail
Convenience store
Others

Total

December 31, 2015

11,012
1,976
3,621

138,868
2,348

12,443
170,268

December 31, 2016

11,012
1,976
3,531

138,894
2,348

12,067
169,828

Korean won (millions)

 
Department stores
Discount stores
Finance business
Consumer electronics retail
Convenience stores
Others

2015

7.20% ~ 14.38%
6.81% ~ 9.77%
4.71% ~ 7.16%

7.74%
12.61%

6.65% ~ 13.60%

2016

5.71% ~ 14.24%
5.71% ~ 9.70%

7.00% ~ 11.00%
7.10%

13.62%
5.43% ~ 19.90%

Korean won (millions)

For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, the impairment losses and recoverable amounts of the impaired cash-generat-
ing units are as follows:
Korean won (millions)

 
Department stores
Discount stores
Finance business
Consumer electronics retail
Others

Total

2016

Recoverable amounts
-

539,790
-

1,458,959
1,448

2,000,197

Impairment losses
-

83,311
-

39,723
31,827

154,861

2015

Recoverable amounts
500,885
724,673
126,374

-
16,271

1,368,203

Impairment losses
44,776

433,461
5,413

-
133,284
616,934

 
Trade payables
Other payables

Total

December 31, 2015

3,725,603
1,740,304
5,465,907

December 31, 2016

3,764,738
2,020,614
5,785,352

Korean won (millions)

Trade and other payables as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 are summarized as follows:

17. Trade and Other Payables

Lotte Shopping Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries
December 31, 2016 and 2015
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Lender
Korea Development Bank and others
Shinhan Bank and others

Total

Details
General
Financial notes

Annual interest rate (%)
1.99~10.11
1.77~5.52

December 31, 2015

846,819 
943,000 

1,789,819 

December 31, 2016

849,755
687,500

1,537,255

Korean won (millions)

(b) Short-term borrowings as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 are summarized as follows:

Lender

Shinhan Bank and others

Lotte Co., Ltd. (Japan) and others

Subtotal

Less: Discount on borrowings

Subtotal

Less: Current portion of long-term borrow-

ings, net of discount

Total

Details

Local currency

Foreign currency

 

Annual interest rate (%)

1.78~6.90

1.19~9.96

 

December 31, 2015

1,006,095   

1,319,284   

2,325,379   

(1,200)  

2,324,179   

(467,641)   

1,856,538   

December 31, 2016

1,242,250

1,367,940

2,610,190

(878)

2,609,312

(903,232) 

1,706,080

Korean won (millions)

(c) Long-term borrowings as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 are summarized as follows:

Description
59-2nd placed
59-3rd placed
61th placed 
62th placed 
63-1st placed
63-2nd placed
64-1st placed (foreign currency)
64-2nd placed (foreign currency)
64-3rd placed (foreign currency)
65-1st placed
65-2nd placed
66-1st placed
66-2nd placed
66-3rd placed
67-1st placed (foreign currency)
67-2nd placed (foreign currency)
67-3rd placed (foreign currency)
68th placed
69-1st placed (foreign currency)
69-2nd placed (foreign currency)
70-1st placed
70-2nd placed
70-3rd placed
71th placed
1st placed (Global bond)
2nd placed (Global bond)
USD convertible bonds
JPY convertible bonds
Exchangeable bonds (*)
Korea Seven Co., Ltd. (foreign currency)
Korea Seven Co., Ltd. (convertible bonds)
Lotte Card Co., Ltd.
LOTTE Himart Co., Ltd. 
LOTTE Himart Co., Ltd. (Foreign currency)

Subtotal

Maturity
Aug. 07, 2017
Aug. 07, 2019
Mar. 21, 2018
Jun. 21, 2018
Jul. 02, 2017
Jul. 02, 2019
May 25, 2018
May 25, 2018
May 25, 2018
Mar. 03, 2020
Mar. 03, 2022
Jun. 23, 2020
Jun. 23, 2022
Jun. 23, 2025
Aug. 17, 2018
Aug. 17, 2018
Aug. 06, 2018
Jul. 31, 2020
Jan. 29, 2019
Jan. 29, 2019
Apr. 04, 2019
Apr. 04, 2021
Apr. 04, 2026
Nov. 29, 2019
Apr. 07, 2016
May 09, 2017
Jul. 05, 2016
Jul. 05, 2016
Jan. 24, 2018
Apr. 18, 2016
May 08, 2018
Multiple
Multiple
Mar. 29, 2016

Interest rate (%)
3.20
3.33
3.05
2.80
2.79
3.08
3M USD Libor+0.50
3M USD Libor
3M USD Libor+0.02
2.26 
2.45 
2.40 
2.64 
2.98 
3M USD Libor+0.60
3M USD Libor+0.02
3M USD Libor+0.60
2.40 
3M USD Libor+0.55
3M USD Libor+0.02
1.77
2.02
2.48
1M USD Libor
- 
3.38 
-
-
-
-
-
1.58~3.86
2.08~3.04
-

December 31, 2015

230,000
200,000
100,000
110,000
200,000
200,000
175,800
117,200
117,200
160,000
240,000
130,000

50,000
140,000
175,800
117,200
117,200
110,000

-
-
-
-
-
-

468,800
468,800

22,340
91,100

321,200
35,160

7,920
5,264,040

620,000
35,160

10,024,920

December 31, 2016

230,000
200,000
100,000
110,000
200,000
200,000
181,275
120,850
120,850
160,000
240,000
130,000

50,000
140,000
181,275
120,850
120,850
110,000
120,850
120,850
100,000
170,000

70,000
120,850

-
483,400

-
-

13,800
-

7,920
5,783,095

650,000
-

10,356,715

Korean won (millions)

(d) Debentures as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 are summarized as follows:

 
Current:
Short-term borrowings 
Current portion of long-term borrowings
Current portion of discount on long-term borrowings
Current portion of long-term debentures
Current portion of discount on debentures
Convertible bond redemption premium
Conversion rights adjustment
Exchange rights adjustment

Subtotal
Non-current:
Long-term borrowings
Discount on long-term borrowings
Long-term debentures
Discount on debentures

Subtotal
Total

December 31, 2015

1,789,819
467,765

(124)
2,030,280

(1,727)
1,173
(604)

(19,443)
4,267,139

1,857,614 
(1,076)

7,994,640 
(34,740)

9,816,438 
14,083,577 

December 31, 2016

1,537,255
903,320

(88)
2,626,860

(9,117)
1,173
(352)
(438)

5,058,613

1,706,870
(790)

7,729,855
(11,600)

9,424,335
14,482,948

Korean won (millions)

(a) Borrowings and debentures as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 are summarized as follows:

18. Borrowings and Debentures

Lender
Less: Discount on debentures
Convertible bond redemption premium
Less: Conversion rights adjustment
Less: Exchange rights adjustment

Total book value
Less: Current portion of debentures, net of 
discount

Total

Details

 

Annual interest rate (%)

 

December 31, 2015

(36,467)
1,173
(604)

(19,443)
9,969,579

(2,009,679) 

7,959,900

December 31, 2016

(20,717)
1,173
(352)
(438)

10,336,381
(2,618,126) 

7,718,255

Korean won (millions)

(*) The Group issued five-year bonds in 2013 which are exchangeable to shares of LOTTE Himart Co., Ltd.  Due to the exercise of the put option, the Company redeemed ₩307,400 million of the issued bonds on 

January 25, 2016.  The terms and conditions are summarized as follows:
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(a) �Type of bonds: Registered overseas unsecured exchange-
able bonds

(b) Total face value of bonds(KRW): 13,800,000,000
(c) Bond interest rate

Coupon rate (%): -
Yield to maturity (%): -

(d) Date of bond maturity: January 24, 2018
(e) Principal redemption method:

① �Redemption on maturity date: Redemption in lump 
sum on the maturity date for the principal amount 
of bonds for which a condition for early redemption 
has not occurred and the exchange right has not been 
exercised. Early redemption: The Company has a call 
option, whereas bond holders have a put option.

② �Early redemption: Lotte Shopping Co., Ltd. (“Lotte 
Shopping”) has a call option, whereas bond holders 
have a put option.

(f) �Put option by bondholders: The put option can be exer-
cised if any of the following conditions occurs:
On the third anniversary of the date of payment (January 
24, 2016);
① �If any change of control occurs in the LOTTE Himart; or
② �The issued stocks of the Company are delisted from the 

stock exchange or their transaction is suspended for 30 
consecutive transaction days or longer.

(g) �Call option by the Company: The call option can be exer-
cised if any of the following conditions occurs: 
① �If the closing price of LOTTE Himart Co., Ltd for 20 

transactional days in 30 consecutive transaction days 
reaches 130% or more of the exchange price between 3 
years from the issuance date (January 24, 2013) and 30 
business days to the maturity date;

② �If the balance of bonds that has not been redeemed 
reaches less than 10% of the sum of the total issued 
amount (clean up call); or

③ �Any additional tax burden arises due to the amend-
ments of the related laws and regulations.

(h) Matters relating to exchange:
① �Exchange ratio (%): 100
② �Exchange price (KRW per share): 90,780
③ �Type of shares to be issued following exchange: Common 

shares of LOTTE Himart Co., Ltd.
⑤ ���Period to apply for exchange: Start date: March 5, 2013 

 End date: January 15, 2018
⑥ �Matters for the adjustment of exchange price: In case when 

a condition for re-adjustment of the exchange price has oc-
curred, such as a stock dividend, the exchange price will 
be adjusted in accordance with the provisions in the rele-
vant bonds purchase agreement.

 
Within 1 year
1 ~ 2 years
2 ~ 3 years
3 ~ 4 years
More than 4 years

Total

Totala

3,530,180
4,460,586
2,788,517

996,872
1,190,750

12,966,905

Debentures

2,626,860
3,547,305
2,182,550

810,000
1,190,000

10,356,715

Borrowings

903,320
913,281
605,967
186,872

750
2,610,190

Korean won (millions)

(e) Maturities of long-term borrowings and debentures as of December 31, 2016 are scheduled as follows:

 
Current:

Membership point
Other points
Unearned rental income
Others

Subtotal
Non-current:

Unearned rental income
Subtotal 

Total

December 31, 2015

93,222
85,018

8,492
30,842

217,574

8,086
8,086

225,660

December 31, 2016

100,674
80,392

8,133
32,243

221,442

10,736
10,736

232,178

Korean won (millions)

The details of unearned revenues as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

19. Unearned Revenues

2016

 
Current:

Provision for bonus points reward program
Provision for bonus payable
Provision for sales return
Other provisions (*1)

Subtotal
Non-current:

Provision for unused credit card limits (*2)
Other provisions

Subtotal
Total

 
Beginning balance

27,962
8,525
9,023

14,849
60,359

27,291
5,167

32,458
92,817

 
Increase 

54,063
39,426

9,347
25,057

127,893

6,269
2,590
8,859

136,752

 
Utilization 

(52,766)
(41,216)

(9,008)
(16,507)

(119,497)

-
(1,293)
(1,293)

(120,790)

Balance at  
December 31, 2016

29,259
6,735
9,362

23,399
68,755

33,560
6,464

40,024
108,779

Korean won (millions)

(a) Changes in provisions for the year ended December 31, 2016 are as follows:

20. Provisions

(*1) �Other provisions include provisions for litigation, provision for closing up stores and others. During 2016, Qingdao LOTTE Mart Commercial Co., Ltd., which is a subsidiary of the Company, closed five discount stores. 

In connection with closing the stores, the Group estimated the expenditures that have incurred in connection with the closures and recognized other provision of W4,919 million as of December 31, 2016. 

 (*2) �The Group records a provision for credit card assets at the amount that equals the product of the unused credit commitment multiplied by credit conversion factor and provision rate per BASEL discounted by the 

effective interest rate.

(b) Changes in provisions for the year ended December 31, 2015 are as follows:

2015

 
Current:

Provision for bonus points reward program
Provision for bonus payable
Provision for sales return
Other provisions (*1)

Subtotal
Non-current:

Provision for unused credit card limits (*2)
Other provisions

Subtotal
Total

 
Beginning balance

24,443
9,896
9,186

11,388
54,913

25,546
1,257

26,803
81,716

 
Increase 

74,389
49,206

9,242
62,415

195,252

1,745
4,352
6,097

201,349

 
Utilization 

(70,870)
(50,577)

(9,405)
(58,954)

(189,806)

-
(442)
(442)

(190,248)

Balance at  
December 31, 2015

27,962
8,525
9,023

14,849
60,359

27,291
5,167

32,458
92,817

Korean won (millions)

(*1) �Other provisions include provisions for litigation, provision for closing up stores and others.  During 2015, Qingdao LOTTE Mart Commercial Co., Ltd., which is a subsidiary of the Company, closed five discount stores. 

In connection with closing the stores, the Group estimated the expenditures that have incurred in connection with the closures and recognized other provision of W5,417 million as of December 31, 2015. 

(*2) �The Group records a provision for credit card assets at the amount that equals the product of the unused credit commitment multiplied by credit conversion factor and provision rate per BASEL discounted by the 

effective interest rate.
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Current:

Withholdings
Withholdings of value added tax
Advances received
Other liabilities

Subtotal
Non-current:

Other liabilities
Total

December 31, 2015

86,466 
96,059 

1,055,057 
1,955 

1,239,537 

103,378 
1,342,915 

December 31, 2016

110,150
92,354

1,267,945
1,027

1,471,476

119,085
1,590,561

Korean won (millions)

Other non-financial liabilities as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 are summarized as follows:

21. Other Non-financial Liabilities

 
Present value of defined benefit     obligations
Fair value of plan assets

Total

December 31, 2015

640,058
(601,989)

38,069

December 31, 2016

719,220
(706,365)

12,855

Korean won (millions)

(a) Details of defined benefit liabilities as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 are summarized as follows:

22. Employee Benefits

 
Present value of other long-term employee benefits

December 31, 2015

43,222

December 31, 2016

56,052

Korean won (millions)

(b) Details of present value of other long-term employee benefits as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 are summarized as follows:

 
Beginning of the year
Current service costs
Past service costs
Interest costs
Remeasurements :
 - Loss (gain) from change in demographic assumptions
 - Loss (gain) from change in financial assumptions
 - Loss (gain) experience adjustments
Payments
Business combination
Others
End of the year

2015

525,909
109,805

66
21,168

(10,581)
19,420

3,356
(50,054)

15,596
5,373

640,058

2016

640,058
118,847

(203)
21,761

5,829
(21,347)

(1,720)
(48,389)

-
4,384

719,220

Korean won (millions)

(c) Changes in employee benefits for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

 
Beginning of the year
Return on plan assets
Actuarial loss
Employer contribution
Payments
business combination
Others
End of the year

2015

486,054
16,425
(5,262)

129,264
(40,088)

14,188
1,408

601,989

2016

601,989
17,336
(5,244)

131,652
(39,354)

-
(14)

706,365

Korean won (millions)

(d) During 2016 and 2015, changes on plan assets of an employee benefit plan are as follows:

 
Principal guaranteed insurance policies
Others

Total

December 31, 2015

601,797
192

601,989

December 31, 2016

706,191
174

706,365

Korean won (millions)

(e) The components of plan assets as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 are summarized as follows:

The estimated contributions to the plan for the next annual reporting period are ₩129,871 million.

 
Current service costs
Past service costs
Interest costs
Return on plan assets
Contributions to defined contribution plans
Long-term employee benefits 

Total

2015

109,805
66

21,168
(16,425)

2,335
6,213

123,162

2016

118,847
(203)

21,761
(17,336)

2,188
17,660

142,917

Korean won (millions)

(f) Expenses recognized for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

 
Discount rate
Expected rate of promotion
Expected rate of increase in salaries

December 31, 2015

2.17~9.00%
1.44~4.00%
2.00~8.00%

December 31, 2016

1.77~8.20%
0.90~4.00%
1.00~8.00%

Korean won (millions)

(g) The principal actuarial assumptions used as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 are summarized as follows:

 
Discount rate (1% movement)
Expected rate of promotion (1% movement)
Expected rate of increase in salaries (1% movement)

Decrease

70,111
(49,899)
(59,309)

Increase

(58,725)
57,555
69,490

Korean won (millions)

(h) Sensitivity analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions would have affected the defined 
benefit obligation by the amounts are as follows:
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1 year or less 
49,647

1 ~ 2 years 
48,983

2 ~ 5 years
150,651

5 ~ 10 years 
237,365

More than 10 years
1,204,809

Korean won (millions)

(i) Information about the maturity profile of the defined benefit obligation as of December 31, 2016 is as follows:

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide an 
approximation of the sensitivity of the assumptions shown.

Purpose
Cash flow hedge 
 
 
 

Trade 

(a) Details of derivatives outstanding as of December 31, 2016 are as follows:

23. Derivative Instruments and Hedge Accounting

Type
Currency swaps 
 

Interest swaps
Currency forward
Total return swap
Stock options

Description
At the maturity of the swap, the principal and the interest payments for debentures and borrowings in 
foreign currency based on floating rates are exchanged back with the principal and fixed interest rate 
payments in local currency.
Pays fixed interest to receive floating rate
At the maturity of the contract, purchase dollars at the fixed exchange rate
Exchanges beneficiary certificate of investor’s total profit to constant flow of cash
Holds the right to buy preferred stocks or grants the right to sell preferred stocks of related companies

(b) Fair value of derivatives outstanding as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 are summarized as follows:

December 31, 2016

Description
Cash flow hedge 
 

Trade 

Type
Currency swap
Interest swap
Currency forward
Total return swap
Stock option
Total

Assets
197,076

227
22,467
15,722

1,312
236,804

Liabilities 
2,178
3,012

-
-

26,281
31,471

December 31, 2015

Assets
101,273

47
61,067

-
-

162,387

Liabilities 
11,516

4,431
-
-

24,608
40,555

Korean won (millions)

(c) Changes in the fair value of derivative instruments for the years ended December 31, 2016 are as follows:

Description
Cash flow hedge 
 
 
 
 
 

Trade 

Type
Currency swap 
 

Interest swap 

Currency forward 

Total return swap
Stock option

 
38,900
(2,568)
35,166

(9)
1,830
7,300
5,498

15,722
(1,640)

Related accounts
Gain on valuation of derivative instruments
Unrealized loss on valuation of derivative instruments
Gain on valuation of derivatives instruments (card business)
Loss on valuation of derivatives instruments (card business)
Unrealized Gain on valuation of derivative instruments
Gain on valuation of derivative instruments
Unrealized Gain on valuation of derivative instruments
Gain on valuation of derivative instruments
Loss on valuation of derivative instruments

Korean won (millions)

(a) �Pursuant to its amended Articles of Incorporation, the Company’s authorized capital stock is 60,000,000 shares, which 
consist of common shares and preferred shares each with a par value of W5,000 per share.  The Company is authorized 
to issue non-voting preferred shares of up to one-fourth of the Company’s total issued and outstanding capital stock.  
Holders of preferred shares may, upon a resolution of the board of directors at the time of the issuance of the preferred 
shares, be entitled to receive dividends prior to the holders of common shares.  The preferred shares will be automatically 
converted to common shares within ten years of issuance as determined by the Company’s board of directors.  However, 
if the holders of preferred shares do not receive the minimum dividends as prescribed, the prescribed conversion date 
will be extended to the time when all such minimum dividend amount is paid to the holders of preferred shares.  As of 
December 31, 2015, the Company has not issued any preferred stock and 31,490,892 shares of common stock were issued 
and outstanding as of December 31, 2016.

(b) Capital surplus as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 consists of the following:

Hybrid securities classified as equity as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

24. Capital Stock and Capital Surplus 

25. Hybrid securities classified as equity 

 
Additional paid-in capital
Others

December 31, 2015

3,786,431
124,321

3,910,752

December 31, 2016

3,786,431
124,321

3,910,752

Korean won (millions)

 
Hybrid security 1-1 (*)
Hybrid security 1-2 (*)
Issuance cost
Total

December 31, 2015

240,000
30,000

(882)
269,118

December 31, 2016

240,000
30,000

(882)
269,118

Korean won (millions)

Date of issue
Nov.15, 2013
Nov.15, 2013

Date of maturity
Nov.15, 2043
Nov.15, 2043

Interest rate (%)
4.723
4.723

(*) Details of hybrid securities are as follows:

The Group holds the right to extend the maturity dates of the hybrid securities and to defer interest payments for the hybrid 
securities.  If interest payments for the hybrid securities are deferred, the Group cannot declare or pay dividends attributable to 
common stock.  Since the Group has an unconditional right to avoid delivering cash or another financial asset to settle a contrac-
tual obligation, the hybrid securities have been classified as equity instruments.

 
Issue price
Maturity date
Interest rate 
 

Interest payments condition 
 

Others 
 

Hybrid security 1-2

30,000
 
 
 
 
March 30, June 30, September 30, December 30 of each 
calendar year (Conditional deferral of interest payments is 
available to the Company)

Hybrid security 1-1

240,000
 
 
 
 
February 15, May 15, August 15 and November 15 of each 
calendar year (Conditional deferral of interest payments is 
available to the Company)

Korean won (millions)

 
30 years (The Company has the unconditional right to extend the maturity date)
Issue date ~ November 15, 2018: 4.723%, reset every 5 years as follows:
After 5 years: treasury rate (5 years) + 1.5%
After 10 years: additionally +1% according to Step-up clauses
 
 
 
The Group can call the hybrid security at year 5 and interest payment date afterwards. 
The hybrid security holder’s preference in the event of liquidation is the same as the preference stock holders; higher 
than the common stock holders but lower than other creditors.
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As of January 1, 2013, the Company merged with Lotte Midopa Co., Ltd.  In connection with the merger, the Company issued 
1,933,873 shares of common stocks in exchange for 51,475,843 shares of Lotte Midopa Co., Ltd. which the Company had held 
and 228 shares of treasury stocks of Lotte Midopa Co., Ltd.  The Company recognized the acquisition cost of the treasury stocks 
as zero (“0”).  In addition, the Company acquired 4,815 shares of fractional shares for ₩1,806 million in 2013 and, as a result, the 
Company holds 1,938,688 shares of treasury stocks as of December 31, 2016.

26. Capital Adjustments

Details of retained earnings as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

27. Retained Earnings

 
Legal reserve
Voluntary reserve
Unappropriated retained earnings

December 31, 2015

190,006
11,190,052

513,605
11,893,663

December 31, 2016

195,917
10,810,052

989,641
11,995,610

Korean won (millions)

(a) Basic earnings (loss) per share

① Basic earnings per share for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 are as follows:	

(b) Diluted earnings (loss) per share 

① Diluted earnings (loss) per share for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

② Weighted average number of ordinary shares

29. Earnings (loss) per Share

 
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to the owners of the Company
Interests of hybrid securities, net of tax
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding
Basic earnings (loss) per share

2015

(383,067)
(12,721)

 29,552,204
 (13,393)

2016

168,195
(12,849)

29,552,204
5,257

Korean won (millions)

 
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to the owners of the Company (basic)
Interests of hybrid securities, net of tax
Effect of convertible bonds, net of tax (*)
Effect of exchange of exchangeable bond, net of tax (*)
Diluted profit attributable to ordinary shareholders
Diluted weighted average number of ordinary shares
Diluted earnings (loss) per share 

2015

(383,067)
(12,721)

(1)
(6,455)

(402,244)
29,552,204

(13,611)

2016

168,195
(12,849)

(302)
-

155,044
29,552,204

5,246

Korean won (millions, except per share amount)

 
Issued ordinary shares at January 1
Effect of treasury shares
Weighted average number of ordinary shares

2015

31,490,892
(1,938,688)
29,552,204

2016

31,490,892
(1,938,688)
29,552,204

Korean won (millions)

2016

 
Net change in unrealized fair value of available for-sale 
financial assets
Exchange rate differences on translating foreign operations
Effective portion of unrealized changes in fair values of cash 
flow hedges
Change in equity of equity method investments

Total

 
Beginning balance

90,698 

(32,385)
(12,264)

49,453 

95,502

Changes  
for the year 

(12,107) 

10,287
4,489

(16,184) 

(13,515)

Tax effects  
for the year 

3,731 

(115)
897

1,453 

5,966

Balance at  
December 31, 2016

82,322 

(22,213)
(6,878)
34,722 

87,953

Korean won (millions)

Changes in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

28. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

2015

 
Net change in unrealized fair value of available for-sale 
financial assets
Exchange rate differences on translating foreign operations
Effective portion of unrealized changes in fair values of cash 
flow hedges
Change in equity of equity method investments

Total

 
Beginning balance

145,678  

(70,788)
(10,950) 

42,896 
106,836 

Changes  
for the year 

(76,939) 

38,458
(3,050) 

12,131
(29,400)

Tax effects  
for the year 

21,959 

(55)
1,736 

(5,574)
18,066

Balance at  
December 31, 2015

90,698 

(32,385)
(12,264) 

49,453
95,502

Korean won (millions) (*) F�or the year ended 31, 2016, the shares related to USD convertible bonds, JPY convertible bonds and exchangeable bonds were excluded from diluted earnings (loss) per share calculation as their effect would have 

been anti-dilutive.  For the year ended 31, 2015, the shares related to USD convertible bonds and JPY convertible bonds were excluded from diluted earnings (loss) per share calculation as their effect would have 

been anti-dilutive.

② Diluted weighted average number of ordinary shares

 
Basic weighted average number of ordinary shares
Effect of conversion of convertible bonds
Diluted weighted average number of ordinary shares

2015

29,552,204
-

29,552,204

2016

29,552,204
-

29,552,204

Number of shares
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(a) Details of sales for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 are as follows: Details of other income and expenses for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

 Details of nature of expenses for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

30. Sales and Cost of Saless 32. Other income and expenses

33. Nature of Expenses

 
Sales of merchandise(*)
Sales of products
Other operating revenue
Revenue of card business

Total

2015

24,166,462
54,982

3,409,872
1,496,339

29,127,655

2016

24,413,576
55,396

3,571,908
1,485,533

29,526,413

Korean won (millions)

 
Other income:

Gain on foreign currency transactions
Gain on foreign currency translation
Gain on disposal of investment property
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Gain on disposal of intangible assets
Reversal of impairment losses on other non-current assets
Reversal of impairment losses on intangible assets
Others (*1)

Total
Other expenses:

Loss on foreign currency transactions
Loss on foreign currency translation
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment
Loss on disposal of intangible assets
Impairment loss on intangible assets
Impairment loss of Non-current assets held for sale
Loss on disposal of other non-current assets
Impairment loss on other non-current assets
Donation
Other bad debt expenses 
Taxes and dues
Others (*2)

Total

2015

2,069
441
699

2,295
-
1

41
76,010
81,556

3,306
99

41,306
17,670

805
618,638

-
38

13,543
32,721

3,631
7,961

113,587
853,305

2016

1,944
829

-
2,786

56
-
9

155,567
161,191

3,786
704

7,404
73,528

184
201,523

432
59

15,616
25,158

6,217
481

160,087
495,179

Korean won (millions)

 
Purchase of inventories
Changes in inventories
Employee benefits expense
Rent
Depreciation and amortization
Sales commissions
Sales promotion expenses
Commissions
Service commission expenses
Advertising
Utilities
Taxes and dues
Others 

Total

2015

18,942,312
(96,736)

1,905,347
1,116,273

986,190
759,712
552,772
871,652
954,167
368,333
390,072
183,584

1,340,264
28,273,942

2016

18,915,692
(48,088)

2,017,487
1,184,722

973,164
808,075
600,275
968,171

1,075,306
341,480
389,096
173,362

1,187,310
28,586,052

Korean won (millions)

(b) Details of cost of sales for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

 
Cost of merchandise sold
Cost of products sold
Cost of other operating revenue
Cost of card business

Total

2015

18,876,180
31,691

435,447
873,826

20,217,144

2016

18,896,251
31,076

421,756
847,198

20,196,281

Korean won (millions)

(*) Sales of merchandise include the VAT refund for sales in the amount of mileage accruals, which is 136,784 million won.

(*1) Others primarily relates to income from unused gift certificates after expiration date and penalty from suppliers on delayed delivery of merchandise.

(*2) Others primarily relates to non-deductible value added tax.

Details of selling, general and administrative expenses for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

31. Selling, General and Administrative Expenses:

 
Salaries
Retirement and termination benefits
Other employee benefits
Employee welfare
Education and training
Travel
Maintenance fee for car
Insurance premium
Taxes and dues (*)
Entertainment expenses
Supplies and stationery
Communications
Utilities
Maintenance
Rent
Depreciation
Amortization of intangible assets
Commissions and fees
Service commission expenses
Advertising
Sales promotion expenses
Decoration
Bad debt expenses
Transportation
Provisions
Others

Total

2015

1,456,508
116,484

6,159
317,500

22,117
38,369

4,127
19,165

181,279
12,266
83,137
44,202

386,600
90,537

1,106,415
818,732

88,117
1,183,261

893,871
340,481
552,648

16,656
39,331

218,560
5,007

15,269
8,056,798

2016

1,538,496
124,854

17,619
328,430

23,754
38,129

4,488
21,090

166,946
11,189
88,101
42,738

385,628
88,962

1,173,251
810,413

96,918
1,288,430

979,039
317,911
598,974

20,859
(25,817)
232,088

3,314
13,967

8,389,771

Korean won (millions)

(*) Taxes and dues exclude the comprehensive real estate holding tax refunds of ₩24,303 million won.
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(a) Details of finance income and finance costs for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 are as follows: (b) �Details of finance income and finance costs by financial instruments category for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 
2015 are as follows:

34. Finance Income and Finance Costs

 
Finance income:

Interest income
Dividend income
Gain on foreign currency transactions
Gain on foreign currency translation
Gain on valuation of financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale financial assets 
Gain on valuation of derivative instruments held for the purpose of hedging
Gain on valuation of derivative instruments held for the purpose of trading
Gain on transaction of derivative instruments held for the purpose of hedging
Gain on disposal of investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures

Total
Finance costs:

Interest expense
Loss on foreign currency transactions
Loss on foreign currency translation
Loss on valuation of financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Loss on disposal of available-for-sale financial assets 
Impairment loss on available-for-sale financial assets
Loss on valuation of derivative instruments held for the purpose of trading
Loss on transaction of derivative instruments held for the purpose of hedging
Loss on redemption of debentures
Financial guarantee costs
Loss on disposal of investments in associates, joint ventures and subsidiaries
Impairment loss on investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures

Total

2015

92,885
8,364

808
21,406

-
28,270
97,027

1,169
8,445

12,595
270,969

254,350
28,379

128,528
8,115

803
6,905

12,279
239

-
-

16
-

439,614

2016

87,037
7,070

12,670
38,986

22
8

46,200
15,754

-
5,519

213,266

237,072
723

96,723
-

420
1,971
1,673

19,996
20,060

7,697
59

5,233
391,627

Korean won (millions)

2016

   

Recognized in profit or loss :
Interest income
Interest expense
Dividend income
Valuation / Disposal
Impairment
Gain (loss) on foreign currency 
translation/transactions
Commission revenue
Others

Subtotal
Recognized in other compre-
hensive income (loss) (*):
Gain (loss) on valuation of avail-
able-for-sale financial assets
Loss on valuation of derivative  
instruments

Subtotal
Total

Cash and 
cash equiv-

alents

45,136
-
-
-
-

180 

-
-

45,316
 

- 

- 

-
45,316

Financial liabil-
ities based on 

amortized cost

-
(412,446)

-
-
-

(83,000) 

-
(26,923)

(522,369)
 

- 

- 

-
(522,369)

Korean won (millions)
Loans  

and re-
ceivables

778,856
-
-

31,263
(186,692)

7,176 

846,135
(811,409)

665,329
 

- 

- 

-
665,329

Available-for-
sale financial 

assets

54
-

7,115
(255)

(4,496)
53 

-
-

2,471
 

(15,689) 

- 

(15,689)
(13,218)

Financial assets and 
liabilities at fair value 
through profit or loss

132
-
-

14,103
-
- 

-
(834)

13,401
 

- 

- 

-
13,401

Derivative assets and 
liabilities held for the 

purpose of hedging

-
-
-

86,658
-
- 

-
(20,084)

66,574
 

- 

4,760 

4,760
71,334

 
 

Total

824,178
(412,446)

7,115
131,769

(191,188)
(75,591) 

846,135
(859,250)

270,722
 

(15,689) 

4,760 

(10,929)
259,793

2015

   

Recognized in profit or loss :
Interest income
Interest expense
Dividend income
Valuation / Disposal
Impairment
Gain (loss) on foreign currency 
translation/transactions
Commission revenue
Others

Subtotal
Recognized in other compre-
hensive income (loss) (*):
Gain (loss) on valuation of avail-
able-for-sale financial assets
Loss on valuation of derivative  
instruments

Subtotal
Total

Cash and 
cash equiv-

alents

39,400
-
-
-
-

426 

-
-

39,826
 

- 

- 

-
39,826

Financial liabil-
ities based on 

amortized cost

-
(425,459)

-
-
-

(191,130) 

-
-

(616,589)
 

- 

- 

-
(616,589)

Korean won (millions)
Loans  

and re-
ceivables

782,917
-
-

27,429
(248,935)

689 

837,198
(754,689)

644,609
 

- 

- 

-
644,609

Available-for-
sale financial 

assets

417
-

8,301
27,728

(15,661)
- 

-
-

20,785
 

(99,835) 

- 

(99,835)
(79,050)

Financial assets and 
liabilities at fair value 
through profit or loss

76
-
-

(17,034)
-
- 

-
-

(16,958)
 

- 

- 

-
(16,958)

Derivative assets and 
liabilities held for the 

purpose of hedging

-
-
-

147,621
-
- 

-
22,544

170,165
 

- 

(2,880) 

(2,880)
167,285

 
 

Total

822,810
(425,459)

8,301
185,744

(264,596)
(190,015) 

837,198
(732,145)

241,838
 

(99,835) 

(2,880) 

(102,715)
139,123

(*) �The gain/loss on valuation of available-for-sale finance assets and of derivative assets and liabilities held for the purpose of hedging (other comprehensive income/loss) are amounts before offsetting effects of 

income taxes.

(*) �The gain/loss on valuation of available-for-sale finance assets and of derivative assets and liabilities held for the purpose of hedging (other comprehensive income/loss) are amounts before offsetting effects of 

income taxes.
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Income tax related to actuarial losses (gains), losses (gains) on valuation of available-for-sale financial assets, cumulative effect of 
foreign currency translation, losses (gains) on valuation of derivatives, and changes in equity using equity method of accounting 
are recognized in other comprehensive income.

(a) The components of income tax expense for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

(e) Changes in deferred tax assets (liabilities) for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

(b) During 2016 and 2015, the details of income tax expense recognized directly to equity are as follows:

(c) During 2016 and 2015, statutory to actual effective tax rates are reconciled as follows:

(d) �Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the tax rate to be applied for the year in which temporary differenc-
es are expected to be reversed.

35. Income Taxes

 
Current tax
Deferred tax
Income taxes directly (charged) credited  to equity
Income tax expense

2015

249,283
(12,561)

29,015
265,737

2016

271,491
(32,180)

3,235
242,546

Korean won (millions)

 
Change in fair value of available-for-sale financial assets
Exchange differences on translating foreign operations
Effective portion of changes in fair value of cash flow hedges 
Defined benefit plan actuarial gain
Change in equity of equity method investments
Others
Income tax directly (charged) credited to equity

2015

27,502
(55)

1,695
5,000

(5,184)
57

29,015

2016

4,597
(115)

832
(3,685)

1,590
16

3,235

Korean won (millions)

 
Profit before income tax
Tax rates (%)
Income tax using statutory tax rates
Adjustment:
Tax effects on non-taxable income
Tax effects on non-deductible expense 
Tax credit
Adjustments for prior periods
Tax effects on share of net income of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
Unused tax losses for which no deferred tax asset is recognized 
Others
Income tax expenses
Effective tax rate (%) (*)

2015

(79,764)
23.60%

(18,827)

(15,074)
31,904
(1,067)

1,847
33,949

229,838
3,167

265,737
-

2016

489,421
25.53%

124,970

(21,306)
19,891

(276)
11,786
27,391
75,288

4,802
242,546
49.56%

Korean won (millions)

(*)The Group has not present effective tax rate due to loss incurred in 2015.

2016

 
Impairment loss on available-for-sale financial assets
Buildings
Depreciation expense
Allowance for doubtful accounts
Accrued revenues
Unearned revenues
Non-current prepaid expenses
Losses on valuation of inventories
Provision for sales return
Property, plant and equipment 
(capitalization of borrowing costs)
Land
Land (asset revaluation)
Provision for mileage program
Accrued expense
Gain (loss) on foreign currency translation
Gain (loss) on valuation of convertible bonds
Construction-in-progress
Other intangible assets
Rental guarantee deposits
Goodwill
Exchangeable debenture
Other capital surplus
Investments in subsidiaries and associates
Loss (gain) on valuation of available-for-sale financial assets
Loss (gain) on valuation of derivatives
Salaries and retirement benefits
Translation difference of foreign subsidiaries
Others

Total

 
Beginning balance

5,759
(13,877)

46,462
2,557

(1,380)
14,450

(40,002)
5,170
2,186

(9,783) 

32,548
(1,021,654)

14,396
24,152

1,831
(450)
1,651

(51,021)
12,432

(50,987)
(4,706)
62,270

(332,893)
(74,673)

16,961
20,682

2,430
29,561

(1,305,928)

 
Profit or loss 

1,084
1,059

16,771
(586)

422
(811)
1,989
1,757

95
421 

-
(71)

(6,946)
1,132
(421)

450
(26)

2,491
(354)
6,041
4,600

16
(29,834)

-
(5,102)

6,789
-

27,979
28,945

Other comprehen-
sive income 

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
- 

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

1,606
4,597

832
(3,685)

(115)
-

3,235

Balance at  
December 31, 2016

6,843
(12,818)

63,233
1,971
(958)

13,639
(38,013)

6,927
2,281

(9,362) 

32,548
(1,021,725)

7,450
25,284

1,410
-

1,625
(48,530)

12,078
(44,946)

(106)
62,286

(361,121)
(70,076)

12,691
23,786

2,315
57,540

(1,273,748)

Korean won (millions)
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2015

 
Impairment loss on available-for-sale financial assets
Buildings
Depreciation expense
Allowance for doubtful accounts
Accrued revenues
Unearned revenues
Non-current prepaid expenses
Losses on valuation of inventories
Provision for sales return
Property, plant and equipment 
(capitalization of borrowing costs)
Land
Land (asset revaluation)
Provision for mileage program
Accrued expense
Gain (loss) on foreign currency translation
Gain (loss) on valuation of convertible bonds
Construction-in-progress
Other intangible assets
Rental guarantee deposits
Goodwill
Exchangeable debenture
Other capital surplus
Investments in subsidiaries and associates
Loss (gain) on valuation of available-for-sale financial assets
Loss (gain) on valuation of derivatives
Salaries and retirement benefits
Translation difference of foreign subsidiaries
Others

Total

 
Beginning balance

1,969
(13,458)

42,624
2,586

(1,404)
30,553

(40,445)
2,563
2,296

(10,293) 

32,548
(1,022,505)

18,652
24,082

5,201
(891)
1,707

(52,072)
12,744

(72,574)
(6,874)
62,270

(290,708)
(102,175)

15,446
18,756

2,485
18,428

(1,318,489)

 
Profit or loss 

3,790
(419)
3,838

(29)
24

(16,103)
443

2,607
(110)

510 

-
851

(4,256)
70

(3,370)
441
(56)

1,051
(312)

21,587
2,168

-
(37,058)

-
(180)

(3,074)
-

11,133
(16,454)

Other comprehen-
sive income 

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
- 

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

(5,127)
27,502

1,695
5,000

(55)
-

29,015

Balance at  
December 31, 2015

5,759
(13,877)

46,462
2,557

(1,380)
14,450

(40,002)
5,170
2,186

(9,783) 

32,548
(1,021,654)

14,396
24,152

1,831
(450)
1,651

(51,021)
12,432

(50,987)
(4,706)
62,270

(332,893)
(74,673)

16,961
20,682

2,430
29,561

(1,305,928)

Korean won (millions)

(f) �As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the amounts of total deductible temporary differences related to investments in associ-
ates, joint ventures and subsidiaries for which deferred tax assets were not recognized are as follows:

 
Investments in associates and joint ventures
Investments in subsidiaries

Total

December 31, 2015

343,253
1,942,984
2,286,237

December 31, 2016

321,552
2,105,462
2,427,014

Korean won (millions)

As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the details of cash and cash equivalents are as follows:

36. Consolidated statements of cash flows

 
Cash
Deposits
Other cash equivalents

Total

December 31, 2015

37,243
587,247

1,126,778
1,751,268

December 31, 2016

54,892
655,861

1,558,424
2,269,177

Korean won (millions)

37. Operating Leases

38. Greenhouse Gases Emission Rights

 
Within 1 year
1 ~ 5 years
Thereafter

Total

2015

929,426
2,989,971
7,471,285

11,390,682

2016

982,750
3,100,982
7,577,035

11,660,767

Korean won (millions)

 
2015
2016
2017

Total

860,971
842,554
819,895

2,523,420

Emissions (tCO₂-eq)

 
Within 1 year
1 ~ 5 years
Thereafter

Total

2015

143,525
192,862
150,477
486,864

2016

141,931
206,134
129,860
477,925

Korean won (millions)

(a) Lessee

The Group has entered into the operating leases for buildings, furniture and fixtures and vehicles.  Future lease payments under 
operating leases of land and buildings as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

(a) Emission Right

The Group participates in the allocation and trading system of emissions.  The commitment period is from 2015 to 2017.  The 
emissions were allocated to each compliance year as follows:

There is no pledged emission and the Group has 1,716,733tCO₂-eq of emissions.

(b) Emission liability

The Group has estimated to emit 836,954tCO₂-eq of CO₂ in 2016.

(b) Lessor

The Group has entered into operating leases of certain of its properties and equipment.  Future minimum lease payments receiv-
able under operating leases as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

In lieu of rent, certain agreements require the Group to advance a non-interest bearing refundable security deposit to the landlord 
for the Group’s use during the lease term.  The amount of the advance is determined by the prevailing market rate.  The Group 
has recorded rent expense and interest income related to these leases of W 44,032 million and W44,778 million during 2016 and 
W41,380 million and  W45,316 million during 2015, respectively.  The related deposit balances amount to W1,888,208 million and 
W1,827,999 million as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 respectively.  Such amounts were measured using the fixed interest rate for 
time deposits with similar maturities.
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(a) �The Group’s reportable segments consist of department stores (retail), discount stores (retail), finance business, consumer 
electronics retail, convenience stores and others (television home shopping, supermarkets, movie theaters and clothing 
retail) as follows:

39. Operating Segments and Geographic Information

 
 
Main  
business 

Major products  
or services

Department  
stores 
Retail stores for 
middle and higher-
end merchandise
Sales of merchandise 
and leasing

Discount  
stores
Retail and whole-sale stores 
for middle and discounted 
price merchandise
Sales of merchandise and 
leasing

Finance  
business
Credit financial 
services 

Credit card and 
loan services

Consumer elec-
tronics retail
Retail store for 
home appliance 

Sales of home 
appliance

Convenience  
stores
General retail stores 
for mainly beverag-
es and groceries
Sales of merchan-
dise and others

Others 

Others 
 

Sales of merchandise, 
leasing and others

(b) Information about reportable segments as of and for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

December 31, 2016

Total 

29,526,413
541,041

30,067,454
179,656 
332,859 
958,771 

61,409  

219,637 
(384,369)

48,030,251 
25,631,615 

External sales
Inter-segment sales
Total sales
Interest income
Interest expenses
Depreciation and amortization
Equity method income (loss) of 
investments in associates
Income tax expense
Segment profit
Segment assets
Segment liabilities

Department 
stores

7,997,835
31,929

8,029,764
97,067 
11,391 

363,461 
65,039  

188,986 
519,480 

16,725,046 
9,817,552 

Discount 
stores

8,147,208
53,528

8,200,736
15,583 

217,434 
233,027 

(1,259) 

(72,795)
(510,990)
9,510,129 
2,821,322 

Finance 
business
1,588,514

198,482
1,786,996

816 
3,181 

50,504 
3,237  

38,031 
110,494 

10,225,623 
8,074,714 

Others 

4,170,616
235,707

4,406,323
49,452 
75,695 

194,261 
(5,608) 

13,428 
(641,037)
7,341,041 
2,987,128 

Convenience 
stores

3,688,009
16,184

3,704,193
11,322 

7,368 
65,105 

- 

10,879 
16,256 

1,223,553 
821,701 

Consumer  
electronics retail

3,934,231
5,211

3,939,442
5,416 

17,790 
52,413 

- 

41,108 
121,428 

3,004,859 
1,109,198 

Korean won (millions)

December 31, 2015

Total 

29,127,655
557,603

29,685,258
171,887
335,319
971,688

6,917 

244,659
(994,715)

46,717,930
24,484,120

External sales
Inter-segment sales
Total sales
Interest income
Interest expenses
Depreciation and amortization
Equity method income (loss) of 
investments in associates
Income tax expense
Segment profit
Segment assets
Segment liabilities

Department 
stores

8,011,056
21,476

8,032,532
93,536

8,690
368,012

13,721 

144,202
447,010

16,704,343
9,886,930

Discount 
stores

8,272,480
51,212

8,323,692
15,965

219,101
232,264

(1,325) 

(10,464)
(470,282)
9,742,640
2,678,163

Finance 
business
1,587,249

202,699
1,789,948

767
1,841

47,682
209 

41,792
119,811

9,402,558
7,365,241

Others 

4,070,601
257,534

4,328,135
44,111
73,375

205,061
(4,839) 

20,337
(1,153,696)

6,813,434
2,668,690

Convenience 
stores

3,296,465
18,349

3,314,814
11,643

8,235
66,283

(849) 

12,161
(44,153)

1,149,742
762,710

Consumer  
electronics retail

3,889,804
6,333

3,896,137
5,865

24,077
52,386

- 

36,631
106,595

2,905,213
1,122,386

Korean won (millions)

(d) �Reconciliation of segment assets and liabilities to their respective consolidated financial statement line items as of 
December 31, 2016 and 2015 are summarized as follows:

 
Department stores
Discount stores
Finance business
Consumer electronics retail
Convenience stores
Others

Segment totals
Elimination of inter-segment assets and liabilities
Adjustments of business combinations
Investments in subsidiaries and associates

Subtotal
After consolidated adjustments

Korean won (millions) December 31, 2016

Assets
16,725,046

9,510,129
10,225,623

3,004,859
1,223,553
7,341,041

48,030,251
(1,136,771)

817,543 
(5,795,116)
(6,114,344)
41,915,907 

Liabilities
9,817,552
2,821,322
8,074,714
1,109,197

821,701
2,987,129

25,631,615
(1,136,771)

157,021 
-

(979,750)
24,651,865 

 
Department stores
Discount stores
Finance business
Consumer electronics retail
Convenience stores
Others

Segment totals
Elimination of inter-segment amounts
After consolidated adjustments

Korean won (millions) 2015

Sales
8,032,532
8,323,692
1,789,948
3,896,137
3,314,814
4,328,135

29,685,258
(557,603)

29,127,655

Profit for the year 
447,010

(470,282)
119,811
106,595
(44,153)

(1,153,696)
(994,715)

649,214
(345,501)

(c) �Reconciliations of total segment sales and profit to their respective consolidated financial statements line items for the 
years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 are summarized as follows:

 
Department stores
Discount stores
Finance business
Consumer electronics retail
Convenience stores
Others

Segment totals
Elimination of inter-segment amounts
After consolidated adjustments

Korean won (millions) 2016

Sales
8,029,764
8,200,736
1,786,996
3,939,442
3,704,193
4,406,323

30,067,454
(541,041)

29,526,413

Profit for the year 
519,480

(510,990)
110,494
121,428

16,256
(641,037)
(384,369)

631,244
246,875
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(f) Non-current assets by geographical areas as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 are summarized as follows:

Region 
Domestic
China
Vietnam
Indonesia

Total

December 31, 2015

18,082,243 
467,401 
374,769 
214,477 

19,138,890

December 31, 2016

18,078,815 
514,094 
469,497 
227,431 

19,289,837

Korean won (millions)

Non-current assets by geographic areas include investment property, property, plant and equipment, goodwill and other intan-
gible assets.

 
Department stores
Discount stores
Finance business
Consumer electronics retail
Convenience stores
Others

Segment totals
Elimination of inter-segment assets and liabilities
Adjustments of business combinations
Investments in subsidiaries and associates

Subtotal
After consolidated adjustments

Korean won (millions) December 31, 2015

Assets
16,704,343

9,742,640
9,402,558
2,905,213
1,149,742
6,813,434

46,717,930
(1,041,480)

851,662
(5,834,746)
(6,024,564)
40,693,366

Liabilities
9,886,930
2,678,163
7,365,241
1,122,386

762,710
2,668,690

24,484,120
(1,041,480)

162,884
-

(878,596)
23,605,524

(e) Sales by geographical areas for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 are summarized as follows:

Region 
Domestic
China
Vietnam
Indonesia

Total

2015

26,893,998
1,475,706

278,390
1,037,164

29,685,258

2016

27,346,192
1,243,675

339,419
1,138,168

30,067,454

Korean won (millions)

In presenting information on the basis of geographical areas, geographic sales is based on the physical location of customers.

(g) �Sales by types of products and services for each operating segment for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 are 
summarized as follows:

December 31, 2016

Total 

24,443,214 
55,396 

1,681,742 
1,015,351 
1,360,847 
1,510,904 

30,067,454 

Sales of merchandise
Sales of products
Financial income
Commissions
Rental income
Others
Total segment sales

Department 
stores

6,838,341 
-
-
-

1,106,113 
85,310 

8,029,764 

Discount 
stores

7,635,324 
-
-
-

209,433 
355,979 

8,200,736 

Finance 
business

5,861 
-

1,681,742 
-
-

99,393 
1,786,996 

Others (*) 

2,562,338 
55,396 

-
789,175 

43,911 
955,503 

4,406,323 

Convenience 
stores

3,477,770 
-
-

226,176 
247 

-
3,704,193 

Consumer  
electronics retail

3,923,580 
-
-
-

1,143 
14,719 

3,939,442 

Korean won (millions)

(h) There are no customers whose sales represent 10% or more or consolidated sales.

December 31, 2015

Total 

24,195,210 
54,982 

1,697,784 
986,811 

1,319,950 
1,430,521 

29,685,258 

Sales of merchandise
Sales of products
Financial income
Commissions
Rental income
Others
Total segment sales

Department 
stores

6,929,852 
-
-
-

1,034,857 
67,823 

8,032,532 

Discount 
stores

7,753,894 
-
-
-

227,416 
342,382 

8,323,692 

Finance 
business

3,894 
-

1,697,784 
-
-

88,270 
1,789,948 

Others (*) 

2,524,188 
54,982 

-
774,906 

55,836 
918,223 

4,328,135 

Convenience 
stores

3,102,471 
-
-

211,905 
438 

-
3,314,814 

Consumer  
electronics retail

3,880,911 
-
-
-

1,403 
13,823 

3,896,137 

Korean won (millions)

(*) Others represent television home shopping, supermarkets and etc.

(a) As of December 31, 2016, the Group has the following credit facility commitments with financial institutions:

40. Contingent Liabilities and Financial Commitments

 
General loan  
 
 
 
 

Discount of bill
Buyer’s credit
Bank overdraft 

Guarantee
Letter of credit
Others

Amount used under credit facility

457,250
2,353,724

2,985,760,442
943,872

2,120,000,000
8,000

1,352,500
316,339

-
207,887

3,854
6,612

51

Korean won (millions), Foreign currency (thousands)
Credit line

1,752,550
3,559,578

3,103,030,000
943,970

2,423,080,000
8,000

1,662,500
3,022,068

241,000
300,000

10,002
38,800
67,000

 
KRW
CNY
VND
USD
IDR
HKD
KRW
KRW
KRW
CNY
KRW
USD
KRW

(b) Material contracts of the Group are as follows:

Company 
Lotte Shopping Co., Ltd.
Lotte Card Co., Ltd. 

Woori Home Shopping & 
Television Co., Ltd. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Korea Seven Co., Ltd.
NCF Co., Ltd. 

Buy the way Inc. 

Description of contract 
Providing management services
Commissions based on credit card transaction amount 

Contract of operating leases
Issuing credit cards 
 

Logistics services 
 
 
 

Providing broadcast programs
Using the registered trademark and operating know-how
Royalty payments based on net revenue of selling and 
manufacturing amounts
Using the registered trademark and operating know-how
Renewal guarantees of payments for goods every year

Contractor 
Lotte Station Building Co., Ltd.
American Express Company, Master Card International, Visa 
International, JCB International and UNIONPAY INTERNATIONAL
Lotte Capital Co., Ltd.
Shinhan card
Lotte Card Co., Ltd.
BC CARD CO., LTD.
LOTTE LOGISTICS CORP.
Lotte Global Logistics Co., LTD.  
(formerly, Hyundai Logistics Co.,Ltd.)
CJ Korea Express Corporation
HANJIN TRANSPORTATION CO., LTD.
Cable TV operators
7-Eleven, Inc.
Nice Claup Co., Ltd. 

7-Eleven, Inc.
KTOTO.CO.,LTD.
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(c) �As of December 31, 2016, the Group is the plaintiff in various lawsuits with damage claims totaling ₩64,920 million and 
the Group is the defendant in various lawsuits with damage claims totaling ₩101,289 million, among which ₩20,953 
million is related to a claim against Lotte Card Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company, related to personal data leaks.  
Regarding 93 lawsuits out of various with damage claims as the defendant, the Group recorded W14,428 million as other 
provision as of December 31, 2016.  The management believes that the ultimate resolutions of other legal actions, except 
93 lawsuits above, will not have a material effect of the financial position or results of operations of the Group.  Among 
₩101,289 million, ₩19,277 million is related to victims of humidifier disinfectant.  The Group recognized other liabilities 
of ₩17,575 million in regard to the claim on victims of humidifier disinfectant as of December 31, 2016.  Also, the Group 
cannot reliably estimate the outcome and financial impacts from lawsuit for the case of the first trial of which is ongoing, 
related to personal data leaks.  However, the Group recognized other provision of ₩3,122 million in regard to the ongoing 
court appeals for the case of the first trials of which are lost or similar cases regarding personal data leaks cases.  As Woori 
Home Shopping & Television Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company, received the penalty of six months of administrative 
suspension (6 hours per day), the administrative litigation for cancellation of business suspension is in progress.  The 
Group cannot reliably estimate the impacts from lawsuit results on this business suspension case. 

(d) �Lotte Card Co., Ltd. has sold certain card assets to SPCs pursuant to the Assets-Backed Securitization Law of the Republic 
of Korea and assumed the liability to pay the outstanding card assets when the transferred card assets cannot meet the 
prescribed qualifications in the contract or fall into arrears in accordance with the terms of assets transfer agreement and 
other contracts.  Accordingly, as prescribed in the assets transfer agreement and other contracts, the SPCs have obligations 
of early redemption of the asset-backed securities when average portfolio earnings ratio during three consecutive settle-
ment periods is lower than the average primary cost ratio or when outstanding balance of adjusted securitized assets is 
less than the minimum principal balance as of closing date of each settlement period and others.

(e) �The Company has the right to purchase 5.1% of the Lotte Global Logistics Co.,LTD.(formerly, Hyundai Logistics Co., Ltd.) 
shares held by IGIS I Corporation and during 2016, the call option was exercised due to the coming of the event period.  
In connection with IGIS I Corporation’s borrowings, all IGIS I Corporation shares (₩5,353 million of book value) held by 
the Company have been in pledge in Mizuho Corporate Bank.  As the option exercise period was coming, the Company 
exercised the call options.  Also, as IGIS I Corporation repaid its borrowings, the pledge is canceled.

(f) �The Company has provided, a joint guarantee for debentures of ₩16,000 million issued by Hi-Lotte Movie Co., Ltd. and 
related financial guarantee liabilities of ₩7,697 million was recognized as of December 31, 2016.

(g) �The Group disposed of land and buildings to structured entities and the Group has been leasing the assets.  The details 
are as follows:

① �The Company disposed of land and buildings of 3 stores including Lotte mart Jeju store to KTB Confidence Private Real Estate 
Investment Trust for ₩220 billion in 2008 and the Company has been leasing the assets.  The Company has the options to 
purchase the assets at a fair value at the end of the lease.

② �The Company disposed of land and buildings of 6 stores including Lotte department store Bundang store to Lotte Retail Real 
Estate Investment Trust for ₩595 billion in 2010 and 2011, and the Company has been leasing the assets.  The Company has 
the options to purchase the assets at a fair value at the end of the lease.

③ �The Company has been leasing the building of Lotte outlet esiapolis store from KB Star Retail Private Real Estate Investment 
Trust since 2013 and the Company has the preferential right of negotiation to purchase the building

④ �In 2014, the Company disposed of land and buildings of 2 Lotte department stores including Ilsan store and 5 Lotte mart stores 
including Bupyeong store to KTB Confidence Private Real Estate Investment Trust for ₩602 billion and the Company has been 
leasing the assets.  The Company disposed of land and buildings of 2 Lotte department stores including Dongnae store and 3 
Lotte mart stores including Sungjung store to Capstone Private Real Estate Investment Trust for ₩500 billion and the Company 
has been leasing the assets.  The Company has the preferential right of negotiation to purchase the assets at the end of the lease.

⑤ �In 2015, the Company disposed of land and buildings of Lotte outlets store Gwangmyeong to KTB Confidence Private Real 

Estate Investment Trust for ₩147 billion and the Company has been leasing the assets. And the Company disposed of land 
and buildings of Lotte mart Yangdeok to KB Lotte Master Lease Private Real Estate Investment Trust for ₩55 billion and the 
Company has been leasing the assets.  The Company has the preferential right of negotiation to purchase the assets at the end 
of the lease. 

The Group does not consolidate these structured entities.

(a) The Group has provided guarantees for consolidated companies as of December 31, 2016 as follows:

41.  Inter-company Transactions and Balances with Consolidated Companies

 
Consolidated company 
Lotte Business Management (Tianjin) Co., Ltd.
LOTTE DEPARTMENT STORE (TIANJIN) CO., LTD.
Lotte Department Store (Shenyang) Co., Ltd.
PT. LOTTE Shopping Avenue Indonesia 

Jiangsu Times Supermarket Co., Ltd.(*) 
 

LOTTE MART COMPANY LIMITED
Liaoning LOTTE Mart Co., Ltd.
LOTTE MART (CHENGDU) COMMERCIAL  
COMPANY LIMITED
LOTTE CINEMA VIETNAM CO., LTD. 
 
 
 

Lotte Shopping Holdings  
(Hong Kong) Co., Limited 
 
 
 
 
 

LOTTE PROPERTIES (CHENGDU) HK LIMITED 

Lucky Pai (Shanghai) Trading Co., Ltd 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Provided by 
Lotte Shopping Co., Ltd.
Lotte Shopping Co., Ltd.
Lotte Shopping Co., Ltd.
Lotte Shopping Co., Ltd. 

Lotte Shopping Co., Ltd. 
 

Lotte Shopping Co., Ltd.
Lotte Shopping Co., Ltd.
Lotte Shopping Co., Ltd. 

Lotte Shopping Co., Ltd. 
 
 
 

Lotte Shopping Co., Ltd. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Lotte Shopping Co., Ltd. 

Lotte Shopping Co., Ltd. 
and Woori Home Shopping 
& Television Co., Ltd. 
 
 
 

 
Guarantee recipient
BNP Paribas
KEB Hana Bank
BNP Paribas
DBS
JP Morgan
DBS
HSBC
HSBC
HSBC
HSBC
HSBC 

ING
ING
DBS
DBS
Standard Chartered
Standard Chartered
BNP Paribas
Citibank, N.A., Hong Kong Branch
SMBC
ING
Shinhan Bank
HSBC
BNP Paribas
Shinhan Bank
KEB Hana Bank
KEB Hana Bank
KEB Hana Bank
INDUSTRIAL BANK OF KOREA
KEB Hana Bank
Woori Bank
Shinhan Bank
KEB Hana Bank

2016

Type of  
borrowings
Working capital
Working capital
Working capital
Working capital 

Working capital 
 

Working capital
Working capital
Working capital 

Working capital 
 
 
 

Working capital 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Working capital 

Working capital 
 
 
 
 
 

Guaranteed amount    
(thousands)
CNY 150,000
CNY 170,000

CNY 50,000
USD 20,000

IDR 200,000,000
CNY 330,000
CNY 750,000
CNY 125,000
CNY 200,000
CNY 150,000

CNY 50,000 

USD 5,000
USD 5,000
USD 8,000
USD 8,000

VND 112,000,000
USD 38,136
USD 38,135
USD 38,135
USD 38,135

USD 120,214
HKD 8,000

USD 95,298  
USD 104,818

USD 50,000
USD 140,000

CNY 58,000
CNY 39,900
CNY 46,000
CNY 57,000
CNY 15,000
CNY 14,000
CNY 20,100

(*) The subsidiary is included in ‘Swift Harvest Ltd. and its subsidiaries’ in the note 1.(2)

(b) �In 2015, the Company entered into an agreement to provide financial support for Suwon Landmark the Second Co., Ltd. 
in default of the principal and interest on the Asset Backed Commercial Paper (“ABCP”, ₩250,000 million of par value in 
maturing in 36 months) issued by Suwon Landmark the Second Co., Ltd. on May 28, 2015, which was collateralized with 
the assets of LOTTE Suwon Station Shopping Town CO., LTD. In 2016, the Company entered into an agreement to pro-
vide financial support for KS the First Co., Ltd. in default of the principal and interest on the Asset Backed Commercial 
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Paper (“ABCP”, ₩266,000 million of par value in maturing in 27 months) issued by KS the First Co., Ltd. on August 30, 
2016, which was collateralized with the assets of Lotte Ulsan Development Co., Ltd.

(c) �The Company has provided guarantees for Lotte Suwon Station Shopping Town Co., Ltd. to pay the rent during the term 
of the lease (20 years) from the beginning of the lease contract in 2014.

(d) �The Company have warranted the execution of the contract with respect to the Korea Seven and 7-Eleven, Inc. (US corpo-
ration) royalties (0.6% of net sales) contract.

(a) Details of control and subsidiary relationships with the Company as of December 31, 2016 are as follows:

Related company 
Hotel Lotte Co., Ltd.
Korea Fuji Film Co., Ltd.
Lotte Confectionery Co., Ltd.
LOTTE DATA COMMUNICATION COMPANY
Lotte Chilsung Beverage Co., Ltd.
Lotte Engineering & Construction Co., Ltd.
Hotel Lotte Pusan Co., Ltd.

Ownership (%)
8.83
7.86
7.86
4.81
3.93
0.95
0.78

Control relationship (*)
Affiliate of Lotte Group
Affiliate of Lotte Group
Affiliate of Lotte Group
Affiliate of Lotte Group
Affiliate of Lotte Group
Affiliate of Lotte Group
Affiliate of Lotte Group

42. Transactions and Balances with Related Companies

(*)	 Lotte Group represents a group of entities as defined and restricted by the Monopoly Regulation and Fair Trade Act in Korea.

(b) �Significant transactions which occurred in the normal course of business with related companies for the years ended 
December 31, 2016 and 2015 are summarized as follows:

2016

Related company
Shareholders:

Hotel Lotte Co., Ltd.
Lotte Confectionery Co., Ltd.
Lotte Chilsung Beverage Co., Ltd.
Lotte Engineering & Construction Co., Ltd.
Hotel Lotte Pusan Co., Ltd.
LOTTE DATA COMMUNICATION COMPANY
Korea Fuji Film Co., Ltd.

Subtotal
Associates:

DAEHONG COMMUNICATIONS INC.
Lotte Station Building Co., Ltd.
Lotteria Co., Ltd.
Lotte Trading Co., Ltd.
Others

Subtotal
Others:

LOTTE FOOD CO., LTD.
Lotte Aluminum Co., Ltd.
Lotte Logistics Co., Ltd.
Others

Subtotal
Total

 
Sales

91,919
16,132
17,232

7,429
9,736
3,211
1,377

147,036

39,409
24,788
20,335

6,012
103,059
193,603

24,504
3,503

52,175
64,265

144,447
485,086

Purchase of 
inventories

44
164,823
110,741

-
-

1,331
842

277,781

144
-

6,247
196,634

83,356
286,381

262,140
21,023

2,335,490
39,741

2,658,394
3,222,556

Purchase of  
fixed asset

392
18

-
295,713

-
83,921

-
380,044

582
217
133

-
8,942
9,874

-
36,886

2,138
24,883
63,907

453,825

Other  
revenue

529
-

146
5

10
228

-
918

-
2,213

91
-

84
2,388

-
-
-

20,294
20,294
23,600

Other  
expenses

120,626
18,775

731
333

20,760
209,590

45
370,860

85,743
4,733
1,443

225
69,533

161,677

8,849
32,552

266,183
219,143
526,727

1,059,264

Korean won (millions)

2015

Related company
Shareholders:

Hotel Lotte Co., Ltd.
Lotte Confectionery Co., Ltd.
Lotte Chilsung Beverage Co., Ltd.
Lotte Engineering & Construction Co., Ltd.
Hotel Lotte Pusan Co., Ltd.
LOTTE DATA COMMUNICATION COMPANY
Korea Fuji Film Co., Ltd.

Subtotal
Associates:

DAEHONG COMMUNICATIONS INC.
Lotte Station Building Co., Ltd.
Lotteria Co., Ltd.
Lotte Trading Co., Ltd.
Others

Subtotal
Others:

LOTTE FOOD CO., LTD.
Lotte Aluminum Co., Ltd.
Lotte Logistics Co., Ltd.
Others

Subtotal
Total

 
Sales

77,509
14,547
12,573

6,837
9,723

18,319
1,431

140,939

32,881
28,586
22,692

5,172
102,137
191,468

19,115
3,044

35,488
64,763

122,410
454,817

Purchase of 
inventories

141
154,965
110,092

-
26

1,595
537

267,356

-
38

5,681
230,181

71,976
307,876

203,575
17,107

2,118,619
34,478

2,373,779
2,949,011

Purchase of  
fixed asset

3,410
-
-

292,022
-

131,706
-

427,138

1,025
16
55

-
7,071
8,167

-
38,184

2,100
22,613
62,897

498,202

Other  
revenue

1,180
53
64

-
-

50
-

1,347

46
1,474

63
615

1,340
3,538

12
1

9,797
1,032

10,842
15,727

Other  
expenses

107,943
18,082

642
128

19,414
173,679

55
319,943

89,528
5,548
1,920

299
87,763

185,058

7,785
34,785

257,159
198,025
497,754

1,002,755

Korean won (millions)

During 2016 the Group acquired shares and warrant of Lotte Global Logistics Co.,LTD.(formerly, Hyundai Logistics Co., Ltd.) 
from IGIS I Corporation for ₩26,448 million.

During 2015, the Group disposed of shares of Lotte Aluminum Co., Ltd. to Hotel Lotte Co., Ltd. for ₩83,999 million.

(c) �Significant financial transactions with related companies for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 are summarized 
as follows:

2016

Related company
Associates:

LOTTE Accelerator Corporation
BUSAN-LOTTE CREATIVE FILM FUND
Coralis S.A.
LOTTE Giants Co., Ltd.
Stonebridge Innovation Quarter Fund
Capital One Middle-Low Budget Cinema Fund
Lotte Capital Co., Ltd.
Others

Subtotal
Joint ventures:

LOTTE JTB Co., Ltd. 
PT. INDO LOTTE MAKMUR

Subtotal
Others:

LOTTE rental Co., ltd.
Lotte Capital Lease & Finance (China) Co., Ltd. and others

Subtotal
Total

Borrowings

-
-
-
-
-
-

20,000
-

20,000

-
-
-

3,806
21,588
25,394
45,394

Repayment 

-
-
-
-
-
-

21,125
-

21,125

-
-
-

350
5,065
5,415

26,540

Capital increase 

5,000
6,000
4,474
9,000
3,000

-
-

4,134
31,608

10,000
14,433
24,433

27,055
-

27,055
83,096

Capital decrease

-
-
-
-
-

1,350
-

4,946
6,296

-
-
-

-
-
-

6,296

Korean won (millions)
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2015

Related company
Associates:

Lotte Europe Holdings B.V.
Lotte Asset Development Co., Ltd.
Shandong Longzhile Cinema Co., Ltd.
Hemisphere Film Investors II LLC
LOTTE Town Dongtan Co.,LTD
LOTTE CAPITAL CO., LTD.
Mybi.Co.Ltd
Others

Subtotal
Others:

Lotte Capital Lease & Finance (China) Co., Ltd. and others
Total

Borrowings

-
-
-
-
-

15,000
10,000

-
25,000

25,513
50,513

Repayment 

-
-
-
-
-

10,000
-
-

10,000

17,824
27,824

Capital increase 

10,855
19,571

437
-

35,000
-
-

3,450
69,313

2,000
71,313

Capital decrease

-
-
-

7,012
-
-
-

636
7,648

-
7,648

Korean won (millions)

(d) Account balances with related companies as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 are summarized as follows:

Receivables

Related company
Shareholders:

Hotel Lotte Co., Ltd.
Lotte Confectionery Co., Ltd.
Lotte Chilsung Beverage Co., Ltd.
Lotte Engineering & Construction Co., Ltd.
Hotel Lotte Pusan Co., Ltd.
LOTTE DATA COMMUNICATION COMPANY
Korea Fuji Film Co., Ltd.

Subtotal
Associates:

DAEHONG COMMUNICATIONS INC.
Lotte Station Building Co., Ltd.
Lotteria Co., Ltd.
Lotte Trading Co., Ltd.
Others

Subtotal
Others:

LOTTE FOOD CO., LTD.
Lotte Aluminum Co., Ltd.
Lotte Logistics Co., Ltd.
Others

Subtotal
Total

Trade  
receivables

2,920
598

1,049
15

150
31
10

4,773

4,309
8,260

313
135

2,476
15,493

293
-
2

2,451
2,746

23,012

Korean won (millions)

2016

Other 
receivables

94,288
12,311
57,290
55,136
12,382
72,736

124
304,267

2,334
14,498

1,271
1,090

15,933
35,126

5,361
12,497

1,078
112,417
131,353
470,746

Trade  
payables

1
21,422

6,594
-
-

368
167

28,552

99
-

594
8,643

14,490
23,826

25,472
3,039

253,239
4,312

286,062
338,440

 
Borrowings

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-

15,000
15,000

-
-
-

31,654
31,654
46,654

Other  
payables

50,789
3,275
6,243

108,180
7,597

56,644
1,549

234,277

30,412
16,240
13,291

104
38,977
99,024

8,410
12,471
30,609
84,754

136,244
469,545

Payables

Receivables

Related company
Shareholders:

Hotel Lotte Co., Ltd.
Lotte Confectionery Co., Ltd.
Lotte Chilsung Beverage Co., Ltd.
Lotte Engineering & Construction Co., Ltd.
Hotel Lotte Pusan Co., Ltd.
LOTTE DATA COMMUNICATION COMPANY
Korea Fuji Film Co., Ltd.

Subtotal
Associates:

DAEHONG COMMUNICATIONS INC.
Lotte Station Building Co., Ltd.
Lotteria Co., Ltd.
Lotte Trading Co., Ltd.
Others

Subtotal
Others:

LOTTE FOOD CO., LTD.
Lotte Aluminum Co., Ltd.
Lotte Logistics Co., Ltd.
Others

Subtotal
Total

Trade  
receivables

4,211
304
724

-
171

5
5

5,420

4,696
9,111

343
26

2,290
16,466

97
-
2

2,610
2,709

24,595

Korean won (millions)

2015

Other 
receivables

73,043
12,659
55,443
39,842
10,863
12,725

90
204,665

798
12,630

1,598
978

6,467
22,471

3,887
18,448

2,629
109,188
134,152
361,288

Trade  
payables

2
20,181

7,338
-
3

359
78

27,961

-
-

389
8,756

17,303
26,448

21,143
1,747

236,535
4,073

263,498
317,907

 
Borrowings

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-

15,000
15,000

-
-
-

21,159
21,159
36,159

Other  
payables

31,934
2,113
6,270

112,970
3,919

53,918
1,560

212,684

24,372
11,180
11,224

78
38,107
84,961

8,358
10,578
25,537
61,859

106,332
403,977

Payables

(e) The Group has provided guarantees for related companies as of December 31, 2016 as follows:

 
Related company 
Associates:

Lotte Shopping Rus Ltd.
Shandong Longzhile Cinema Co., Ltd.

Joint ventures:
International Business Center Company Limited 

Others:
Lotte Properties(Shenyang) Limited 
 

 
Guarantee recipient

Korea Exchange Bank
Shinhan Bank

The Export-Import Bank of Korea
Standard Chartered Bank Korea Limited

The Export-Import Bank of Korea
Woori Bank
INDUSTRIAL BANK OF KOREA

Type of  
borrowings

Working capital
Working capital

Working capital
Working capital

Working capital
Working capital
Working capital

Guaranteed  
amount (thousands)

USD 5,000
CNY 24,000

USD 15,000
VND 110,000,000

USD 30,500
USD 31,500
USD 57,500

(f) �The fulfillment of the VPF contract between D-Cinema of Korea Co., Ltd. and Twentieth Century Fox Film Corporation 
was equally guaranteed by CGV and the Group in October 2008.

(g) �The fulfillment of the loyalty contract between Burger King Japan Co., Ltd. and BK Asiapac, Pte. Ltd. was guaranteed by 
the Group.

(h) �The Group entered into an agreement to jointly provide financial support for HND able 2nd limited (“HND able”) 
and Invest Farmland Co., Ltd. in default of the principal and interest on the Asset Backed Commercial Paper (“ABCP”, 
₩700,000 million of par value in maturing in 57 months) issued by HND able on May 27, 2013, which is collateralized 
with the assets of Lotte Incheon Development Co., Ltd. and on the asset backed loan (₩144,000 million of par value in 
maturing in 29 months) issued by Lotte Incheon Town Co., Ltd on December 26, 2016.
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(i) �In 2015, Lotte Incheon Town Co., Ltd., which is the Group’s associate, entered into a land sale and purchase contract with 
the government of Incheon city.  As a result of the contract, the Group collected a security deposit of ₩30,600 million, 
which was previously paid by the Group to the Incheon city from Lotte Incheon Town Co., Ltd.

(j) �In 2013, the Group issued hybrid securities, among which ₩20,000 million is held by Lotte Non-Life Insurance Co., Ltd. In 
2016, the Group purchased hybrid securities (₩10,000 million) and subordinated bonds (₩4,000 million) issued by Lotte 
Non-Life Insurance Co., Ltd.

(k) �In 2016, the Group entered into an jointly guarantee agreement with LOTTE Engineering & Construction Co.,Ltd and 
LOTTE ASSET DEVELOPMENT CO.,LTD to GAR The First Co., Ltd.  The Group and others are obligated to pay com-
pensations for damages incurred by LOTTE Town Dongtan Co.,LTD due to non-execution of loan agreement to GAR The 
First Co., Ltd.

 

(a) Management of financial risks

Objectives and Policies of the Group
Risk management activities of the Group identify credit risk, liquidity risk, market risk and any other potential risk that may af-
fect financial performance and by eliminating, avoiding and abating the possible risk level to an acceptable range and to support 
to a stable and consistent business performance with the intention to contribute to strengthening the Group’s competitiveness 
by reducing costs of finance through improving the financial structure and enhancing the efficiency of its capital operations. 

In order to install and implement the financial risk management system, the Group has established risk management policies in 
an integrated perspective, and is complying with the risk management policies and procedures by strictly performing control 
and review of internal managers.
 
Credit Risk 
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its con-
tractual obligations in an ordinary transaction or investment activity.

Most of the Group’s profit is generated from individual clients and carries low credit risk.  Also, the Group deposits its cash and 
cash equivalents and short-term financial instruments with financial institutions.  Credit risks from these financial institutions 
are very limited due to their high solvency. 

1) Exposure to credit risk
The book value of a financial asset represents the maximum exposure to credit risk.  The maximum exposures to credit risk as of 
December 31, 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

43. Risk Management

Account 
Cash equivalent (*1)
Trade and other receivables
Other financial assets (current) 
Other financial assets (non-current) (*2)

Total

December 31, 2015

1,714,025
918,851

9,672,512
1,527,522

13,832,910

December 31, 2016

2,214,285
1,031,338
9,979,329
1,706,519

14,931,471

Korean won (millions)

  
Balance at beginning of the year
Impairment loss
Reversal of Impairment loss
Write-offs
Recoveries
Others
Balance at end of the year

2015

16,131
38,334

(144)
(3,310)

83
134

51,228

2016

51,228
13,106

(34,924)
(7,275)

50
6,648

28,833

Korean won (millions)

  
Balance at beginning of the year
Impairment loss
Write-offs
Recoveries
Replacement
Balance at end of the year

2015

179,106
211,963

(198,400)
14,321

-
206,990

2016

206,990
206,406

(221,663)
18,079

5
209,817

Korean won (millions)

(*1) Cash held by the Group are excluded as there is no exposure to credit risk.

(*2) Equity securities within available-for-sale financial assets are excluded as there is no exposure to credit risk.

2) Impairment loss
Trade and other receivables, other financial assets (current), and other financial assets (non-current), before deducting the allow-
ance for doubtful accounts as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 are summarized as follows:

3) Allowance for doubtful trade and other receivables
The movement in the allowance for doubtful trade and other receivables for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 are 
summarized as follow:

The movement in the allowance for doubtful other financial assets (current) for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 are 
summarized as follow:

December 31, 2016

 

Description
Trade and other receivables
Other financial assets (current)
Other financial assets (non-current)

Total

Receivables that 
are neither past 

due nor impaired
999,280

9,777,180
1,706,519

12,482,979

Receivables that are past due 
as at the end of the reporting 

period but not impaired 
31,633

196,388
-

228,021

 
Receivables  
impaired(*) 

29,258
215,577

4,621
249,456

 
 

Total
1,060,171

10,189,145
1,711,140

12,960,456

Korean won (millions)

(*) The Group sets up an allowance for doubtful account when financial assets are individually determined to be impaired.

December 31, 2015

 

Description
Trade and other receivables
Other financial assets (current)
Other financial assets (non-current)

Total

Receivables that 
are neither past 

due nor impaired
882,488

9,296,172
1,527,522

11,706,182

Receivables that are past due 
as at the end of the reporting 

period but not impaired 
36,363

316,064
-

352,427

 
Receivables  
impaired(*) 

51,228
267,265

4,057
322,550

 
 

Total
970,079

9,879,501
1,531,579

12,381,159

Korean won (millions)

(*) The Group sets up an allowance for doubtful account when financial assets are individually determined to be impaired.
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Balance at beginning of the year
Impairment loss
Write-offs
Business combination
Replacement
Balance at end of the year

2015

4,000
5,400

(5,368)
25

-
4,057

2016

4,057
2,250

-
(1,681)

(5)
4,621

Korean won (millions)

The movement in the allowance for doubtful other financial assets (non-current) for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 
are summarized as follow:

4) Financial assets that are past due as at the end of the reporting period but not impaired
An analysis of the age of trade and other receivables, other financial assets (current), and other financial assets (non-current) that 
are past due as at the end of the reporting period but not impaired are summarized as follows:

5) Guarantees
As of December 31, 2016, the Group has provided financial guarantees to associates and joint ventures. Should the Group be 
liable for payment upon defaults of the associates and joint ventures, the expected amounts which the Group is liable to pay 
within 1 year are ₩178,585 million.

Liquidity Risks
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting its obligations associated with its financial liabilities 
that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset due to an adverse managerial or external environment.

In order to systematically manage liquidity risk, the Group predicts and corresponds to potential risks through consistently 
analyzing the schedule of cash flow and establishing short-term and long-term capital management plans.

Also, the Group currently deposits a considerable amount with financial institutions with high credit ratings to make proper 
provisions for potential liquidity risks.  The Group maintains a credit line for overdraft and general loans with various financial 
institutions, and can raise funds through the domestic and foreign financial markets based on high credit ratings.  The manage-
ment of the Group believes that it is possible to redeem liabilities using cash flows from operating activities and cash in-flow 
from financial assets. 

December 31, 2016

Description
Trade and other receivables
Other financial assets (current)

Total

Carrying amount
31,633

196,388
228,021

3 months or less
19,328

193,703
213,031

3 ~ 6 months
4,822
2,685
7,507

 6 ~ 12 months
2,975

-
2,975

More than 1 year
4,508

-
4,508

Korean won (millions)

December 31, 2016

Description
Current portion of borrowings and debentures
Trade and other payables
Other financial liabilities (current)
Borrowings and debentures
Other financial liabilities (non-current)
Acceptances and guarantees

Total

3 months or less
1,107,678
5,726,582

525,019
57,400

716
178,585

7,595,980

3 ~ 6 months
1,740,827

57,584
32,730
59,022

644
-

1,890,807

 6 ~ 12 months
2,293,621

1,185
69,356

120,175
1,234

-
2,485,571

More than 1 year
-
-
-

9,794,532
269,871

-
10,064,403

Korean won (millions)

December 31, 2015

Description
Trade and other receivables
Other financial assets (current)

Total

Carrying amount
36,363

316,064
352,427

3 months or less
27,275

315,324
342,599

3 ~ 6 months
2,472

740
3,212

 6 ~ 12 months
3,240

-
3,240

More than 1 year
3,376

-
3,376

Korean won (millions)

Aggregate maturities of financial liabilities, including estimated interest, as of December 31, 2016 are as follows:

It is not expected that the cash flows included in the maturity analysis could occur significantly earlier, or at significantly different 
amounts.

Market Risks
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices will affect the 
Group’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments.  The objective of market risk management is to manage and 
control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the Group’s return.

The Group buys and sells derivatives, and also incurs financial liabilities, in order to manage market risks.  All such transactions 
are carried out under strict supervision of the internal risk management.  Generally, the Group seeks to apply hedge accounting 
in order to manage volatility in profit or loss. 

1) Currency risk
The Group is exposed to currency risk on borrowings and debentures that are denominated in a currency other than the respec-
tive functional currencies of the Group.  Currencies that generate exchange positions include USD, JPY and others.  The objective 
of exchange risk management is to continue stable financial activities by minimizing uncertainty and profit and loss fluctuations.  
Foreign currency trade for speculation is strictly prohibited.

The Group enters into currency swap transactions with financial institutions to hedge currency risks of foreign currency denomi-
nated borrowings and debentures.  When the Group needs foreign currencies, the Group enters into a forward exchange contract 
with major financial institutions to avoid the risks of exchange rate fluctuations.

Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies other than the Group functional currencies as of December 31, 2016 and 
2015 are as follows:

December 31, 2016

 
USD
EUR
JPY
VND
CNY
HKD

Total

Assets
17,657

33
145

3
514

-
18,352

Liabilities 
3,286,332

1,105
103,699

-
25,553

1,247
3,417,936

December 31, 2015

Assets
11,685

65
257

-
1,249

-
13,256

Liabilities 
3,415,862

2,191
188,311

-
-

38,636
3,645,000

Korean won (millions)
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Average rate

 
USD
EUR
JPY
VND
CNY(*)
HKD

2016
1,160.50
1,283.30
10.6817

0.0519
174.40
149.51

2015 
1,131.49
1,255.16

9.3456
-

180.06
145.95

Closing rate

December 31, 2016
1,208.05
1,267.60
10.3681

0.0531
173.26
155.83

December 31, 2015
1,172.00
1,280.53

9.7201
-

180.55
151.21

December 31, 2016

 
USD
EUR
JPY
VND
CNY
HKD

Total

10% increase
(32,793)

(107)
(10,355)

-
(2,504)

(125)
(45,884)

10% decrease 
32,793

107
10,355

-
2,504

125
45,884

December 31, 2015

10% increase
(30,468)

(213)
(9,695)

-
125

(3,864)
(44,115)

10% decrease
30,468

213
9,695

-
(125)
3,864

44,115

Korean won (millions)

December 31, 2016

 
Interest income
Interest expense

100bps up
10,298

6,781

100bps down 
(10,298)

(6,781)

December 31, 2015

100bps up
8,200
5,900

100bps down
(8,200)
(5,900)

Korean won (millions)

The closing rates as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 and the average rates for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 are as 
follows:

Sensitivity analysis of interest income and expenses from changes in interest rates as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 are summa-
rized as follows:

Borrowings and debentures for which the Group has entered into interest rate swap transactions are not included.

3) Price risk
The Group is exposed to fluctuations of price in available-for-sale financial assets.  The book values of the marketable available-
for-sale financial assets as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 are ₩280,520 million and ₩282,887 million, respectively. 

The Group assumes that prices of the marketable available-for-sale financial assets fluctuate 10% at the end of reporting period, 
and others variables are not changed.  Sensitivity analysis of other comprehensive income from changes of price as of December 
31, 2016 and 2015 are as summarized as follows:

(b) Capital Management

The objective of the Group’s capital management is maximizing shareholders’ profit through maintaining a sound capital struc-
ture.  The Group makes necessary improvements to the capital structure through monthly monitoring of financial ratios such as 
liabilities to equity ratios and net borrowings to equity ratios in order to achieve an optimal capital structure.

The liabilities to equity ratios and net borrowings to equity ratios as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 are as follows

The Group regularly measures exchange risks on Korean won against foreign currency fluctuations.  The Group assumes that 
foreign currency exchange rates fluctuate 10% at the end of reporting period, and others variables are not changed.  Sensitivity 
analysis of income before taxes from changes of foreign currency exchange rate as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 are summa-
rized as follows:

Borrowings and debentures with currency swaps and overseas convertible bonds designated as financial liabilities at fair value 
through profit or loss are not included.  The sensitivity analysis above is related to the monetary assets and liabilities, denomi-
nated in a currency other than the Group’s functional currency, as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 of the Group entities in Korea.

2) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk of changes in interest income and expense from deposits and borrowings due to fluctuations in the 
market interest rate.  Interest rate risk of the Group arises on variable interest rate financial instruments and borrowings.  The 
purpose of interest rate risk management is to minimize value fluctuation of financial assets and liabilities that occur from uncer-
tainty caused by changes in interest rates.  

The Group makes interest swap transactions with financial institutions for hedging interest rate risk of variable borrowings and 
debentures.

At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the Group’s variable interest-bearing financial instruments was:

(*) �The Group had translated with CNY rate calculated by arbitrating USD/KRW and USD/CNY until December 31, 2015.  However, the exchange rate has not been announced any longer from January 4, 2016, the Group 

applies direct CNH/KRW exchange rate in translation from January 1, 2016

(*) Financial instruments mainly consist of ordinary deposits, checking accounts, short-term and long-term financial instruments.

  
Variable rate instruments:
Financial assets
Financial liabilities

December 31, 2015

820,038
3,424,414

December 31, 2016

1,029,846
4,147,528

Korean won (millions)

December 31, 2016

 
Other comprehensive income

10% increase
28,052 

10% decrease 
(28,052)

December 31, 2015

10% increase
28,289 

10% decrease
(28,289)

Korean won (millions)

  
Liabilities (a)
Equity (b)
Financial instruments (*) (c)
Borrowings (d)
Liabilities to equity ratio (a/b)
Net borrowings to equity ratio ((d-c)/b)

December 31, 2015

23,605,524
17,087,842

2,998,383
14,083,577

138.14%
64.87%

December 31, 2016

24,651,865
17,264,042

3,129,595
14,482,948

142.79%
65.76%

Korean won (millions)

In March 2017, some distribution stores (discount stores) operated by the Group in China have been suspended for about a month 
due to fire control inspection by Chinese authorities.   Currently, it is difficult to predict the financial impacts on the consolidated 
financial statements.  Therefore, the Group does not reflect the effect from such event in the consolidated financial statements.

44. Subsequent Events
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Lotte Shopping is leading the retail industry of today and tomorrow. 

Offering our customers the ultimate in new, exciting, 

and innovative shopping channels and experiences, 

we are dedicated to making life richer and happier for everyone. 

We are also committed to sharing our growth and prosperity 

with all the people living in the communities in which we operate.

Our goal is to be industry leaders in realizing the full future potential of retail, 

harnessing the power of change and innovation to overcome 

each and every challenge that faces us and overcoming all boundaries 

and limitations to our growth and prosperity. 




